
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING APRIL 5, 2018 • Page 1 of 5 

MEETING OF THE 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 

3rd FLOOR – CONFERENCE ROOM 

THURSDAY, APRIL 5, 2018 

3:30 P.M. 

AGENDA 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for Thursday,
April 5, 2018.

2. Discuss possible extension to Azalea Drive.

3. Discuss the City’s Neighborhood Services program to include but not limited to:
• Temple Housing Improvements
• Outside Funding Agencies



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING APRIL 5, 2018 • Page 2 of 5 
 

5:00 P.M. 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 

TEMPLE, TX 
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
1. Invocation          
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance   
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting.  
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting. Please limit comments to three 
minutes. No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council. 
 
III. PUBLIC APPEARANCE 
 
3. Receive comments from Mr. Boyd A. Tackett III regarding his lease for two hangers at the 
 Draughon-Miller Regional Airport. 
 
IV. ANNEXATION - PUBLIC HEARING 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – Receive Municipal Service Plan and conduct a public hearing to receive 
 comments on the possible annexation of 1.310 acres of land out of the William Gilmore Survey, 
 Abstract No.339, Bell County, Texas, in the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Temple, Bell 
 County, Texas, located at 2391 FM 1237. 
 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be removed 
from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered separately. 
 
5. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate 
 resolutions and ordinances for each of the following: 

 
Minutes 

 
(A) March 15, 2018 Special and Regular Meeting 
(B) March 16, 2018 Special Meeting 
(C) March 22, 2018 Special Meeting 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING APRIL 5, 2018 • Page 3 of 5 
 

Contracts, Leases, & Bids 
 

(D) 2018-9085-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of a compact 
street sweeper from Pollock Paper Distributors of Grand Prairie in the amount of 
$30,571.95. 
 

(E) 2018-9086-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 80 traffic signal 
Ethernet switches in the amount of $72,825.22 from Solid IT Networks, Inc. of Houston. 
 

(F) 2018-9087-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing annual contract renewal with 
SHI Government Solutions of Austin, in the amount of $169,808.12, for Microsoft 
Software Enterprise licensing. 
 

(G) 2018-9088-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of right of way 
necessary for the expansion of Kegley Road Phase IV and authorizing closing costs 
associated with the purchase in an estimated amount of $7,000. 
 

(H) 2018-9089-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into 
a contract between the City of Temple and the Department of the Army, Corps of 
Engineers to reimburse the city for salary and benefit expenses and vehicle cost related 
to police patrols at Temple Lake Park from May 5, 2018 through September 4, 2018. 
 

(I) 2018-9090-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 
Montgomery Construction of Hewitt in the amount of $74,318.55 for replacement of the 
roof at the Social Security Administration Building. 
 

(J) 2018-9091-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing change order #2 to the 
construction contract with Archer Western Construction, LLC, of Irving, in the amount of 
$62,890.97 to construct Phase 1 of the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Expansion. 
 

(K) 2018-9092-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a change order to a construction 
contract for the street overlay program for FY 2018 with Oldcastle Materials Texas, Inc. 
(formerly known as APAC-Texas, Inc.) of Cedar Park in the estimated amount of 
$291,310. 
 

(L) 2018-9093-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc., in an amount not to exceed 
$61,000 for acquisition and relocation services for five properties needed for Phase 6 of 
the Outer Loop, as well as, declare an official intent to reimburse the expenditures with 
the issuance of the 2018 Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Revenue Bonds. 
 

(M) 2018-9094-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing contract amendment #2 to a 
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in an amount 
not to exceed $365,311 for construction administration and on-site representation 
required to construct the Shallowford Lift Station Improvements. 
   

(N) 2018-9095-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Geographical Information 
System license agreement and maintenance contract with Environmental Systems 
Research Institute, Inc., of San Antonio, in the amount of $50,000.   

 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING APRIL 5, 2018 • Page 4 of 5 
 

Ordinances – Second & Final Reading 
 

(O) 2018-4901: SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing a renewal 
of the franchise with Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc., to provide non-emergency 
ambulance transfer services within the City. 
 

(P) 2018-4902: SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing the closure 
of a section of Avenue C, between Avenue B and Main Street, and the closure of a section 
of 1st Street south of Avenue B.   
 

(Q) 2018-4903: SECOND READING – Z-FY-18-11: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural district to General Retail district on Lots 1 & 2, 
Block 5 of South Pointe Phase I, 2.21 +/- acres, located on the north side of Loop 363, 
approximately 172 feet south east of its intersection with Dogwood Lane, addressed as 
3137 & 3131 Alton Road. 
 

Misc. 
 

(R) 2018-9096-R: Consider adopting a resolution amending a street use license (SUL-FY-15-
02) to allow existing buildings and improvements both above and below ground, on Lot 
3, Block 1, Golden Valley Subdivision, with an encroachment of 50 +/- feet that covers 
0.67 of an acre into the Georgetown Railroad Right-of-Way.   
 

(S) 2018-9097-R: Consider adopting a resolution rescinding Resolution No. 94-656-R, which 
was passed and approved on February 17, 1994 and established a Police Reserve Unit 
for the Temple Police Department. 
 

(T) 2018-9098-R: Consider adopting a resolution revising the City of Temple Housing 
Improvement Program Guidelines and authorizing the City Manager to waive permitting 
fees related to the program. 
 

(U) 2018-9099-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal 
year 2017-2018. 
 

VI. REGULAR AGENDA 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
6. 2018-9100-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing approval of a dual street name of West 

Avenue A /Santa Fe Way on a section of West Avenue A between South 3rd Street and South 
11th Street in the City of Temple, Bell County, Texas. 

 
7. 2018-9101-R: Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 

2206.053 finding that a 0.639-acre permanent easement situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, 
Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas is necessary for the construction of the Charter Oak Water 
Line and authorizing the use of eminent domain to condemn the property. 

 
ORDINANCES – FIRST READING/PUBLIC HEARING 
 
8. 2018-4904: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 

establishing a speed limit of 45 miles per hour from the 5100 block of South 5th Street to the 
6400 of South 5th Street. 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING APRIL 5, 2018 • Page 5 of 5 

9. 2018-4905: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-18-13: Consider adopting an
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from General Retail to Planned Development Multi-Family
Three with a site development plan on 4.203 +/- acres for a five-story apartment building situated
on Lot 5, Block 1,Temple Mall Addition Replat No. 1, addressed as 1210 Azalea Drive.

10. 2018-4906: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-18-15: Consider adopting an
ordinance authorizing rezoning from Agricultural to General Retail proposed for 3 +/- acres and
Multiple-Family Dwelling 1 proposed for 1 +/- acre, located on the eastside of State Highway
317, approximately 1,100 feet south of its intersection with Hogan Road, addressed as 5701
State Highway 317.

11. 2018-4907: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-18-16: Consider adopting an
ordinance authorizing a rezoning and site development plan on 81.00 +/- acres from Agricultural
zoning district to Planned Development Single Family Two zoning district, addressed as 1810
South Pea Ridge Road in the Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract No. 17, Temple, Texas.

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session whenever permitted by the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
12:45 pm, on Thursday, March 29, 2018. 

_________________________ 
City Secretary, TRMC 

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS: Persons with disabilities who have special communication or 
accommodation needs and desire to attend this meeting should notify the City Secretary's Office by 
mail or telephone 48 hours prior to the meeting date. 

I certify that this Notice of Meeting Agenda was removed by me from the outside bulletin board in front 
of the City Municipal Building on ________________ day of _____________2018. 

______________Title____________________________ 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 
Item #3 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Receive comments from Mr. Boyd A. Tackett III regarding the non-renewal of 
his lease for two hangers at the Draughon-Miller Regional Airport. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Receive comments as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Mr. Tackett submitted a Request for Placement on the City Council Agenda, please 
see attached the forms. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Request for placement on agenda  
  





 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 
Item #4 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: PUBLIC HEARING – Receive Municipal Service Plan and conduct a public 
hearing to receive comments on the possible annexation of 1.310 acres of land out of the William 
Gilmore Survey, Abstract No.339, Bell County, Texas, in the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of 
Temple, Bell County, Texas, located at 2391 FM 1237. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive staff presentation on the Municipal Service Plan, as required 
by State law, hold public hearing and take no action at this time.   
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Janet Clark filed a petition on January 18, 2018, seeking voluntary annexation of 
1.310 acres into the City of Temple.  Ms. Clark purchased this 1.310-acre tract from Royce and Diane 
Oliver, whose 12.64-acre tract is subject to a 2008 development/non-annexation agreement.  The 
purchase of the 1.310 acres and a proposed manufactured home triggers a plat and per the 
development agreement, voluntary annexation. 
 
Voluntary annexation is governed by Section 43.028 of the Texas Local Government Code and applies 
only to the annexation of an area that is: 
 

1. Less than one-half mile in width, 
2. Contiguous to the annexing municipality, and 
3. Vacant and without residents or on which fewer than three qualified voters reside. 

 
On February 15, 2018, the City Council adopted a resolution directing City staff to create a Municipal 
Service Plan and public hearing schedule to consider the annexation of the subject property.  The 
second public hearing is scheduled as a special meeting of the City Council, on Friday, April 6, 2018 
at 8:30 am in the City Council Chambers. 
 
The proposed schedule anticipates completion of annexation proceedings through a Second Reading 
at City Council on May 17, 2018.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The Municipal Service Plan does not contain any proposal to extend water or 
wastewater services to the area, or any other new physical facilities to serve this small tract. 

 
 



04/05/18 
Item #4 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Voluntary Annexation Maps 
Municipal Service Plan 
Voluntary Annexation Letter 
Survey of Proposed Annexation Area 
Field Notes of Proposed Annexation Area 
Voluntary Annexation Schedule 
 
  



Temple Web Map

Easement
3/8/2018, 1:17:09 PM

City of Temple

1:18,056
0 0.35 0.70.175 mi
0 0.7 1.40.35 km

2391 FM 1237



PropID
317309
Address

2391 FM 1237

PropID
64048

Address
FM 1237

PropID
32977

Address
FM 1237

PropID
32980

Address
2591 FM 1237

PropID
471630
Address

2391 FM 1237

PropID
471629
Address

2391 FM 1237

FM 1237

PropID 410087
Address 2433 FM 1237

2391 FM 1237 Notification Map GIS products are for informational purposes and may 
not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, 
engineering, or surveying purposes. They do not 
represent an on-the-ground survey and represent 
only the approximate relative location of property 

boundaries and other features.
¶

2/13/2018
0 90 18045 Feet

200FT Buffer
Temple Parcels
Temple ETJ Parcels

Temple City Limits
Original Annexation Boundary



 1 

 CITY OF TEMPLE  
ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN—VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION   

2391 FM 1237 
 

For 1.310 acres of land out of the William Gilmore Survey, Abstract No.339, Bell County, Texas, located 
at 2391 FM 1237, a state maintained roadway, and being more particularly described as Exhibit “A” 
(Field Notes) and depicted as Exhibit “B” (Survey) of the Annexation Ordinance (2018-####). 
 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED ON THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF ANNEXATION 
 

1. POLICE PROTECTION 
 

The City will provide protection to the newly-annexed tract at the same or similar level of service now 
being provided to other areas of the City, with the same or similar topography, land use and population 
density. 

 
2. FIRE PROTECTION AND AMBULANCE SERVICE 

 
The City will provide fire protection to the newly-annexed area at the same or similar level of service 
now being provided to other areas of the City with the same or similar topography, land use and 
population density. The City will provide First Responder services through its Fire Department and 
contract for emergency medical services (EMS) through American Medical Response dba Temple 
EMS.  

3. SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 
 
Upon payment of any required deposits and the agreement to pay lawful service fees and charges, 
solid waste collection will be provided to the newly-annexed area to the extent that the City has access 
to the area to be serviced.  Private contractors currently providing sanitation collecting services in the 
area may continue to do so for up to two years. 

 
4. MAINTENANCE OF WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITIES 

 
Any and all water or wastewater facilities owned or maintained by the City at the time of the proposed 
annexation shall continue to be maintained by the City.  Any and all water or wastewater facilities which 
may be acquired subsequent to the annexation of the proposed area shall be maintained by the City, 
to the extent of its ownership.  Any and all water or wastewater facilities owned by other water or 
wastewater treatment providers shall continue to be allowed to provide those services to the newly-
annexed tract.  
 

5. MAINTENANCE OF ROADS AND STREETS 
 
Any and all public roads, streets or alleyways which have been dedicated to the City, or which are 
owned by the City, shall be maintained to the same degree and extent that other roads, streets and 
alleyways are maintained in areas with similar topography, land use and population density. Any and 
all lighting of roads, streets and alleyways which may be positioned in a right-of-way, roadway or utility 
company easement shall be maintained by the applicable utility company servicing the City, pursuant 
to the rules, regulations and fees of such utility. 
 

6. MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC PARKS, PLAYGROUNDS AND SWIMMING POOLS 



 2 

The City Council is not aware of the existence of any public parks, playgrounds or swimming pools now 
located in the area proposed for annexation. In the event any such parks, playgrounds or swimming 
pools do exist and are public facilities, the City, will maintain such areas to the same extent and degree 
that it maintains parks, playgrounds and swimming pools and other similar areas of the City now 
incorporated in the City. 

 
7. MAINTENANCE OF MUNICIPALLY-OWNED FACILITY, BUILDING OR MUNICIPAL 

SERVICE 
 
The City Council is not aware of the existence of any publicly-owned facility, building or other municipal 
service now located in the area proposed for annexation. In the event any such publicly-owned facility, 
building or municipal service does exist and are public facilities, the City will maintain such areas to the 
same extent and degree that it maintains publicly-owned facilities, buildings or municipal services of 
the City now incorporated in the City. 

 
8. INSPECTIONS 
 

The City will provide building inspection services upon approved building permits from the City to the 
newly-annexed tract at the same or similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the 
City with the same or similar topography, land use and population density. 

 
9. CODE ENFORCEMENT 
 

The City will provide code enforcement services to the newly-annexed tract at the same or similar level 
of service now being provided to other areas of the City with the same or similar topography, land use 
and population density. 
 

10. MOWING 
 

The City will provide right-of-way mowing services adjacent to the newly-annexed tract at the same or 
similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the City with the same or similar 
topography, land use and population density. 
 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
 

1. POLICE PROTECTION, FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
 
The City Council finds and determines it to be unnecessary to acquire or construct any capital 
improvements for the purposes of providing police protection, fire protection, or emergency medical 
services. The City Council finds and determines that it has at the present time adequate facilities to 
provide the same type, kind and level of protection and service which is presently being administered 
to other areas already incorporated in the City with the same or similar topography, land use and 
population density. 

 
2. ROADS AND STREETS 

 
The City will undertake to provide the same degree of road and street lighting as is provided in areas 
of the same or similar topography, land use and population density within the present corporate limits 
of the City. Maintenance of properly dedicated roads and streets will be consistent with the 
maintenance provided by the City to other roads and streets in areas of similar topography, land use 



 3 

and subdivision development of the annexed property. Developers will be required, pursuant to the 
ordinances of the City to provide internal and peripheral streets and to construct those streets in 
accordance with the specifications required by the City for the properly dedicated street. City 
participation in capital expenditures will be in accordance with City policies. 

 
3. WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITIES 

 
The City of Temple does not have water facilities within the boundaries of the voluntary annexation.  
Pendleton Water Supply Corp. CNN is the water provider for the subject property. 
 
Currently, there are no wastewater treatment providers within the boundaries of the voluntary 
annexation and property owners rely on on-site sewage facilities (septic systems). Other areas of 
the City of Temple with similar topography, land use, and population density as those found in the 
boundaries of the voluntary annexation also rely on on-site sewage facilities for wastewater 
infrastructure. For this reason and in accordance with Local Government Code Section 43.056(g), 
the City proposes no extensions of wastewater facilities within the boundaries of the voluntary 
annexation.  

 4. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this service plan, a landowner within the newly annexed area       
will not be required to fund capital improvements as necessary for municipal services in a manner 
inconsistent with Chapter 395 of the Local Government Code, unless otherwise agreed to by the 
landowner. 

 
SPECIFIC FINDINGS 
 
The City Council finds and determines that this proposed Service Plan will not provide any fewer 
services, and it will not provide a lower level of service in the area proposed to be annexed than were 
in existence in the proposed area at the time immediately preceding the annexation process. 
 
Because of the differing characteristics of topography, land utilization and population density, the 
service levels which may ultimately be provided in the newly annexed area may differ somewhat from 
services provided in other areas of the City. These differences are specifically dictated because of 
differing characteristics of the property and the City will undertake to perform consistent with this 
contract so as to provide the newly-annexed area with the same type, kind and quality of service 
presently enjoyed by the citizens of the City who reside in areas of the same or similar topography, 
land utilization and population density. 

 
APPROVED ON THIS __________DAY OF _______________, 2018. 

 
         City of Temple, Texas 
 
         ________________________________________ 
         Mayor 
 
         ATTEST: 
 
         ________________________________________ 
         City Secretary 









 

SCHEDULE 
Voluntary Annexation – 1.310 Acres (Janet Clark) 

 
DATE ACTION TIME LIMIT/NOTES 

01-18-18 CITY RECEIVES PETITION of landowner to 
annex area adjacent to city limits; fewer than 

3 qualified voters reside in the area. 

N/A 

02-15-18 
Regular Meeting 

COUNCIL ADOPTS RESOLUTION 
1. Granting petition (28th day after petition 

filed); 
2.  Directing staff to develop service plans; 

and 
3. Setting dates, times, places for public 

hearings 
 

1. Hear and grant or deny petition 
after the 5th day, but on or before the 

30th day after petition is filed.  
2. Council must direct Staff to 

develop the services plan before 
publication of notice of 1st hearing 

required under § 43.063 LGC. 
§ 43.065 LGC 

03-02-18 CITY SECRETARY MAILS NOTICES TO 

1. Property owners  
2. Public and private service entities 

3. Railroads  

35th day before 1st public hearing 

Before the 30th day before the date of 

the first hearing required under 
§ 43.063. § 43.062(b) LGC 

 

03-19-18 CITY SECRETARY SENDS NOTICE TO 

Public school districts located in annexation 

area 
17th day before 1st public hearing 

Within the period prescribed for 

publishing the notice of the 1st 

hearing under § 43.063 LGC 

03-18-18 

 

CITY SECRETARY PUBLISHES NOTICES 

FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS ON ANNEXATION 
Posts notice on City web site 

Publishes notice in Telegram 
18th day before 1st public hearing 

19th day before 2nd public hearing 

Publish hearing notice on or after the 

20th day but before the 10th day 
before the date of the hearing 

§ 43.063(c)LGC 
 

03-28-18 
 

RESIDENTS’ LAST DAY TO FILE PROTEST 
10th day after publication of hearing notice 

Hold one hearing in area proposed for 
annexation if more than 10% of 

adults who are permanent residents 
of area file written protest within 10 

days after publication of notice. 
§ 43.063(b) LGC 

04-05-18 

Regular meeting 

COUNCIL HOLDS 1st PUBLIC HEARING 

Staff presents service plan 
28th day before 1st reading of ordinance 

 

Hold hearings on or after the 40th day 

but before the 20th day before the 
date of institution of annexation 

proceedings with 1st reading of 

ordinance. § 43.063(a) LGC. 

04-06-18 

Special meeting 

COUNCIL HOLDS 2nd PUBLIC HEARING 

Staff presents service plan 

27th day before 1st reading of ordinance 

Hold hearings on or after the 40th day 

but before the 20th day before the 

date of institution of annexation 
proceedings with 1st reading of 

ordinance. LGC § 43.063(a) 

05-03-18 
Regular Meeting 

COUNCIL CONSIDERS ANNEXATION 
ORDINANCE ON 1ST READING & HOLDS 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

First reading institutes proceedings 
for purposes of statutory time limits. 

05-17-18 

Regular Meeting 

COUNCIL CONSIDERS ANNEXATION 

ORDINANCE ON 2ND READING 
14th day from 1st reading 

Complete annexation proceedings 

within 90 days from 1st reading. 
§ 43.064(A) LGC. 

 

  



 

DATE ACTION TIME LIMIT/NOTES 

 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 

PREPARES AMENDED CITY MAP 
1. Amended City limit boundary 

2. Amended City ETJ boundary 

 

 
 CITY SECRETARY SENDS NOTICES TO: 

 

TEXAS SECRETARY OF STATE 

1. Copy of annexation ordinance 
2. Annexation map 

3. Statement that annexation is not involved 
in any litigation 

 
 

Secretary of State certifies to U. S. 

Department of Commerce that 
annexation was valid. 

[No citation found.] 

 VOTER REGISTRAR FOR BELL COUNTY 

1. Map in format compatible with mapping 
format used by registrar’s office. 

Not later than the 30th day after the 

date the change is adopted. 
§ 42.0615 Election Code 

 
The County Election Administrator is 

the Voter Registrar for Bell County. 

 STATE COMPTROLLER, SALES TAX 
DIVISION 

1. Annexation ordinance 
2. Map showing whole municipality  

§ 321.102 Tax Code 
Delivery of notice affects 

implementation of tax collection. 

 BELL COUNTY CLERK 

1. Certified copy of annexation ordinance 
including legal description of annexed area. 

Within 30 days after obtaining 

preclearance for the annexation 
under the Federal Voting Rights Act. 

§ 41.0015 LGC 

 BELL COUNTY CLERK 
1. Certified copy of annexation ordinance 

2. Copy of petition 

For annexation of Sparsely Occupied 
Area on Petition of Area Landowners 

§ 43.028(f) 

 PUC AND FRANCHISEES 
Utility, telecommunication, transportation, 

and EMS providers 

 

 TxDOT 
If state road is affected. 

 

 TEXAS COMMISSION ON FIRE 

PROTECTION 

[No citation found. No information 

found on Commission’s web site.] 

 U. S. BUREAU OF THE CENSUS [Or does SOS notify Bureau of the 
Census?] 

 
 CITY ATTORNEY SENDS INFORMATION 

TO U. S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS: 
1. Ordinance 

2. Map 
3. Service plan 

4. Copies of pertinent laws /regulations 

If annexation affects Corps’ property. 

Army Regulation 405-25 

 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

04/05/18 
Item #5(A-C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 

(A) March 15, 2018 Special and Regular Meetings
(B) March 16, 2018 Special Meetings
(C) March 22, 2018 Special Meetings

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve minutes as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
March 15, 2018 Special and Regular Meetings 
March 16, 2018 Special Meetings 
March 22, 2018 Special Meetings
Video  

http://temple.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=4&clip_id=859


TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL

MARCH 15, 2018

The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Special Meeting on 
Thursday, March 15, 2018 at 4:30 PM, at the Municipal Building, 2 North Main 
Street, in the 3rd Floor Conference Room.

PRESENT:
Councilmember Susan Long
Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Davis
Councilmember Michael Pilkington
Councilmember Judy Morales
Mayor Daniel A. Dunn

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the 
meeting posted for Thursday, March 15, 2018.

2. Receive an I-35 update from TXDOT.

John Habermann with TXDOT, provided a presentation to Council. He 
spoke concerning ongoing excavation, drill shaft construction and retaining 
wall construction regarding I35.

The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Regular Meeting on 
Thursday, March 15, 2018 at 5:00 PM in the Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 2nd Floor, 2 North Main Street.  

Present: 
Councilmember Susan Long 
Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Davis 
Councilmember Mike Pilkington 
Councilmember Judy Morales 
Mayor Daniel A. Dunn 

I. CALL TO ORDER

1. Invocation

Pastor Ryan Wood, Christian Life Church, voiced the invocation.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing, lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Page 1 of 12City Council Meeting

3/28/2018http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=859&doc_id=1bb7d181-...



Carol Hodge, 510 Park Place Lane, addressed the Council in regards to the 
LGBT books at the Temple Public Library.

Alan Lytle, 504B Paseo Del Plata, addressed Council in regards to Consent 
Agenda item 4(F) concerning the HVC equipment replacement project and 
item 4(I) concerning the Temple Children's Museum. He also congratulated 
Councilmember Tim Davis on winning his hard fought campaign.

Joe Goodson, 501A Paseo Del Plata, addressed the Council in regards to 
the LGBT display at the Temple Public Library and stated he would like to 
get the councilmembers emails so he could send them more information 
concerning homosexuality. 

Mayor Dunn informed him that he could obtain the Council's emails through 
the City's website.

III. ANNEXATION - PUBLIC HEARING

3. PUBLIC HEARING: Receive Municipal Service Plan and conduct 
a public hearing to receive comments on the possible 
annexation of 18.589 acres of land out of the Sarah Fitzhenry 
Survey, Abstract No.312, in the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the 
City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, located at 14220 State 
Highway 317.

Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner, provided a presentation to Council. 
She stated that Virgil Smith filed a petition on January 4, 2018, 
seeking voluntary annexation of 18.589 acres into the City of Temple. 
Voluntary annexation is governed by Section 43.028 of the Texas 
Local Government Code and applies only to the annexation of an 
area that is (1) less than one-half mile in width, (2) contiguous to the 
annexing municipality, and (3) vacant and without residents or on 
which fewer than three qualified voters reside.

On February 1, 2018, the City Council adopted a resolution directing 
City staff to create a Municipal Service Plan and public hearing 
schedule to consider the annexation of the subject property. The 
second public hearing is scheduled as a special meeting of the City 
Council, on Friday, March 16, 2018 at 8:30 am in the City Council 
Chambers.

The applicant requests the subject property be annexed into the City 
of Temple with a zoning of Agricultural District with a Conditional Use 
Permit to allow a Recreational Vehicle Park (Z-FY-18-10), subject to 
all requirements of Chapter 31 of the Code of Ordinance 
(Recreational Vehicle Parks), including an RV site plan approval.

The proposed schedule anticipates completion of annexation 

Page 2 of 12City Council Meeting

3/28/2018http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=859&doc_id=1bb7d181-...



proceedings through a Second Reading at City Council on May 3, 
2018.

Mayor Dunn declared the public hearing open with regards to agenda 
item 3, and asked if anyone wished to address this item.  

Alan Lytle, 504B Paseo Del Plata, addressed Council stating that he 
hopes the City has considered if it will be of value to have another RV 
park so close to the city.

There being no one else wishing to speak, Mayor Dunn declared the 
public hearing closed.

IV. CONSENT AGENDA

4. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda 
items and the appropriate resolutions and ordinances for each of 
the following:

(A) March 1, 2018 Special and Regular Meeting

(B) 2018-9070-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
purchase of E-citation software, printers and services from 
Advanced Public Safety, Inc. of Deerfield Beach, FL, in the 
amount of $85,915.56.

(C) 2018-9071-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
purchase of E-Citation hardware from GovConnection, Inc., of 
Merrimack, NH, in the amount of $74,917.12.

(D) 2018-9072-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
purchase of a vacuum excavator from Kinloch Equipment & 
Supply of Pasadena, in the amount of $46,100.

(E) 2018-9073-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying the 
execution of change order #1 to a construction contract with R.T. 
Schneider Construction Company, Ltd of Belton, in the net 
amount of $21,002.50 for adjustments to the Martin Luther King 
Jr. Festival Grounds construction project.

(F) 2018-9074-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
deductive change order to a construction contract with 
Lochridge-Priest, Inc. of Waco, in the amount of $90,927 for a 
modification to the warranty policy associated with a heating, 
ventilation and cooling equipment replacement project.

(G) 2018-9075-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
Master Interlocal Purchasing Agreement with the North Central 

Page 3 of 12City Council Meeting

3/28/2018http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=859&doc_id=1bb7d181-...



Texas Council of Governments allowing cooperative purchasing 
for actuarial consulting services.

(H) 2018-9076-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
lease renewal with American Medical Response Ambulance 
Service, Inc., for lease of space at Fire Station 8 located at 7268 
Airport Road, Temple.

(I) 2018-9077-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
lease agreement with the Temple Children’s Museum for lease of 
space in the Public Services Building.

(J) 2018-9078-R: Consider adopting a resolution amending a 
street use license (SUL-FY-15-02) to allow existing buildings and 
improvements both above and below ground, on Lot 3, Block 1, 
Golden Valley Subdivision with an encroachment of 10.9 +/- feet 
into the Georgetown Railroad Right-of-Way.

(K) 2018-9079-R: Consider adopting a resolution declaring the 
candidates for General and Special elections of May 5, 2018, 
Mayor and District 1 City Councilmember, as unopposed and 
elected to office; thereby canceling the election as ordered.

(L) 2018-9080-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
formal presentation of the assigned duty weapon to officers who 
have retired after 25 years of consecutive service with the 
Temple Police Department.

(M) 2018-9081-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing 
budget amendments for fiscal year 2017-2018.

Mayor Dunn stated that the council will be table 4(J).

Councilmember Mike Pilkington stated he is excited about the Temple 
Children's Museum and he believes it will be a good thing for the 
community.

Brynn Meyers, City Manager, made Council aware that the lease for 
the Temple Children's Museum is for a small space that is needed for 
storage. She also stated that the City Staff is excited to support them; 
but this is not a permanent location for them as it will only be used to 
store some items.

Mayor Dunn stated he serves on the Bell County Museum Board and 
they have a similar agreement with the museum as well for a small 
exhibit.

Page 4 of 12City Council Meeting

3/28/2018http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=859&doc_id=1bb7d181-...



Motion by Councilmember Judy Morales to approve consent agenda 
as presented, except item 4(J), seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Timothy 
Davis.

Motion passed unanimously.

(J) 2018-9078-R: Consider adopting a resolution amending a street use 
license (SUL-FY-15-02) to allow existing buildings and improvements both 
above and below ground, on Lot 3, Block 1, Golden Valley Subdivision with 
an encroachment of 10.9 +/- feet into the Georgetown Railroad Right-of-
Way.

Motion by Councilmember Susan Long to table item 4(J), seconded by Mayor 
Pro Tem Timothy Davis.

Motion passed unanimously.

V. REGULAR AGENDA

RESOLUTIONS

5. 2018-9082-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
construction contract with Bell Contractors, Inc. of Belton 
in the amount of $1,728,689.32 for the construction of the 
Northwest and Northeast Little Elm Creek Trunk Sewer 
project.

Don Bond, City Engineer provided a presentation to Council. He 
stated that construction of the Northwest & Northeast Little Elm 
Creek Trunk Sewer project will provide gravity wastewater 
service from the Hart Road to the Troy Lift Station (just south of 
the new Scott & White Logistics facility), from the northern 
Industrial Park to the new wastewater line that starts at Hart 
Road, and from Moores Mill Road to the new northern Industrial 
Park wastewater line. The project also includes the 
abandonment of the following three lift stations: Hart Road, 
PFG, and the Wendland Road/GST.

On February 4, 2016, Council authorized an agreement with 
Kasberg, Patrick, & Associates, LP in the amount of $189,220 
for design, bidding and construction phase services.

On February 1, 2018, eight bids ranging from a base bid of 
$1,688,569.02 to $2,824,669.35 were received for the project. In 
addition, add alternate pricing for video inspection of the 
completed wastewater lines was also requested. Staff 
recommends awarding a construction contract to the low bidder, 

Page 5 of 12City Council Meeting

3/28/2018http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=859&doc_id=1bb7d181-...



Bell Contractors, Inc, in the amount of their base bid of 
$1,688,569.02, plus their add alternate bid for video inspection 
in the amount of $40,120.30, making a total recommended 
contract value of $1,728,689.32. The Engineer’s opinion of 
probable construction cost was $2,300,000.

City Staff and the Engineer agree that Bell Contractors, Inc. is 
qualified to complete this project and recommends award of a 
construction contract for the base bid plus alternate totaling 
$1,728,689.32. Time allotted for construction is 300 calendar 
days.

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Davis to adopt resolution as 
presented, seconded by Councilmember Susan Long.

Councilmember Mike Pilkington abstained. The other 
Councilmembers voted aye.  The motion passed.

6. 2018-9083-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
construction contract with SSP Industries, LP, of Killeen for 
construction of the Shallowford Lift Station Improvements 
for a lump sum price of $6,100,000.

Don Bond, City Engineer provided a presentation to Council. He 
stated that the sewer overflows within the Bird Creek basin are 
problematic, and the City has a significant capital effort 
underway to address deteriorated sewer mains and interceptor 
pipe to reduce inflow, infiltration and overflows. In 2007, Council 
authorized a professional services agreement for engineering 
services related to the Bird Creek Interceptor, addressing 
significant issues within the basin and embarking upon a ten 
year plan to address system needs. The Shallowford Lift Station 
receives wastewater from the Bird Creek basin, and now 
requires an upgrade to adequately convey discharge from the 
collection system to the TBP.

On December 17, 2015, Council authorized an agreement with 
Kasberg, Patrick, & Associates, LP in the amount of $641,530 
for professional services to relocate and expand the Shallowford 
Lift Station.

On February 27, 2018, eight bids were received that ranged 
from $6,100,000 to $7,725,000. SSP submitted the low bid in 
the amount of $6,100,000. The opinion of probable construction 
cost was $7,900,000.

City Staff and the Engineer agree that SSP is qualified to 
complete this project and recommend award of a construction 

Page 6 of 12City Council Meeting

3/28/2018http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=859&doc_id=1bb7d181-...



contract for the low bid of $6,100,000. Time allotted to 
substantially complete the lift station is 390 calendar days, with 
an additional 60 days for demolition and cleanup, for a total of 
450 calendar days.

Motion by Councilmember Mike Pilkington to adopt resolution as 
presented, seconded by Councilmember Judy Morales.

Motion passed unanimously.

7. 2018-9084-R: Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to 
Government Code § 2206.053 finding that a 0.189-acre right-
of-way and a 0.030-acre permanent easement situated in 
the George Givens Survey, Abstract 345, located along 
Daniels Drive in Temple, Texas, are necessary for the 
construction of the Bird Creek Interceptor Project, Phase 4 
and for converting Daniels Drive from a private to public 
street and authorizing the use of eminent domain to 
condemn the property.

Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney provided a presentation 
to Council. She stated that in 2007, Council authorized a 
professional services agreement with Carter Burgess, Inc., now 
Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc., for engineering services 
related to the Bird Creek Interceptor. This project, targeted 
toward reducing sanitary sewer overflows, will rehabilitate 
existing deteriorated infrastructure through the heart of the City.

The design of Phase 4 includes a realignment of the interceptor 
beneath Daniels Drive, currently a private street in south 
Temple that runs parallel to Bird Creek, with a steep slope in 
between. Erosion from the creek requires significant repairs to 
Daniels Drive to ensure its integrity and protect the welfare of 
residents in the neighborhood. Therefore, to prevent the erosion 
of the slope between Daniels Drive and Bird Creek, and to 
realign the Bird Creek interceptor beneath the roadway, it was 
determined to be in the public interest to acquire the right-of-
way necessary to convert the private road into a public street.

The design requires the acquisition of right-of-way and 
easements for wastewater utilities and the new public street 
from five property owners. Right-of-way and easements have 
been acquired from four property owners.

However, the design still requires the acquisition of fee simple 
title, being 0.189-acre, and a permanent easement, being 
0.030-acre, to a portion of one property, both being legally 
described as situated in the GEORGE GIVENS SURVEY, 

Page 7 of 12City Council Meeting

3/28/2018http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=859&doc_id=1bb7d181-...



ABSTRACT 345, Bell County, Texas, embracing a portion of a 
called 0.574-acre tract conveyed to Susan Hansen in Document 
No. 2011-00044038, Official Public Records of Real Property, 
Bell County, Texas. A legal description of the real property 
needed is included with the Resolution.

An appraisal was performed on the property and the City made 
an offer to purchase, based on the appraisal, to the owner of 
record on January 6, 2017 via Stateside Right of Services, Inc., 
the right-of-way acquisition company assisting the City with this 
project. After negotiations were unsuccessful, a final offer letter 
was sent to the owner of record on November 8, 2017.

Staff is asking pursuant to Government Code § 2206.053, for 
the City Council to authorize the use of eminent domain to 
acquire the property described.

Motion by Councilmember Susan Long to adopt Resolution No. 
2018-9084-R and authorize the use of the power of eminent 
domain to acquire fee simple title to a 0.189-acre tract of land 
and to acquire a 0.030-acre permanent easement on a property 
located along Daniels Drive in Temple, Texas, more particularly 
described as being situated in the GEORGE GIVENS SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT 345, Bell County, Texas, embracing a portion of a 
called 0.574-acre tract of land conveyed to Susan Hansen in 
Document No. 2011-00044038, Official Public Records of Real 
Property, Bell County, Texas for the conversion of Daniels Drive 
from a private to public street and the construction of the Bird 
Creek Interceptor Project Phase 4, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Timothy Davis.

Motion passed unanimously.

ORDINANCES

8. 2018-4901: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider 
adopting an ordinance authorizing a renewal of the 
franchise with Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc., to provide 
non-emergency ambulance transfer services within the 
City.

Kayla Landeros, City Attorney provided a presentation to 
Council. She stated that Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc., is 
operating a non-emergency ambulance transfer service in the 
City under a current franchise agreement that was authorized by 
Council in 2013. That franchise agreement will expire on 
September 30, 2018. Acadian has asked for a renewal to the 
agreement so that it may continue operating within the City.

Page 8 of 12City Council Meeting

3/28/2018http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=859&doc_id=1bb7d181-...



Acadian has submitted the necessary paperwork requesting 
renewal of the franchise. The Staff recommends authorizing a 
five year renewal. Five years is the normal franchise term 
pursuant to Chapter 5 of the City’s Code of Ordinances. The 
commencement date for the renewal agreement would be 
October 1, 2018 and the expiration date would be September 
30, 2023.

Mayor Pro-Tem Davis asked if the renewal would have the 
same fees.

Kayla Landeros, City Attorney, stated that the fees would be the 
same  at 3 1/2% of the gross receipts. She also stated that the 
City has had a good experience with Acadian and the fees.

Brynn Meyers, City Manager, stated that as far as the fees, no 
changes are being proposed.

Mayor Pro-Tem Davis asked if Acadian has been abiding by the 
fee schedule.

Mrs. Myers stated that there is no reason to believe that they 
are not charging according to the ordinance.

Mrs. Landeros stated that franchises are by ordinance and that 
this would be the first hearing, with the second hearing being 
held on April 5th.

Mayor Pro-Tem Davis, stated that the City had updated the fees 
about two years ago but prior to that, there was a service that 
was not following the ordinance.

Mrs. Landeros stated that at that time it was different service, 
not Acadian.

Mayor Dunn declared the public hearing open with regards to 
agenda item 8, and asked if anyone wished to address this 
item.  There being none, Mayor Dunn declared the public 
hearing closed.

Motion by Councilmember Judy Morales to adopt ordinance as 
presented, with second and final reading on April 5, 
2018, seconded by Councilmember Mike Pilkington.

Motion passed unanimously.

9.

Page 9 of 12City Council Meeting

3/28/2018http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=859&doc_id=1bb7d181-...



2018-4902: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider 
adopting an ordinance authorizing the closure of a section 
of Avenue C, between Avenue B and Main Street, and the 
closure of a section of 1st Street south of Avenue B.

Kayla Landeros, City Attorney provided a presentation to 
Council. She stated that the City of Temple Parks and 
Recreation Department has submitted a request to close a 
section of Avenue C, between Avenue B and Main Street, and a 
section of 1st Street, south of Avenue B. The request is for the 
planned construction of Santa Fe Market Trail. Pursuant to 
Texas Transportation Code, Section 311.007, a home-rule 
municipality may vacate, abandon, or close a street or alley. 
Since this is a closure, not an abandonment, and does not 
require private acquisition of the street, no conveyance is 
required and the land area encompassing the closed streets will 
be retained by the City of Temple and will be accessible to 
pedestrians.

Mayor Dunn declared the public hearing open with regards to 
agenda item 9, and asked if anyone wished to address this 
item.  There being none, Mayor Dunn declared the public 
hearing closed.

Motion by Councilmember Susan Long to adopt ordinance as 
presented, with second and final reading on April 5, 
2018, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Davis.

Motion passed unanimously.

10. 2018-4903: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-18-
11: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing a rezoning 
from Agricultural district to General Retail district on Lots 1 
& 2, Block 5 of South Pointe Phase I, 2.21 +/- acres, located 
on the north side of Loop 363, approximately 172 feet south 
east of its intersection with Dogwood Lane, addressed as 
3137 & 3131 Alton Road.

Mark Baker, Senior Planner, provided a presentation to Council. 
He stated that staff recommends approval for a rezoning from 
AG to GR districts for the following reasons:(1)the proposed GR 
zoning is compatible with surrounding zoning, existing and 
anticipated uses as well as future growth trends in the area; (2)
the proposal is in compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 
(3) public facilities are available to serve the subject property.

Mr. Baker also stated that at their February 20, 2018 meeting, 
the Planning & Zoning Commission voted seven to zero to 

Page 10 of 12City Council Meeting

3/28/2018http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=859&doc_id=1bb7d181-...



recommend approval of the proposed rezoning per staff’s 
recommendation.

The applicant, Short Term Lending Group Inc. requests 
rezoning of 2.21 +/- acres from Agricultural zoning district to 
General Retail zoning district. The subject property is described 
as Lots 1 and 2, Block 5 of the recently platted South Pointe, 
Phase I subdivision, approved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission on September 18, 2017.

TxDOT responded during the subdivision plat process and 
concurred with the lot layout. At this time, no proposed 
development of the site has been proposed. While TxDOT is 
aware of the rezoning, they have not provided input relative to 
driveway access. Discussions may be on-going regarding the 
need for future access directly to Loop 363.

While it is anticipated for the property to be developed with non-
residential uses, there are a number of residential and non-
residential uses that are permitted by right or with a conditional 
use permit. A comparison between the existing and proposed 
zoning districts, which include but are not limited to.

The subject property is split by two Future Land Use Map 
designations, the Auto-Urban Commercial designation. The 
Auto-Urban designation, which is established for a majority of 
the areas identified for commercial use. The Auto-Urban 
designation supports the proposed GR zoning and therefore the 
requested GR zoning is consistent with the Auto-Urban 
designation. 

The subject property takes access from Loop 363, an 
expressway and Alton Road, a local street. To date, since the 
final plat has been approved and recorded, no new dedication 
issues have been identified. While TxDOT interests are on-
going, the state was notified of the proposed rezoning to general 
retail. No Transportation Capital Improvement Program 
improvements scheduled through FY 2024 have been identified.

Sewer is available through extension of an 8-inch and a 12-inch 
sewer line at several places in Case Road along the north and 
north east sides of the adjacent South Pointe development. 
Sewer is also available through extension of an 8-inch sewer 
line on the west side of South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive. 
Sewer is expected to be available to the subject property as 
South Pointe continues to develop. Water is available through 
an 8-inch waterline in the existing Alton Road alignment as well 
as along the northern property line of the subject property (Lot 
#1).

Page 11 of 12City Council Meeting

3/28/2018http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=859&doc_id=1bb7d181-...



No proposed trails are shown on the Trails Master Plan and no 
sidewalks are required. It should be noted however that the 
applicant proposes a four foot sidewalk along the west side of 
Alton Road, which will be developed as an oversized local 
street, where it meets Loop 363.

Thirteen notices, represented by seven separate property 
owners, were sent to property owners within 200-feet of the 
subject property containing notice of the public hearing as 
required by State law and City Ordinance. Four notices, one of 
which represents eight separate properties, have been received 
in agreement.

Mayor Dunn declared the public hearing open with regards to 
agenda item 10, and asked if anyone wished to address this 
item.  There being none, Mayor Dunn declared the public 
hearing closed.

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Davis to adopt ordinance as 
presented, with second and final reading on April 5, 
2018, seconded by Councilmember Susan Long.

Motion passed unanimously.

________________________ 
Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor 

ATTEST:

____________________ 
Lacy Borgeson 
City Secretary 

Page 12 of 12City Council Meeting

3/28/2018http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=859&doc_id=1bb7d181-...



TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL

MARCH 16, 2018

The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Regular Meeting on 
Friday, March 16, 2018 at 5:00 PM in the Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 
2nd Floor, 2 North Main Street.  

Present: 
Councilmember Susan Long 
Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Davis 
Councilmember Mike Pilkington 
Councilmember Judy Morales 
Mayor Daniel A. Dunn 

I. CALL TO ORDER

1. Invocation

Councilmember Judy Morales voiced the invocation.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

Shelly Fowler, Records Technician lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

II. ANNEXATION - PUBLIC HEARING

3. PUBLIC HEARING: Receive Municipal Service Plan and conduct 
a public hearing to receive comments on the possible 
annexation of 18.589 acres of land out of the Sarah Fitzhenry 
Survey, Abstract No.312, in the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the 
City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, located at 14220 State 
Highway 317.

Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner, provided a presentation to Council. 
She stated that Virgil Smith filed a petition on January 4, 2018, 
seeking voluntary annexation of 18.589 acres into the City of Temple. 
Voluntary annexation is governed by Section 43.028 of the Texas 
Local Government Code and applies only to the annexation of an 
area that is: (1) less than one-half mile in width, (2) contiguous to the 
annexing municipality, and (3)vacant and without residents or on 
which fewer than three qualified voters reside.

On February 1, 2018, the City Council adopted a resolution directing 
City staff to create a Municipal Service Plan and public hearing 
schedule to consider the annexation of the subject property. The first 
public hearing was held at the City Council meeting, on Thursday, 

Page 1 of 2Special Called Meeting

3/28/2018http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=860&doc_id=c382fe6d-...



March 15, 2018 at 5:00 pm in the City Council Chambers.

The applicant requests the subject property be annexed into the City 
of Temple with a zoning of Agricultural District with a Conditional Use 
Permit to allow a Recreational Vehicle Park (Z-FY-18-10), subject to 
all requirements of Chapter 31 of the Code of Ordinance 
(Recreational Vehicle Parks), including an RV site plan approval.

The proposed schedule anticipates completion of annexation 
proceedings through a Second Reading at City Council on May 3, 
2018.

Councilmember Susan Long had concerns regarding water service 
for 72 extended RV sites. 

Brian Chandler, Director of Planning, stated that right now they are in 
the Municipal Service Plan process which does not go into those 
details but the CUP will definitely have that level of detail listed in it. 
He also informed Councilmember Long that David Mojica, the 
engineer on the project was present to answer any questions she 
may have. 

Brynn Meyers, City Manager, stated that this property is outside 
of the city's water service area and is serviced by Pendleton Water 
Supply Company. She also stated that the City through the DRC 
process will coordinate with other utility providers as necessary.

Mayor Dunn declared the public hearing open with regards to agenda 
item 3, and asked if anyone wished to address this item.  There being 
none, Mayor Dunn declared the public hearing closed.

________________________ 
Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor 

ATTEST:

____________________ 
Lacy Borgeson 
City Secretary 

Page 2 of 2Special Called Meeting

3/28/2018http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=860&doc_id=c382fe6d-...



1 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL  
  

MARCH 22, 2018  
  

The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Special Called Meeting on Thursday, 
March 22, 2018 at 9:00 AM at the The Cellar at Pignetti’s, 14 South 2nd Street.   
 
Present:  
Councilmember Susan Long  
Mayor Pro Tem Timothy Davis  
Councilmember Mike Pilkington  
Councilmember Judy Morales  
Mayor Daniel A. Dunn  
 

1. Discuss the City’s FY 2019 budget process and calendar, and various strategic and budget 
related policy issues, including but not limited to: 

Brynn Myers, City Manager welcomed the Council to their FY19 budget retreat. She began by offering 
an overview of the FY18 budget, and reminding the Council that the City’s tax rate has been consistently 
flat; while the taxable value has increased, which is good for the City’s growth. She also noted that we 
fund our operational costs with a lower tax rate than we had 10 years ago. 
 
Ms. Myers reminded the Council to be mindful of budgetary and project priorities as they continue the 
budget process for FY19; and while the goal is not to raise taxes, she asked them to make note of 
anything they believe a rate adjustment is necessary to fund. Ms. Myers discussed the rising cost of 
services. Again, the Council was asked to consider the growth of the City; the cost to provide services 
to new areas; as well as the new and/or enhanced services to existing areas of the city. The City saw 
a 19% growth rate in an eight-year period.   
 

a. The City’s financials to include a financial outlook for fiscal year 2019; 
• Traci Barnard, Director of finance provided a financial overview. She began by reminding 

Council that the City of Temple is unique from our peer cities. Sales tax is greater than 
30% of our major revenue source. We have a diverse sales taxes base 50/50, and don’t 
depend on one source.   
 
For FY19, the Transportation Capital Improvement Plan of $34 million will be the largest 
issued. This will not require a tax rate increase, as the model is built around that, and the 
can support the increase. 
 
Ms. Barnard pointed out a few areas of focus for FY19 to include, 2/3 of the budget is 
personnel; health care costs; parks bond projects; and the ability to improve and maintain 
current facilities and vehicles. 
 
She also reviewed the Water/Wastewater Capital Improvement Plan. Over the past 10 
years, the city has invested $142 million in improving the infrastructure. The current 
Master Plan takes the city through 2070; of which there will be elevated demands.  
Currently the Master Plan is being reviewed by KPA, and is anticipated to be completed 



2 

in FY18.  Ms. Barnard noted that our current rate supports both the current Master Plan 
and residential water/wastewater rates. 
 

At approximately 10:00 am the Council took a short recess. Mayor Dunn left the meeting at this time. 
 

At approximately 10:16 am, Mayor Pro Tem Davis reconvened the meeting of the Council. 
 

b. The City’s strategic and master planning initiatives and priorities; 
• Brynn Meyers, City Manager provided a presentation to Council. She stated she believed 

it is time to review and update several of the City’s planning documents to include the 
Strategic Plan - last updated in 2008; the Comprehensive Plan – updated in 2008; the 
Parks Master Plan – updated 2014; the Water/Sewer Master Plan; Drainage Plan; 
Pavement Assessment Plan; the Downtown Master Plan – updated in 2013; and to create 
a Transportation Master Plan.  These documents are used to help guide the City’s efforts 
every step of the ways as we continue to grow. 
 

c. The current and future needs of the Public Works Department; 
• Nicole Torralva, Director of Public Works, provided a presentation to Council. She 

focused on utilities, solid waste, and transportation concerns for FY19.  Water collection 
and distribution is a high priority every year. The City has older infrastructure that needs 
to be replaced.  There are critical components at the treatment facilities that needs to be 
addressed due to age. 
 
Solid waste will have some major equipment replacement needs, as well as a space 
assessment to address the recycling program efforts. 
 
Ms. Torralva also discussed the Transportation/Equipment needs. The mowing and 
maintenance of right-of-ways, and drainage channels has increased. Also mentioned was 
the concrete/construction crews. This crew would maintain our sidewalks and different 
concrete needs. 
 

d. The current and future needs of the Police Department; 
• Police Chief Floyd Mitchell provided a presentation to Council. He gave a brief summary 

of some of the 2019 FY Budget priorities for the police department to include a Crime 
Scene Unit, staffing, anticipated fleet/vehicle replacement, equipment/training, and a 
replacement of a command post mobile operations unit. He also updated the council on 
the 2018 Homicide Investigations. 
 

At approximately 12:00 pm the Council took a short recess. At approximately 12:28 pm, Mayor Pro 
Tem Davis reconvened the meeting of the Council. 

 
e. The current and future needs of the Fire Department; 

• Fire Chief Mitch Randles provided a presentation to Council. He gave a brief summary of 
some of the 2019 FY Budget priorities for the fire department to include a fire fleet single 
axle ladder truck, fire fleet rescue truck, station alerting systems, swift water rescue boat, 
training and succession planning. He also informed Council about projects that are 



3 

underway such as the training of personnel, ISO improvements, Texas best practices 
recognition, and improvement/replacement of tools and equipment. 
 

f. The current and future needs of the Parks and Recreation Department; and 
• Kevin Beavers, Director of Parks and Recreation, provided a presentation to the Council. 

He discussed the greens and membership dues/fees for Sammons Golf Course. The 
greens will be worked on from May 2018 – October 2018, at which time membership 
dues/fees will be suspended. During this time temporary greens will be available, as part 
of the project. It is anticipated that the course will reopen for play in early to mid-
October/November 2018.  
 
Also mentioned was the need to relocate the north pump station.  It needs to be closer to 
the lake. 
 
Mr. Beavers also discussed the need for an engineer study for the tennis courts at the 
Summit; and determine if this is the best location for courts. 
 

g. The City’s Neighborhood Services program. 
• Ms. Myers suggested that the Council hear item 1(G) regarding the Neighborhood 

Services Programs, at their next workshop on April 5, 2018 due to time. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Davis asked that the Council offer feedback to staff as the FY19 Budget process 
continues.  He then adjourned the meeting at approximately 1:29 pm. 

 

              ________________________  
          Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor   
  

ATTEST: 

 

____________________  
Lacy Borgeson  
City Secretary  
     

                                           



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(D) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Buford Craig, Transform Temple Director 
Kirk Scopac, Fleet Services Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of a compact street 
sweeper from Pollock Paper Distributors of Grand Prairie in the amount of $30,571.95. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Transform Temple performs regular and routine cleaning of streets and sidewalks 
in the main Downtown District. With the growth of business in the downtown area, the purchase of a 
small street sweeper/cleaner will help staff improve cleanliness and will also allow cleaning of some 
areas (sidewalks and tight corners) not currently accessible by the larger street sweepers.  
 
Staff is recommending the purchase of a Tennant Company ‘Green Machine’ 424S2D, a diesel-
powered high-speed compact air sweeper, from Pollock Paper Distributors utilizing BuyBoard contract 
#490-15. Contracts awarded through BuyBoard have been competitively procured and meet the 
statutory procurement requirements for Texas municipalities.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the purchase of this compact street sweeper from Pollock Paper 
Distributors in the amount of $30,571.95 is available in account 110-3795-524-6222, project # 101835, 
as follows: 
 

Project Budget  $          30,572  
Encumbered/Committed to Date                       -    

Pollock Paper Distributors             (30,572) 
Remaining Project Funds Available  $                   -    

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9085-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A COMPACT STREET 
SWEEPER IN THE AMOUNT OF $30,571.95, FROM POLLOCK PAPER 
DISTRIBUTORS OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
  
 Whereas, Transform Temple performs regular and routine cleaning of streets and sidewalks 
in the main Downtown District and with the growth of business in the downtown area, the purchase 
of a small street sweeper/cleaner will allow for improved cleanliness and the cleaning of areas 
(sidewalks and tight corners) not currently accessible by the larger street sweeper;  
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of a Tennant Company ‘Green 
Machine’ 424S2D, a diesel-powered high-speed compact air sweeper, in the amount of $30,571.95, 
from Pollock Paper Distributors of Grand Prairie, Texas utilizing BuyBoard Contract No. 490-15; 
 
 Whereas, contracts awarded through BuyBoard have been competitively procured and meet 
the statutory procurement requirements for Texas municipalities;   
 

Whereas, funds are available for this purchase in Account No. 110-3795-524-6222, Project 
No. 101835; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of a Tennant Company ‘Green Machine’ 
424S2D, a diesel-powered high-speed compact air sweeper, in the amount of $30,571.95, from 
Pollock Paper Distributors of Grand Prairie, Texas utilizing BuyBoard Contract No. 490-15. 
 

Part 3: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this purchase. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution 

was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose 
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act.  



2 
 

 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(E)  
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva P.E., Public Works Director 
Kenny Henderson, Director of Transportation 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 80 traffic signal 
Ethernet switches in the amount of $72,825.22 from Solid IT Networks, Inc. of Houston. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The purchase of 80 traffic signal Ethernet switches is a component of a traffic signal 
package that will allow the Traffic Signal Department to remotely receive information from traffic signal 
controllers throughout the City. The Ethernet switches are needed in order for Traffic Signal Technicians 
to receive troubleshooting information from multiple signals simultaneously back to a central server.    
 
Staff is recommending purchase of the 80 Ethernet switches from Solid IT Networks, Inc. utilizing a 
Department of Information Resources (DIR) cooperative contract. Contracts awarded through DIR have 
been competitively procured and comply with the statutory procurement guidelines from Texas 
municipalities.   
 
Staff will be coming back to Council on April 19, 2018, with recommendations for additional purchases 
needed to complete the build-out of the upgraded traffic control system.   
     
FISCAL IMPACT: A budget adjustment is being presented to Council for approval to appropriate TCIP 
contingency funds to upgrade the City’s traffic control system. Funding for the purchase of 80 traffic 
signal Ethernet switches from Solid IT Networks, Inc. in the amount of $72,825.22 will be available in 
account 365-2800-532-6810, project 101833, as follows: 

Project Budget  $                   -    
Budget Adjustment            225,000  

Encumbered/Committed to Date                       -    
Solid IT Networks, Inc.             (72,825) 

Remaining Project Funds Available  $        152,175  
 
As stated above, staff will be coming back to Council on April 19, 2018, with recommendations for 
additional purchases needed to complete the build-out of the upgraded traffic control system.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution  



Revised form - 10/27/06

FY 2018
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER PROJECT # DECREASE

365-2800-532-68-10 101833
365-3400-531-65-32 225,000      

TOTAL…………………………………………………………………………………… 225,000$    

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? X Yes No

DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? X Yes No

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
DisapprovedCity Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance

Date

Date

Date

INCREASE

225,000$    
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

MMU - Signal Upgrades
Contingency Fund Balance

225,000$    

To fund a project within the scope of the Transportation Capital Improvement Program that will upgrade the Malfunction Management 
Unit equipment and software at all signals City wide.

4/5/2018

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased 
account are available.



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9086-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF 80 TRAFFIC SIGNAL 
ETHERNET SWITCHES IN THE AMOUNT OF $72,825.22, FROM SOLID IT 
NETWORKS, INC. OF HOUSTON, TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 
 Whereas, Ethernet switches are a component of a traffic signal package that allows 
the Traffic Signal Department to remotely receive information from traffic signal controllers 
throughout the City; 
 

Whereas, the Ethernet switches are needed in order for Traffic Signal technicians to 
receive troubleshooting information from multiple signals simultaneously back to a central 
server;    
 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of 80 Ethernet switches 
from Solid IT Networks, Inc. of Houston, Texas utilizing a Department of Information 
Resources (DIR) Cooperative Contract - contracts awarded through DIR have been 
competitively procured and comply with the statutory procurement guidelines from Texas 
municipalities;  
 

Whereas, funds are available for this purchase, but an amendment to the fiscal year 
2018 budget needs to be approved to appropriate TCIP contingency funds to Account No. 
365-2800-532-6810, Project No. 101833; 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 

interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval 
as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this 
purchase. 

 
Part 3: The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2018 budget, 

substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A.’ 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 

 
         THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
               

        DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
  
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson       Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(F) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 3 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Alan DeLoera, Information Technology Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing annual contract renewal with SHI 
Government Solutions of Austin, in the amount of $169,808.12, for Microsoft Software Enterprise 
licensing.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Authorization of this software agreement will provide for the continued use of 
Microsoft office applications from May 1, 2017 through April 30, 2018.   
 
The City currently uses Microsoft for all of our office applications, as well as database servers, 
throughout the City. The primary Microsoft applications currently used include the following:  Microsoft 
Word, PowerPoint, Excel, Sharepoint, Outlook, and Publisher, as well as Enterprise solutions for 
servers and operating systems.   
 
After reviewing some of the volume licensing programs that were presented, we decided to request a 
Microsoft Enterprise Agreement that covers Microsoft Office Professional and the Microsoft Core Client 
Access License (CAL) Suite—including the Windows Server® 2012 operating system, Microsoft 
Exchange Server, Microsoft Systems Management Server, and Microsoft Office SharePoint® Portal 
Server—for all of the City computers. The agreement also covers a wide variety of additional 
technologies including Windows Server, Exchange Server, Internet Security and Acceleration Server, 
SQL Server™, and Microsoft Operations Manager licenses for 25 servers.  
 
We would like to continue with Office 365 so that all employees have the ability to work across multiple 
devices, from anywhere, and have a consistent, clean, and fast experience. It will enable staff to 
establish settings that roam with the employee so files are up to date and ready to pick up right where 
the employee left the file, no matter what device is being used. This also will give us new access for 
online collaboration and meeting tools instead of having to go through a hosted service such as Webex 
or Go-To-Meeting.  In addition, Office 365 will provide for simplified legal compliance by using in-place 
legal holds which will be hosted by Microsoft, allowing our staff more time to concentrate on security 
compliance.  
 
 
 

 



04/05/18 
Item #5(F) 

Consent Agenda 
                 Page 2 of 3 
 
In summary, Office 365 will provide the following: 

Advanced email  

Use archiving and legal hold capabilities, plus unlimited storage, for 
compliance needs. And use data loss prevention (DLP) policies and 
policy tips that educate your users for additional compliance enforcement 
in email.  
 

Document and 
email access 
control  

Rights Management Services enables you to restrict access to 
documents and email to specific people and to prevent anyone else from 
viewing or editing them, even if they are sent outside the organization.  
 

Online 
conferencing  

Host online meetings with audio and video using one-click screen sharing 
and HD video conferencing.  
 

Instant messaging 
and Skype 
connectivity 

Connect with other Lync users via instant message, voice calls, and video 
calls, and let people know your availability with your online status. Share 
presence, IM, and audio calling with Skype users. 
 

File storage and 
sharing  

OneDrive for Business gives each user 25 GB of personal cloud storage 
that can be accessed from anywhere and that syncs with their PC for 
offline access. Easily share documents with others inside and outside the 
organization and control who can see and edit each file.  
 

Team sites 

Enable easy access and sharing of documents with 10 GB of baseline 
storage plus 500 MB of storage per user. Share insights through 
interactive reports with Excel Services and Visio Services, and view them 
on mobile device browsers that support HTML5. 
 

Site mailboxes 

Make it easier for teams to collaborate. Store and share email and 
documents in project-specific folders, so everyone on the team can find 
the information they need fast. 
 

Yammer Enterprise 

Keep ideas and work moving with enterprise social networking that makes 
collaborating with the right people easy and that comes with advanced 
support, security, administration, and integrations. 
 

Office Online 

Create and edit Word, OneNote, PowerPoint, and Excel documents from 
a browser.  
 

Mobility 

Sync email, calendar, and contacts; access SharePoint sites; view and 
edit Office documents with Office Online using a browser on Windows 
Phone, iOS, and Android devices.  
 

 
 

http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102996964.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102996964.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102996964.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102996964.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102996964.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102997013.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102997013.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102997013.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102997013.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/XT104193899.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX100996074.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX010246245.aspx


04/05/18 
Item #5(F) 

Consent Agenda 
  Page 3 of 3 

 
This is the ninth year of the City’s Enterprise Agreement and through the Enterprise Agreement we are 
able to more effectively standardize software across all desktops and take advantage of many of the 
included software assurance benefits, including New Version Rights, Desktop Deployment Planning 
Services, Training Vouchers, Microsoft eLearning, Home Use Program, 24x7 Problem Resolution 
Support, a TechNet Plus subscription, and Extended Hotfix’s. The pricing has increased by $40,000 
based on the fact that our original license agreement was based on 500 users, but we now have close 
to 750 users citywide. 
 
Prior to 2010, it was the Information Technology Department’s practice of purchasing new licenses 
every three to four years through a select agreement program because we felt the Enterprise 
Agreement was more expensive over the three to four year period, but the pricing now has reversed in 
the sense that it is less costly to go through a yearly Enterprise Agreement. We also felt that the cycle 
for software upgrades by Microsoft was about every three to four years but that has changed in the 
past four years in that software upgrades are on a more frequent basis. This also helps solve a problem 
in that we would be on the same Enterprise Agreement with many other State and local agencies that 
currently upgrade their software on a more frequent basis. 
 
SHI Government Solutions has been awarded a Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) 
contract #DIR-SDD-2503, which this purchase is recommended for awarded under.  Contracts awarded 
by DIR have been competitively procured and meet the statutory procurement requirements for Texas 
municipalities.     
 
FISCAL IMPACT: A budget amendment is being presented to Council for approval to appropriate 
$169,808.12 of Technology Funds to account 351-1900-519-2515, for the purchase of Microsoft 
Enterprise Agreement License and software with SHI Government Solutions. This is the ninth year of 
our Enterprise Agreement. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Budget Amendment 
Resolution 

  



Revised form - 10/27/06

FY 2018
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER
PROJECT 

# DECREASE
351-1900-519-25-15
351-0000-490-25-82
110-0000-351-09-43 169,809      
110-9100-591-81-51

TOTAL………………………………………………………………………………… 169,809$    

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? X Yes No
DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? X Yes No

X Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

2018 Microsoft Annual EA Agreement 

4/5/2018

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased 
account are available.

509,427$    

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

Desg Capital Unallocated Tech Funds

INCREASE

Transfer In- Desg Capital Proj Fund 169,809$    
Dues & Subscriptions 169,809$    

169,809      Transfer Out- Desg Captial Proj Funds

Do Not Post

Date

3/27/2018
Date

Date

City Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9087-R 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN ANNUAL CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH SHI 
GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS, INC. OF AUSTIN, TEXAS IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $169,808.12, FOR MICROSOFT SOFTWARE ENTERPRISE LICENSING; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, the City currently uses Microsoft for all office applications, as well as database 
servers throughout the City and the primary Microsoft applications currently used include 
Microsoft Word, PowerPoint, Excel, Sharepoint, Outlook, and Publisher, as well as Enterprise 
solutions for servers and operating systems; 

 
Whereas, after reviewing the volume of licensing programs presented, Staff decided to 

request a Microsoft Enterprise Agreement that covers Microsoft Office Professional and the 
Microsoft Core Client Access License Suite, including the Windows Server® 2012 operating 
system, Microsoft Exchange Server, Microsoft Systems Management Server, and Microsoft Office 
SharePoint® Portal Server, for all of the City computers; 

 
Whereas, the agreement will also cover a wide variety of additional technologies including 

Windows Server, Exchange Server, Internet Security and Acceleration Server, SQL Server™, and 
Microsoft Operations Manager licenses for 25 servers;  

 
Whereas, Staff wishes to continue with Office 365 so that all employees have the ability to 

work across multiple devices, from anywhere, and have a consistent, clean, and fast experience; 
 
Whereas, this agreement will enable Staff to establish settings that roam with the employee 

so files are up to date and ready to pick up right where the employee left the file, no matter what 
device is being used – this agreement will also give the City new access for online collaboration 
and meeting tools instead of having to go through a hosted service such as Webex or Go-To-
Meeting; 

 
Whereas, Office 365 will also provide for simplified legal compliance by using in-place 

legal holds which will be hosted by Microsoft, allowing our staff more time to concentrate on 
security compliance; 

 
Whereas, this will be the ninth year of the City’s Enterprise Agreement and through the 

Enterprise Agreement, the City is able to more effectively standardize software across all 
desktops and take advantage of many of the included software assurance benefits, including New 
Version Rights, Desktop Deployment Planning Services, Training Vouchers, Microsoft 
eLearning, Home Use Program, 24x7 Problem Resolution Support, a TechNet Plus subscription, 
and Extended Hotfix’s; 

 
Whereas, the pricing has increased by $40,000 based on the fact that our original license 

agreement was based on 500 users, but we now have close to 750 users citywide; 
 

 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
Whereas, SHI Government Solutions has been awarded Texas Department of Information 

Resources (DIR) Contract No. DIR-SDD-2503- contracts awarded by DIR have been 
competitively procured and meet the statutory procurement requirements for Texas 
municipalities; 

 
Whereas, funds are available for this purchase, but an amendment to the fiscal year 2018 

budget needs to be approved to transfer the funds to Account No. 351-1900-519-2515; and 
  

 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute an annual contract renewal with SHI Government 
Solutions of Austin, Texas in the amount of $169,808.12, for Microsoft Software Enterprise 
licensing.    
 
 Part 3: The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2018 budget, 
substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A.’ 
 
 Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(G) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1  
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of right of way 
necessary for the expansion of Kegley Road Phase IV and authorizing closing costs associated with 
the purchase in an estimated amount of $7,000. 
 
Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – The City 
Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 
property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a detrimental effect on 
negotiations with a third party. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City is currently in the design phase for the proposed expansion of Kegley Road. 
The design requires the acquisition of eight rights-of-way, four drainage easements, and five temporary 
construction easements from eight property owners. Appraisals have been performed and offers have 
been made to the all the owners. The City has acquired right of way from one of the property owners 
and continues to negotiate with the remaining owners. Staff hopes to reach agreements in the coming 
weeks for the remaining property needs.     
 
The City has reached an agreement with one property owner for right of way. At this time, Staff is asking 
for authorization to purchase the right of way and pay closing costs in an estimated amount of $7,000. 
 
The address and Bell County Appraisal District ID Numbers of the property is Kegley Road, Temple, 
Texas—Bell CAD ID #90459. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is available for the purchase of right of way necessary for the expansion of 
Kegley Road Phase IV in an estimated amount of $7,000 in account 365-3400-531-6888, project 
101607. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution 
  



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9089-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY 
NECESSARY FOR THE EXPANSION OF KEGLEY ROAD, PHASE IV; 
AUTHORIZING CLOSING COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE PURCHASE, 
IN AN ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $7,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City is currently in the bid phase for the proposed upgrades to Kegley Road 
- the design requires the acquisition of eight rights-of-way, four drainage easements, and five 
temporary construction easements from eight property owners; 
 

Whereas, appraisals have been performed and offers have been made to all of the owners 
-  the City has acquired right-of-way from one of the property owners and continues to negotiate 
with the remaining owners in hopes to reach agreements for the remaining property needs in the 
coming weeks; 

 
Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of right-of-way necessary 

for the expansion of Kegley Road, Phase IV, as well as pay closing costs associated with the 
purchase, in a total estimated amount of $7,000; 
 

Whereas, the Bell County Appraisal District ID Number of this property is 90459; 
 
 Whereas, funding is available in Account No. 365-3400-531-6888, Project No. 101607; 
and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of right-of-way necessary for the 
expansion of Kegley Road, Phase IV, as well as pay closing costs associated with the purchase, 
in an estimated amount of $7,000. 
 
 Part 3: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for the purchase. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 



2 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(H) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:    
 
Floyd Mitchell, Chief of Police 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 
contract between the City of Temple and the Department of the Army, Corps of Engineers to reimburse 
the city for salary and benefit expenses and vehicle cost related to police patrols at Temple Lake Park 
from May 5, 2018 through September 4, 2018. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City of Temple and the US Army Corps of Engineers have identified a need for 
increased law enforcement services for Temple Lake Park on Lake Belton during the late spring and 
summer months. This contract will provide for the city to be reimbursed for up to 516 hours of additional 
police patrols within the park and vehicle cost.  We have provided this service for the last 5 years that 
resulted in positive outcomes for both the City of Temple and the Corps of Engineers. 
 
TERM OF AGREEMENT: This contract shall commence on May 5, 2018 and end on September 4, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Per the contract, the Department of the Army, Corps of Engineers will reimburse 
approximately $31,182 in police officer salaries and benefits, and $10,320 in vehicle costs based on 
516 hours of additional police patrols at Temple Lake Park. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:    
Resolution 
  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9089-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF THE 
ARMY, CORPS OF ENGINEERS, TO REIMBURSE THE CITY FOR 
SALARY, BENEFIT EXPENSES, AND VEHICLE COSTS RELATED TO 
POLICE PATROLS AT TEMPLE LAKE PARK FROM MAY 5, 2018 
THROUGH SEPTEMBER 4, 2018; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, the City of Temple and the Department of the Army, Corps of Engineers have 

identified the need for increased law enforcement services at Temple Lake Park on Lake Belton 
during the late spring and summer months; 

 
 Whereas, Temple Police have provided this service for the past 5 years and it has 
resulted in positive outcomes for both the City of Temple and the Corps of Engineers – the new 
contract will begin on May 5, 2018 and end on September 4, 2018; 

 
Whereas, the Army Corps of Engineers will reimburse the City for up to 516 hours of 

additional police patrols within Temple Lake Park as well as vehicle costs; 
 
Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a contract with the Department of the 

Army, Corps of Engineers, to reimburse the City for salary and benefit expenses, and vehicle 
costs related to patrols at Temple Lake Park from May 5, 2018 through September 4, 2018;  

 
 Whereas, per the contract with the Department of the Army, the Corps of Engineers will 
reimburse approximately $31,182 in police officer salaries and benefits, and $10,320 in vehicle 
costs based on 516 hours of additional police patrols at Temple Lake Park; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to enter into a contract with the Department of the Army, Corps of 
Engineers for reimbursement to the City for salary, benefit expenses and vehicle costs related to 
police patrols at Temple Lake Park from May 5, 2018 through September 4, 2018. 

 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(I) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1  
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Justin Brantley, Assistant Director of Purchasing & Facility Services 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing & Facility Services 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 
Montgomery Construction of Hewitt in the amount of $74,318.55 for replacement of the roof at the 
Social Security Administration Building. 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The Social Security Administration Building, a City-owned facility located at 511 
North Main Street, had its roof damaged by hail as a result of a hail storm in May 2013.  Staff engaged 
Neal Architectural Group to assist in the development of plans and specifications for the roof 
replacement.   
 
Staff is recommending award of a construction contract with Montgomery Construction to install a new 
TPO roof system on the building.  Montgomery Construction has been assigned cooperative contract 
#170201 by The Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS), which staff is recommending award of the 
construction contract through.  Contracts awarded through TIPS have been competitively procured and 
meet the statutory procurement requirements for Texas municipalities.   
 
Staff anticipates that the roof replacement will be complete by May 11, 2018.  The new roof will have a 
20-year material & labor manufacturer’s warranty.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: In November 2017, Council authorized a budget adjustment in the amount of  
$80,269 to appropriate insurance proceeds received from Texas Municipal League (TML) related to 
May 5, 2013 hail damage to the Social Security Administration Building.  Funding for the Social Security 
Administration Building roof replacement is available in account 110-2600-519-2516 as shown below: 

Project Budget  $                      80,269  

Encumbered/Committed to Date                           (2,400) 

Montgomery Construction - Roof Replacement                         (74,319) 

Remaining Project Funds  $                        3,550  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Resolution 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9090-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH 
MONTGOMERY CONSTRUCTION OF HEWITT, TEXAS IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $74,318.55, FOR ROOF REPLACEMENT AT THE SOCIAL SECURITY 
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Social Security Administration Building, a City-owned facility located at 
511 North Main Street, had its roof damaged as a result of a hail storm in May 2013; 
 

Whereas, Staff engaged Neal Architectural Group to assist in the development of plans 
and specifications for the roof replacement;   
 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a construction contract with Montgomery 
Construction of Hewitt, Texas to install a new TPO roof system on the Social Security 
Administration building; 

 
Whereas, Montgomery Construction has been assigned Cooperative Contract No. 

170201 by The Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS), which Staff recommends using for this 
contract - contracts awarded through TIPS have been competitively procured and meet the 
statutory procurement requirements for Texas municipalities;   
 

Whereas, Staff anticipates that the roof replacement will be complete by May 11, 2018 
and the new roof will have a 20-year material & labor manufacturer’s warranty;   
 

Whereas, in November 2017, Council authorized a budget adjustment in the amount of 
$80,269 to appropriate insurance proceeds received from Texas Municipal League related to 
May 5, 2013 hail damage to the Social Security Administration Building - funding for the Social 
Security Administration Building roof replacement is available in Account No. 110-2600-519-
2516; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute a construction contract with Montgomery Construction 
of Hewitt, Texas to install a new TPO roof system on the Social Security Administration 
building in the amount of $74,318.55. 



2 
 

 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney  



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(J) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing change order #2 to the construction 
contract with Archer Western Construction, LLC, of Irving, in the amount of $62,890.97 to construct 
Phase 1 of the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The TBP, located on FM 93 between I-35 and South 31st Street (Project Map 
attached), is jointly owned by the Cities of Temple and Belton and is permitted to treat 10 million gallons 
per day of wastewater. Temple and Belton share capital improvement costs at 75% and 25%, 
respectively, and contract with the Brazos River Authority to operate the facility. The plant was 
constructed in 1975, expanded in 1990, and currently treats wastewater from approximately 70% of 
Temple and all of Belton. 
 
TCEQ requires wastewater plants to complete steps toward expansion at specific inflow thresholds.  In 
2010, influent flow was at least 75% of the permitted capacity for three consecutive months, triggering 
a TCEQ requirement to perform preliminary engineering for expansion. On August 18, 2011, Council 
authorized KPA to prepare a preliminary engineering report for the TBP in the amount of $895,698.75 
(Temple’s share of $1,194,265). 
 
On October 15, 2015, Council authorized an agreement with KPA in the amount of $1,006,166.25 
(Temple’s share of $1,341,555) for professional services to design and bid Phase 1 of the expansion. 
This original scope of services consisted of three items organized as Task 1: Basis of Design, Task 2: 
Phase 1 Final Design, and Task 4: Phase 1 Bidding.  Task 3: Phase 2 Final Design was not awarded 
at that time.  On June 16, 2016, Council authorized Task 3, modified Task 2 to remove ORBAL 
improvements and add design of an equalization basin, and added Task 5 to bid Phase 2 improvements 
when ready in the amount of $1,527,832.50 (Temple’s share of $2,037,110).  
 
On September 7, 2017, Council authorized a construction contract with Archer Western for the base 
bid and deductive change order #1 totaling $12,122,418 with Temple’s 75% portion being 
$9,091,813.50. 
 
 



04/05/18 
Item #5(J) 

Consent Agenda 
  Page 2 of 2 

 
As indicated in the attached change order and Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation, this change order 
is necessary due to unknown conditions discovered in the field and includes added amounts of pipe 
materials, labor, and pumping/hauling of sludge totaling $62,890.97, with Temple’s 75% portion being 
$47,168.23. This change order also includes an increase in contract time of 56 days. (Project Map 
attached). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding for the City of Temple’s portion of change order #2 with Archer Western 
Construction, LLC in the amount of $47,168.23 is available in account 561-5500-535-6938, project 
101774, as follows: 
  

Project Budget  $  10,100,000  
Encumbered/Committed to Date       (9,694,176) 

Archer Western Construction Change Order #2             (47,168) 
Remaining Project Funds Available  $        358,656  

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation 
Change Order 
Project Map 
Resolution 
  





Date: January 9, 2018

Project: Domel Pump StationTemple Belton WWTP Expansion Phase 1 

DESCRIPTION QTY U/M UNIT PRICE LABOR MATERIAL EQUIPMENT SUB TOTALS

LABOR:
Operator 2 ea Extended tie-in time 2 hrs 4 HR 50.00$              200.00$            200.00$                

Labor 6 ea Extended tie-in time 2 hrs 36 HR 36.00$              1,296.00$         1,296.00$             

Safety and Management Support extended 2 hrs 8 HR 75.00$              600.00$            600.00$                

Welder & Fitter Assist/ Backup for Thompson 12 HR 50.00$              600.00$            600.00$                

Tie In Support Pumping / Hauling 8 HR 75.00$              600.00$            600.00$                

Materials:
Thompson Pipe Adapter Pieces and  Ancillaries 3.00 EA 3,574.00$         10,722.00$      10,722.00$           

18" MJ Solid Sleeves 3 EA 612.00$            1,836.00$        1,836.00$             

18" Wedge Restrained Megalugs Sets 6 EA 178.00$            1,068.00$        1,068.00$             

Grout Materials 1 LS 300.00$            300.00$           300.00$                

-$                 -$                      

-$                 -$                      

SUBCONTRACTOR: 
Thompson Pipe Group: Welders with rig and consumables  18.00 HR 200.00$            3,600.00$         3,600.00$             

Extended  Waste Water Pumping/Hauling Support 2 HR 12,000.00$       24,000.00$       24,000.00$           

Equipment: 
410 Backhoe Support Welders 1 LS 2,000.00$         2,000.00$         2,000.00$             

Welder 1 DY 650.00$            650.00$            650.00$                

SUBTOTALS: 3,296.00$         13,926.00$      2,650.00$         27,600.00$       47,472.00$           

SMALL TOOLS @ 19% OF LABOR 626.24$            626.24$                

SAFETY SUPPLIES @ 15% OF LABOR 494.40$            494.40$                

GC MAT'LS (trailer, phone, cleaning, etc.) @ 10% OF LABOR 329.60$            329.60$                

PAYROLL  BURDEN @ 40% OF LABOR 1,318.40$         1,318.40$             

PROJECT MANAGEMENT @ 5% of LABOR 164.80$            164.80$                

EQUIPMENT OPERATING EXPENSE @ 65% 1,722.50$         1,722.50$             

SUBTOTALS: 6,229.44$         13,926.00$      4,372.50$         27,600.00$       52,127.94$           

15 % OH&P on AWC Work 7,819.19$             

5% OH&P on Subs 1,380.00$             

3% BOND & INSURANCE on EXCESS 1,563.84$             

            TOTAL AMOUNT OF THIS REQUEST 62,890.97$           

Archer Western Representative

 

Owner: Cities of Temple and Belton 
Contractor: Archer Western Construction
Engr: Kasberg, Patrick and Associates LP 

CHANGE DESCRIPTION:  CPR2 - Adapter Pieces to Belton Tie-Ins

This proposal includes the addition of adapter pieces, third party welding, additional support and cost impacts for additional time required to perform this tie in. AWC is requesting an 
additional 8 weeks to the project due to investigation of existing pipe and procurement of the adapter pieces. 





TValle
Polygon

TValle
Callout
Belton Force Main Connections



7+
84

5+006+007+00
18" 18" FM

6+007+008+00

8+
54

18
" F

M

18" FM 18" FM 18" FM 18" FM

0+
90

1+
00

2+
00

3+00 4+00 5+00 6+00 7+

30" FM30" FM

4+
01

1+
00

2+
00

3+00

18
" F

M
18

" F
M

1+00 2+00 3+00 4+00 5+00 6+00 7+00
475

480

485

490

495

500

505

510

475

480

485

490

495

500

505

510

SHEET NO.

OFTEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

BY

APPROVED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

PROJECT NO.

DATE

REVISIONDATENO.

C
KPA Firm Registration Number F-510

Jared A. Chandler

0 20 40

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

0

VERTICAL SCALE IN FEET

5 10

Plotted By:

Plot Date:  May 31,  2017 - 12:12pm

 JCHANDLER

Thomas D. Valle, P.E.

BELTON FORCEMAIN & TEMPORARY LINE

CITY OF TEMPLE & BELTON, TEXAS
TEMPLE-BELTON WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT - PHASE I
HEADWORKS & FLOW EQUALIZATION IMPROVEMENTS

STATION 0+90 TO STATION 7+00 (BELTON FORCEMAIN "A")
17

2015-140

P
:\T

em
pl

e\
20

15
\2

01
5-

14
0 

(T
B

W
W

TP
)\C

A
D

\W
O

R
K

IN
G

\1
5-

14
0 

W
O

R
K

IN
G

 P
IP

E
S

.d
w

g 
 - 

 B
C

-0
4

PROPOSED
HEADWORKS

M
A

TC
H

 L
IN

E 
ST

A
TI

O
N

 7
+0

0

2017 Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

TValle
Polygon

TValle
Callout
Belton Force Main Connections



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9091-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NO. 2 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$62,890.97 TO THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH ARCHER 
WESTERN CONSTRUCTION, LLC OF IRVING, TEXAS FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF PHASE 1 OF THE TEMPLE-BELTON WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION PROJECT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant (TBP), located on FM 93 
between I-35 and South 31st Street, is jointly owned by the Cities of Temple and Belton and is 
permitted to treat 10 million gallons (MGD) of wastewater per day; 
 
 Whereas, the Cities of Temple and Belton share capital improvement costs at 75% and 
25%, respectively, and contract with the Brazos River Authority to operate the facility – this 
facility was constructed in 1975, expanded in 1990, and currently treats wastewater from 
approximately 70% of Temple and all of Belton; 
 
 Whereas, the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) requires wastewater 
plants to complete steps toward expansion at specific inflow thresholds - in 2010, influent flow 
was at least 75% of the permitted capacity for three consecutive months, triggering a TCEQ 
requirement to perform preliminary engineering for expansion; 
 
 Whereas, on August 18, 2011, Council authorized Kasberg, Patrick & Associates (KPA) 
of Temple, Texas to prepare a preliminary engineering report for the TBP - on October 15, 2015, 
Council again authorized an agreement with KPA for professional services to design and bid 
Phase 1 of the expansion which included Task 1, Task 2 and Task 4; 
 
 Whereas, on June 16, 2016, Council authorized Task 3, modified Task 2 to remove 
ORBAL improvements and add design of an equalization basin, and added Task 5 to bid Phase 2 
improvements when ready;  
  
 Whereas, on September 7, 2017, Council authorized a construction contract with Archer 
Western for the base bid and deductive Change Order No. 1 totaling $12,122,418 with Temple’s 
75% portion being $9,091,813.50; 
 
 Whereas, Change Order No. 2 is necessary due to unknown conditions discovered in the 
field and includes added amounts of pipe materials, labor, and pumping/hauling of sludge 
totaling $62,890.97, with Temple’s 75% portion being $47,168.23 - this change order also 
includes an increase in contract time of 56 days; 
 
 Whereas, funding for the City of Temple’s portion of Change Order No. 2 is available in 
Account No. 561-5500-535-6938, Project No. 101774; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
  



2 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.
  
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute Change Order No. 2 to the construction contract with 
Archer Western Construction, LLC, of Irving, Texas to construct Phase 1 of the Temple-Belton 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion Project. 

 
Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney  



L 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(K) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, PE, Director of Public Works 
Kenny Henderson, Transportation Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a change order to a construction 
contract for the street overlay program for FY 2018 with Oldcastle Materials Texas, Inc. (formerly known 
as APAC-Texas, Inc.) of Cedar Park in the estimated amount of $291,310. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: On December 7, 2017, Council authorized a one-year renewal to a construction 
contract for the street overlay program with Oldcastle Materials Texas, Inc. (“Oldcastle”) in the amount 
of $2,817,797. The funding appropriated in the FY 2018 TCIP Budget is $3,110,000 for street overlay. 
An additional $164,000 is needed to complete the streets identified in the December 7, 2017 Agenda 
Item, and  Staff is recommending to overlay  the following streets with the remaining TCIP funds 
designated for overlay in the amount of $130,340:   

1) Steeplechase from Canyon Creek to Sterling Drive 
2) Sterling Drive from Sturbridge Drive to Sturbridge Drive 
3) Sturbridge Drive from Sterling Drive to Sterling Drive 

 
The work will be completed in accordance with the pricing defined in the original contract, which are as 
follows: 
  Installation of hot mix asphalt    $100.60 per ton 
  Milling       $3.10 per square yard 
  4” yellow striping     $1.05 per linear foot 
  4” white striping     $2.50 per linear foot 
  8” white striping     $3.30 per linear foot 
  24” white striping     $11.50 per linear foot 
  Directional arrows     $160-$200 each 
  Traffic buttons     $3.85 per linear foot  
 
 
 
 
 

 



04/05/18 
Item #5(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: The street overlay project was funded with the issuance of CO Bonds sold in October 
2017. Funding for the change order with Oldcastle Materials Texas, Inc. in the amount of $291,310 is 
available in account 365-3400-531-6527, project 101712, as follows: 
 

Project Budget  $    3,110,000  
Encumbered/Committed to Date       (2,818,690) 

Oldcastle Materials Texas, Inc. - Change Order          (291,310) 
Remaining Project Funds Available  $                   -    

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  
  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9092-R 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CHANGE ORDER TO THE CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT WITH OLDCASTLE MATERIALS TEXAS, INC. 
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS APAC-TEXAS, INC.) OF CEDAR PARK, 
TEXAS IN THE AMOUNT OF $291,310 TO ENABLE IMPROVEMENTS 
TO ROADWAYS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on December 7, 2017, Council authorized a one-year renewal to a 
construction contract for the street overlay program with Oldcastle Materials Texas, Inc. 
(“Oldcastle”); 

 
Whereas, based on additional funding being available, Staff recommends Council 

authorize a Change Order to the Oldcastle contract in the estimated amount of $291,310 to 
enable improvements to the following roads:   

 
1) Steeplechase from Canyon Creek to Sterling Drive; 
2) Sterling Drive from Sturbridge Drive to Sturbridge Drive; and 
3) Sturbridge Drive from Sterling Drive to Sterling Drive; 
 
Whereas, the work will be completed in accordance with the pricing defined in the 

original contract; 
 
Whereas, the street overlay project was funded with the issuance of CO Bonds sold 

in October 2017 – funding for this Change Order is available in Account No. 365-3400-531-
6527, Project No. 101712; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval 
as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a Change Order to the Oldcastle contract in the 
estimated amount of $291,310 to enable improvements to the following roads:   

 
1) Steeplechase from Canyon Creek to Sterling Drive; 
2) Sterling Drive from Sturbridge Drive to Sturbridge Drive; and 
3) Sturbridge Drive from Sterling Drive to Sterling Drive. 

 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 

 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros  
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(L) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
  

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $61,000 for acquisition and 
relocation services for five properties needed for Phase 6 of the Outer Loop, as well as, declare an 
official intent to reimburse the expenditures with the issuance of the 2018 Tax Increment Financing 
Reinvestment Zone Revenue Bonds. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The Outer Loop south of FM 2305 is an important north-south arterial that will 
connect the Adams Avenue growth corridor to IH 35.  Phase 3A at Adams Avenue has recently been 
constructed and construction on the next phase (3B) to extend the Outer Loop just south of Jupiter 
Drive will begin in the coming months. Design on phases four, five, and six is in progress and acquisition 
of right of way will begin shortly after 30 percent design plans are reached. 
 
Two property owners in Phase 6 have approached the City and would like to begin the acquisition and 
relocation process now.  Based on preliminary design, it appears the City will need five properties from 
these owners, two whole properties and three partial takings. The City has instructed its design 
engineer to develop metes and bounds for the partial takings.  Due to the complexity of these takings, 
the City asked Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc. for an estimate to provide acquisition and 
relocation services.     
 
Staff recommends Council authorize a professional services agreement with Stateside, in an amount 
not to exceed $61,000 for acquisition and relocation services for five properties needed for Phase 6 of 
the Outer Loop. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The professional services agreement with Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc. for 
acquisition and relocation services for Phase 6 of the Outer Loop Project in the amount of $61,000 will 
be funded with the issuance of the 2018 Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Revenue Bonds.  
The bonds will be sold in the summer of 2018. We are declaring an official intent to reimburse for this 
agreement. 
 
Funding for the professional services agreement is reflected in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing 
and Project Plans, Line 320, and will is appropriated in account 795-9600-531-6557, project 101585. 
 



04/05/18 
Item #5(L) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Stateside Proposal  
Resolution  
  













1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9093-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH STATESIDE RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES, INC. OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $61,000, FOR ACQUISITION AND 
RELOCATION SERVICES NEEDED FOR FIVE PROPERTIES FOR PHASE 6 
OF THE OUTER LOOP, AS WELL AS DECLARE AN OFFICIAL INTENT 
TO REIMBURSE THE EXPENDITURES WITH THE ISSUANCE OF THE 
2018 TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REINVESTMENT ZONE REVENUE 
BONDS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Outer Loop, south of FM 2305, is an important north-south arterial that will 
connect the Adams Avenue growth corridor to IH 35; 
 
 Whereas, Phase 3A at Adams Avenue has recently been constructed and construction on 
the next phase (3B) to extend the Outer Loop just south of Jupiter Drive will begin in the coming 
months - design on Phases four, five, and six is in progress and acquisition of right of way will 
begin shortly after 30 percent design plans are reached; 
 
 Whereas, two property owners in Phase 6 have approached the City and would like to 
begin the acquisition and relocation process - based on preliminary design, it appears the City 
will need five properties from these owners, two whole properties and three partial takings; 
 
 Whereas, the City has instructed its design engineer to develop metes and bounds for the 
partial takings and due to the complexity of these takings, the City has asked Stateside Right of 
Way Services, Inc. (“Stateside”) for an estimate to provide acquisition and relocation services;     
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a professional services agreement with 
Stateside, in an amount not to exceed $61,000 for acquisition and relocation services for five 
properties needed for Phase 6 of the Outer Loop; 
 

Whereas, the City of Temple anticipates the issuance of one or more series of 
obligations, the interest on which will be excludable from gross income under Section 103 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, in order to finance all or a portion of this project; 
 

Whereas, certain expenditures relating to the Project will be paid prior to the issuance of 
the Obligations and the City hereby certifies that such expenditures have not been made prior to 
the date of passage of this Resolution - upon issuance of the Obligations, the City desires to 
reimburse these prior expenditures with proceeds of the Obligations;  
 

Whereas, Section 1.150.2 of the Treasury Regulations provides that an expenditure on 
the Project may not be reimbursed from Obligation proceeds unless, along with other 
requirements, the City declares official intent to reimburse the expenditure prior to the date that 
the expenditure to be reimbursed was paid;  

 
 



2 
 

 
 Whereas, this project is being funded with the issuance of 2018 Tax Increment Financing 
Reinvestment Zone Bonds which will make funding available for this professional services 
agreement in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project Plan, Line 320, and will be 
appropriated in Account No. 795-9600-531-6557, Project No. 101585; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with Stateside Right 
of Way Services, Inc. of Temple, Texas in the amount of $61,000, for acquisition and relocation 
services for five properties needed for Phase 6 of the Outer Loop, as well as, declare an official 
intent to reimburse the expenditures with the issuance of the 2018 Tax Increment Financing 
Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) Revenue Bonds. 
 

Part 3: This Resolution is a declaration of official intent by the City under Section 
1.150.2 of the Treasury Regulations that it reasonably expects to reimburse the expenditures 
described in Part 1 with proceeds of debt to be incurred by the City, such debt to be issued on or 
before eighteen (18) months after (i) the date the first expenditure is paid; or (ii) the date on 
which the property is placed in service, but in no event three years after the first expenditure is 
paid. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS  
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(M) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Director of Public Works 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing contract amendment #2 to a 
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in an amount not to exceed 
$365,311 for construction administration and on-site representation required to construct the 
Shallowford Lift Station Improvements. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Sewer overflows within the Bird Creek basin are problematic, and the City has a 
significant capital effort underway to address deteriorated sewer mains and interceptor pipe to reduce 
inflow, infiltration and overflows. In 2007, Council authorized a professional services agreement for 
engineering services related to the Bird Creek Interceptor, addressing significant issues within the basin 
and embarking upon a multi-year plan to address system needs. The Shallowford Lift Station receives 
wastewater from the Bird Creek basin and now requires an upgrade to adequately convey discharge 
from the collection system to the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant.   
 
On December 17, 2015, Council authorized an agreement with KPA in the amount of $641,530 for 
professional services to relocate and expand the Shallowford Lift Station.  
 
On June 16, 2016, Council authorized Contract Amendment #1 with KPA in the amount of $275,100 to 
design and bid, at a later date, an additional force main paralleling the existing force main to carry the 
additional flows. 
 
On March 15, 2018, Council authorized a construction contract with SSP Industries, L.P., of Killeen for 
$6,100,000 to construct the Shallowford Lift Station Improvements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



04/05/18 
Item #5(M) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The attached proposal includes the following recommended services and costs: 

 
I. Basic Services 

A. Construction Administration    $231,475 
 

    Sub Total  $231,475 
 

II. Special Services 
A. Resident Project Representative           $109,286 

  B. Warranty Phase      $10,800 
  C. Power Study        $9,250 
  D. Expenses / Direct Costs       $4,500 
       Sub Total          $133,836 
 
            Total Professional Services        $365,311  
 
 
Please refer to the attached proposal and project map for further details. Construction is anticipated to 
begin in April 2018.  Construction time allotted for this project is 450 calendar days. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for contract amendment #2 with Kasberg, Patrick, and Associates, LP in 
the amount of $365,311 is available in account 561-5400-535-6905, project 101475, as follows: 
 

Project Budget  $    8,841,530  
Encumbered/Committed to Date       (6,754,643) 

KPA Contract Amendment #2          (365,311) 
Remaining Project Funds Available  $    1,721,576  

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Project Map 
Contract Amendment 
Resolution 
 
  







Shallowford Lift Station Improvements 
Construction Phase Services Scope 

Page 1 

Exhibit A 
City of Temple, Texas 

Shallowford Lift Station Improvements 
 

TASK IDENTIFICATION 
For 

ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 

March 2018 
 
TASK A - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION SERVICES - Engineer shall perform construction 
administration services for the Shallowford Lift Station Improvements construction contracts 
 

a. Conduct a pre-construction conference with the contractor and owner and prepare meeting 
minutes. 

b. Establish communication procedures and issue instructions from owner to contractor.  

c. Conduct construction progress meetings with the contractor and owner.  

d. Maintain a documentation system within the requirements of the construction Contract 
Documents. 

e. Coordinate, review and prepare written responses to contractor's submittals. 

f. Monitor the progress of the contractor in sending and processing submittals.  

g. Inspect project site at a frequency sufficient to observe and report on the progress and the 
quality of work, including site visits for equipment startup and checkout. 

h. Review contractor's Modification Request(s) for deviations from the construction Contract 
Documents. 

i. Interpret the drawings and specifications for owner and contractor. 

j. When necessary, issue a Non-Conforming Report.  

k. Evaluate contractor claims and make recommendations on the merit and value of the claim. 

l. Recommend the amount that the contractor shall be paid on monthly and final estimates. 

m. Schedule and conduct substantial completion inspection with owner and contractor. 

n. Accompany owner on final inspection to assure that work has been completed in accordance 
with the Construction Documents, including preparation of letter detailing punchlist items. 

o. Review contractor’s as-built documents to ascertain they were updated during construction.  

p. Prepare project record documents by modifying the electronic version of the Contract 
Documents. 

q. Submit certified record drawings to owner electronically without an engineer’s seal in 
AutoCAD format. 

r. Submit three (3) bound sets of certified record drawings to owner with engineers seal. 

s. Maintain a photo log of construction activities including periodic photographs of SWPP 
devices. 

 



Shallowford Lift Station Improvements 
Construction Phase Services Scope 

Page 2 

TASK B - RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATION SERVICES - Engineer shall provide RPR 
services for construction of: 

a. KPA will provide the services of an on-site, senior, fully qualified RPR.  It is anticipated that 
the RPR will average 4 hours per day over the 14 month duration of the construction phase.  

b. The RPR shall provide construction administration and observation services. 

c. The RPR shall act under supervision of Engineer in order to provide more extensive on-site 
observations. 

d. The RPR shall function as engineer's agent in all matters relating to on-site construction review. 

e. The RPR shall also perform, but not be limited to, the following services: 

1. Conduct on-site observations of work in progress to determine if the work conforms to 
Contract Documents. 

2. Attend pre-construction conference(s), progress meetings, job conferences, and other 
project construction meetings. 

3. Establish communication procedures with owner, engineer and contractor(s). 

4. Maintain a project documentation system consistent with the requirements of the 
construction Contract Documents. 

5. Serve as engineer's liaison with contractor(s), working principally through contractor’s(s) 
Superintendent. 

6. Establish and administer quality assurance procedures in accordance with the construction 
Contract Documents. 

7. Review Applications for Payment with contractor(s) for compliance with the established 
procedure. 

8. Participate in preparation of field orders and change orders. 

9. Verify that contractor(s) maintain updated as-built documents and verify the accuracy of 
the as-built documents. 

10. Assist in project completion activities at the conclusion of construction. 

11. Coordinate all project startup and performance testing activities with the owner, 
equipment suppliers or other contractors. 

12. Verify that tests, equipment and systems start-up and operating and maintenance training 
are conducted. 

13. Conduct a final inspection with engineer, owner, and contractor(s) and prepare a final list 
of items. 

f. The Engineer nor its RPR will guarantee the performance by any contractor(s). 
 
g. The RPR shall not undertake any responsibilities of contractor(s). 
 
h. The RPR shall not advise on, issue directives regarding, or assume control over safety 

precautions. 

i. The RPR shall not accept submittals from any entity other than the contractor or engineer. 

j. The RPR shall not participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted 
by others. 



Shallowford Lift Station Improvements 
Construction Phase Services Scope 

Page 3 

 

TASK C - WARRANTY PERIOD SERVICES - Engineer shall perform the following services for 
owner for one year following final payment  
    

a. Engineer shall perform the following services for owner for one year following final payment 

1. Serve as primary point of contact for Warranty Items, including initial review of issue and 
coordination with Contractor. 

2. Eleven months after final payment, Engineer shall schedule and conduct a warranty 
inspection. 

3. Engineer shall submit a certification to owner stating that contractor’s warranty 
obligations have been completed or list unresolved warranty items. 

 

TASK D – POWER SYSTEM STUDY -- Engineer shall perform the following services: 

a. Model Power System in SKM.  Updated to reflect actual electrical gear purchased. 

b. Prepare Final Report and Permanent Labels, including startup assistance. 



P
:
\
T

e
m

p
l
e
\
2
0
1
5
\
2
0
1
5
-
1
5
2
 
S

h
a
l
l
o
w

f
o
r
d
 
L
i
f
t
 
S

t
a
t
i
o
n
\
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
\
4
0
\
L
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
M

a
p
.
d
w

g
 
 
-
 
 
L
-
E

x
h
 
K

P
A

N

O

R

T

H

0

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

100 200

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS

LOCATION MAP

CONSULTING ENGINEERS

TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

Firm Registration No. F-510

SHALLOWFORD LIFT STATION

 MARCH 2018

S

H

A

L

L

O

W

F

O

R

D

 
R

D

.

S

H

A

L

L

O

W

F

O

R

D

 
R

D

.

LIFT STATION

(TO BE DEMOLISHED)

0.51 ACRE

LIFT STATION SITE

NEW 30" FORCE MAIN

CONNECTION

EXISTING

30" FORCE MAIN

EXISTING SHALLOWFORD

TO TBWWTP





1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9090-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH 
MONTGOMERY CONSTRUCTION OF HEWITT, TEXAS IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $74,318.55, FOR ROOF REPLACEMENT AT THE SOCIAL SECURITY 
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Social Security Administration Building, a City-owned facility located at 
511 North Main Street, had its roof damaged as a result of a hail storm in May 2013; 
 

Whereas, Staff engaged Neal Architectural Group to assist in the development of plans 
and specifications for the roof replacement;   
 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a construction contract with Montgomery 
Construction of Hewitt, Texas to install a new TPO roof system on the Social Security 
Administration building; 

 
Whereas, Montgomery Construction has been assigned Cooperative Contract No. 

170201 by The Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS), which Staff recommends using for this 
contract - contracts awarded through TIPS have been competitively procured and meet the 
statutory procurement requirements for Texas municipalities;   
 

Whereas, Staff anticipates that the roof replacement will be complete by May 11, 2018 
and the new roof will have a 20-year material & labor manufacturer’s warranty;   
 

Whereas, in November 2017, Council authorized a budget adjustment in the amount of 
$80,269 to appropriate insurance proceeds received from Texas Municipal League related to 
May 5, 2013 hail damage to the Social Security Administration Building - funding for the Social 
Security Administration Building roof replacement is available in Account No. 110-2600-519-
2516; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute a construction contract with Montgomery Construction 
of Hewitt, Texas to install a new TPO roof system on the Social Security Administration 
building in the amount of $74,318.55. 



2 
 

 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney  



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(N) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Alan DeLoera, Information Technology Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Geographical Information System 
license agreement and maintenance contract with Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc., of 
San Antonio, in the amount of $50,000.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Authorization of this purchase will allow for the continued use of Environmental 
Systems Research Institute’s Geographical Information Systems software from May 7, 2018 to May 6, 
2019.  The GIS software is used to integrate hardware, software, and data for capturing, managing, 
analyzing, and displaying all forms of geographically referenced information by the following 
departments:  Information Technology, Public Works, Parks, Police, Police, and Fire. GIS allows staff 
to view, understand, question, interpret, and visualize data in many ways that reveal relationships, 
patterns, and trends in the form of maps, globes, reports, and charts. 
 
GIS is used for many purposes such as crime analyses, water/wastewater, transportation, parcel 
studies, 911, planning, zoning, parks, infrastructure, political boundary, topographical, hydrological and 
census analysis and management. In addition, the GIS software is used for information sharing on our 
City website. 
 
This Enterprise Licensing Agreement allows the City to take advantage of unlimited licensing and 
maintenance which will provide the following benefits: 

• A lower cost per unit for the licensed software, 
• Substantially reduced administrative and procurement expenses, 
• Maintenance on all ESRI software deployed under this agreement, and  
• Complete flexibility to deploy software products when and where needed. 

 
ESRI is the sole provider of maintenance for the ArcGIS applications software, which the City has been 
using for three years.  Changing GIS software would be cumbersome and expensive; therefore, staff 
is requesting that this purchase be made from ESRI as the sole source provider.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the Geographical Information System license agreement and 
maintenance contract with Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. in the amount of $50,000 is 
available in account 110-1900-519-23-38. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9095-R 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION SYSTEM 
LICENSE AGREEMENT AND MAINTENANCE CONTRACT WITH 
ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS RESEARCH INSTITUTE, INC. OF SAN 
ANTONIO, TEXAS IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,000; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, Geographical Information System (GIS) software is used to integrate hardware, 
software, and data for capturing, managing, analyzing, and displaying all forms of geographically 
referenced information throughout various departments within the City; 
 
 Whereas, GIS software allows Staff to view, understand, question, interpret, and visualize 
data in many ways that reveal relationships, patterns, and trends in the form of maps, globes, 
reports, and charts; 
 

Whereas, GIS software is used for many purposes, to include crime analyses, 
water/wastewater, transportation, parcel studies, 911, planning, zoning, parks, infrastructure, 
political boundary, topographical, hydrological and census analysis and management, and, in 
addition, the GIS software is used for information sharing on our City website; 
 

Whereas, the Enterprise Licensing Agreement will allow the City to take advantage of 
unlimited licensing and maintenance which will provide the following benefits: 

 
• A lower cost per unit for the licensed software; 
• Substantially reduced administrative and procurement expenses; 
• Maintenance on all ESRI software deployed under this agreement; and  
• Complete flexibility to deploy software products when and where needed; 

 
Whereas, Environmental Systems Research Institute (ESRI) is the sole provider of 

maintenance for the ArcGIS applications software, which the City has been using for three years - 
changing this software would be cumbersome and expensive, and therefore, Staff recommends this 
purchase be made from ESRI as the sole source provider; 

 
Whereas, authorization of this purchase will allow for the continued use of ESRI’s GIS 

software from May 7, 2018 to May 6, 2019;   
 
Whereas, funding for the GIS license agreement and maintenance contract is available in 

Account No. 110-1900-519-2338; and 
  

 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 
to form by City Attorney, to execute a Geographical Information System license agreement and 
maintenance contract with Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc., of San Antonio, 
Texas in the amount of $50,000.   
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(O)  
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1  
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Mitch Randles, Fire Chief 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing a renewal of 
the franchise with Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc., to provide non-emergency ambulance transfer 
services within the City.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinance as presented in item description on second and final 
reading. 
   
ITEM SUMMARY: Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc. (Acadian) is operating a non-emergency 
ambulance transfer service in the City under a current franchise agreement that was authorized by 
Council in 2013. That franchise agreement will expire on September 30, 2018. Acadian has asked for 
a renewal to the agreement so that it may continue operating within the City.  
 
Acadian has submitted the necessary paperwork requesting renewal of the franchise and a copy of the 
paperwork is attached to this Memorandum. The Staff recommends authorizing a five year renewal. 
Five years is the normal franchise term pursuant to Chapter 5 of the City’s Code of Ordinances. The 
commencement date for the renewal agreement would be October 1, 2018 and the expiration date 
would be September 30, 2023. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: By ordinance, non-emergency ambulance transfer services franchisees pay the City 
3½ % of the total amount billed per year. In FY 2017, Acadian paid the City $9,359.70 in non-emergency 
ambulance transfer service franchise fees which was deposited into account 110-0000-413-0936. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Franchise Renewal Request Letter 
Ordinance 
 
 
 

  







1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-4901 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A RENEWAL OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
WITH ACADIAN AMBULANCE SERVICE, INC, TO PROVIDE NON-
EMERGENCY AMBULANCE TRANSFER SERVICES WITHIN THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS; DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________________  
 
Whereas, Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc. (Acadian) is operating a non-emergency 

ambulance transfer service in the City under a current franchise agreement that was authorized by 
Council in 2013; 

 
Whereas, that franchise agreement expires September 30, 2018 and Acadian has approached 

the City requesting to renew the agreement so that they may continue operating within the City;  
 

Whereas, Acadian has submitted the necessary paperwork required to request a renewal of 
the franchise agreement and Staff recommends Council authorize a five-year renewal with Acadian; 

 
Whereas, five years is the normal franchise term pursuant to Chapter 5 of the City’s Code of 

Ordinances and the commencement date for the renewal agreement would be October 1, 2018 and 
the expiration date would be September 30, 2023; 

 
 Whereas, by Ordinance, non-emergency ambulance transfer services franchisees pay the 
City 3½ percent of the total amount billed per year - in fiscal year 2017, Acadian paid to the City the 
amount of $9,359.70 in non-emergency ambulance transfer service franchise fees which was 
deposited into Account No. 110-0000-413-0936; and  

  
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this abandonment. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 

legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 

 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes a five-year renewal of the franchise agreement with 

Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc to provide non-emergency transfer services within the City of 
Temple, Texas. 

 
Part 3: If any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to any 

person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

 



2 
 

 
 

Part 4: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
 Part 5:  Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 15th day of 
March, 2018. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
______________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________   ______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(P) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Kevin Beavers, Director of Parks and Recreation  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing the closure 
of a section of Avenue C, between Avenue B and Main Street, and the closure of a section of 1st Street 
south of Avenue B.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinance as presented in item description on second and final 
reading. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City of Temple Parks and Recreation Department has submitted a request to 
close a section of Avenue C, between Avenue B and Main Street, as shown in orange on the attached 
map, and a section of 1st Street, south of Avenue B, also shown in orange on the attached map. The 
request is for the planned construction of Santa Fe Market Trail. Pursuant to Texas Transportation 
Code, Section 311.007, a home-rule municipality may vacate, abandon, or close a street or alley. Since 
this is a closure, not an abandonment, and does not require private acquisition of the street, no 
conveyance is required and the land area encompassing the closed streets will be retained by the City 
of Temple and will be accessible to pedestrians.  
                                                                                       
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Map 
Ordinance 
 
  



P
:
\
T

e
m

p
l
e

 
R

e
i
n

v
e

s
t
m

e
n

t
\
2

0
1

6
\
1

6
-
1

0
4

 
S

a
n

t
a

 
F

e
 
M

a
r
k
e

t
 
T

r
a

i
l
\
C

A
D

\
W

o
r
k
i
n

g
\
E

x
h

i
b

i
t
\
S

F
 
M

R
K

T
 
S

q
 
a

r
e

a
 
a

b
a

n
d

o
n

m
e

n
t
.
d

w
g

 
 
-
 
 
M

R
K

T
 
T

R
L

 
R

O
A

D
 
C

L
O

S
U

R
E

 
p

l
a

t

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS

ROAD CLOSURE

CONSULTING ENGINEERS

TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

Firm Registration No. F-510

SANTA FE MARKET TRAIL IMPROVEMENTS

 JANUARY 2018

0

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

20 40

N

O

R

T

H

A

V

E

N

U

E

 
B

A

V

E

N

U

E

 

C

M

A

I
N

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

1

S

T

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

B

N

S

F

 

R

A

I

L

R

O

A

D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALLED 0.93 ACRE CITY OF TEMPLE Vol. 4237, Pg. 761

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF TEMPLE Doc. No. 2015-00003648

AutoCAD SHX Text
MURRAY RENTALS, LLC-SERIES-N LOT 11 & LOT 12 BLOCK 3 ORIGINAL TOWN OF TEMPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOE EVERETT LOT 13 & LOT 14 BLOCK 3 ORIGINAL TOWN OF TEMPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLARD LEE GANDY, etux LOT 1 & LOT 2 BLOCK 3 ORIGINAL TOWN OF TEMPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANCISCO S. VIDANA LOT 1 BLOCK 34 ORIGINAL TOWN OF TEMPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANCISCO S. VIDANA LOT 2 & LOT 3 BLOCK 34 ORIGINAL TOWN OF TEMPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RGR INC LOT 4 & N 10' OF LOT 5 BLOCK 34 ORIGINAL TOWN OF TEMPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RGR INC S 20' OF LOT 5, LOT 6, LOT 7, & LOT 8 BLOCK 34 ORIGINAL TOWN OF TEMPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRENTLY  CLOSED



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  2018-4902 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CLOSURE OF A SECTION OF AVENUE 
C, BETWEEN AVENUE B AND MAIN STREET, AND THE CLOSURE 
OF A SECTION OF 1ST STREET, SOUTH OF AVENUE B; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 

 Whereas, the City of Temple Parks and Recreation Department has submitted a 
request to close a section of Avenue C, between Avenue B and Main Street and a section of 
1st Street, south of Avenue B for the planned construction of the Santa Fe Market Trail; 
 

Whereas, pursuant to Texas Transportation Code, Section 311.007, a home-rule 
municipality may vacate, abandon, or close a street or alley - since this is a closure, not an 
abandonment, and does not require private acquisition of the street, no conveyance is 
required and the land area encompassing the closed streets will be retained by the City of 
Temple and will be accessible to pedestrians; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 
  

Part 2: The City of Temple, Texas, hereby closes a section of Avenue C, between 
Avenue B and Main Street, and the closure of a section of 1st Street south of Avenue B, as 
outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by 
the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not 
affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 



2 
 

 
 
Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 15th day of 

March, 2018. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 5th day of April, 2018. 
     

 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

      DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(Q) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 3 
 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Mark Baker, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING – Z-FY-18-11: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing 
a rezoning from Agricultural district to General Retail district on Lots 1 & 2, Block 5 of South Pointe 
Phase I, 2.21 +/- acres, located on the north side of Loop 363, approximately 172 feet south east of its 
intersection with Dogwood Lane, addressed as 3137 & 3131 Alton Road. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from AG to GR districts for 
the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed GR zoning is compatible with surrounding zoning, existing and anticipated uses 
as well as future growth trends in the area; 

2. The proposal is in compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 
3. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.   

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their February 20, 2018 meeting, The 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted seven to zero to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning 
per staff’s recommendation.  
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant, Short Term Lending Group Inc. requests rezoning of 2.21 +/- acres 
from Agricultural (AG) zoning district to General Retail (GR) zoning district. The subject property is 
described as Lots 1 and 2, Block 5 of the recently platted South Pointe, Phase I subdivision, approved 
by the Planning and Zoning Commission on September 18, 2017. 
 
TxDOT responded during the subdivision plat process and concurred with the lot layout. At this time, 
no proposed development of the site has been proposed. While TxDOT is aware of the rezoning, they 
have not provided input relative to driveway access. Discussions may be on-going regarding the need 
for future access directly to Loop 363.  
 
While it is anticipated for the property to be developed with non-residential uses, there are a number of 
residential and non-residential uses that are permitted by right or with a conditional use permit (CUP). 
A comparison between the existing and proposed zoning districts, which include but are not limited to, 
are shown in the attached table. 
 

 
 



04/05/18 
Item #5(Q) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: Compliance to goals, objectives or maps of the 
Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan are summarized by the attached Comprehensive 
Plan Compliance table but further described below: 
 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is split by two Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designations, the Auto-Urban 
Commercial designation. The Auto-Urban designation, which is established for a majority of the areas 
identified for commercial use. The Auto-Urban designation supports the proposed GR zoning and 
therefore the requested GR zoning is consistent with the Auto-Urban designation. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access from Loop 363, an expressway and Alton Road, a local street.  To 
date, since the final plat has been approved and recorded, no new dedication issues have been 
identified. While TxDOT interests are on-going, the state was notified of the proposed rezoning to 
general retail. No Transportation Capital Improvement Program (TCIP) improvements scheduled 
through FY 2024 have been identified. 
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available through extension of an 8-inch and a 12-inch sewer line at several places in Case 
Road along the north and north east sides of the adjacent South Pointe development. Sewer is also 
available through extension of an 8-inch sewer line on the west side of South Martin Luther King Jr. 
Drive. Sewer is expected to be available to the subject property as South Pointe continues to develop. 
Water is available through an 8-inch waterline in the existing Alton Road alignment as well as along the 
northern property line of the subject property (Lot #1).   
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
No proposed trails are shown on the Trails Master Plan and no sidewalks are required. It should be 
noted however that the applicant proposes a four foot sidewalk along the west side of Alton Road, 
which will be developed as an oversized local street, where it meets Loop 363.  
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The attached tables compare and contrast, the current 
development standards for AG with the proposed GR standards as provided for in UDC Sections 4.2, 
4.5 and 4.5.1 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Thirteen notices, represented by seven separate property owners, were sent to 
property owners within 200-feet of the subject property containing notice of the public hearing as 
required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of Tuesday March 6, 2018 at 9:00 AM, four notices, one 
of which represents eight separate properties, have been received in agreement.  
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on February 8, 2018, in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



04/05/18 
Item #5(Q) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Boundary Map (Exhibit A) 
Photos 
Tables 
Maps 
Returned Property Notices 
PZ Excerpts (February 20, 2018) 
Ordinance 
 
  





Site & Surrounding Property Photos 
 

 
 

Site: Undeveloped  
(AG) 

 

 
 

Site: Undeveloped   
(AG) 



 
 

West: Existing Retail & Service Uses (Conoco)  
(GR) 

 

 
 

South: Scattered Residential Uses on Acreage 
(AG) 



 

 
 
North – Aerial Google Earth Image:  South Pointe Development – Image does not 

reflect current grading and early site development   
(SFA-3) 

 
East - Aerial Google Earth Image: Existing Agricultural and Non-Residential Uses 

(AG)  
 

NOTE: Subject property boundaries of rezoning, shown in RED, are approxmate 

South Pointe Development 

Loop 363 



Tables 
 

Permitted & Conditional Uses Table  
Comparison between AG & GR 

 
Use Type Agricultural (AG) General Retail (GR) 

Agricultural Uses Farm, Ranch or Orchard Same as AG 

Residential Uses 

Single Family Residence 
(Detached & Attached)                                                                                                                                           
Industrialized Housing                                                      
Family or Group Home           
Home for the Aged (CUP)                                                     

Same as AG                                                                
Duplex                                                                                    
Townhouse                                                                            
Home for the Aged (No CUP) 

Retail & Service 
Uses 

None Most Retail & Service Uses                                               
Alcoholic Beverage Sales, off-premise   
consumption, package Store (CUP) 

Commercial Uses 

None                             Plumbing Shop                                                                               
Upholstery Shop                                                                   
Kennel without Veterinary Hospital (CUP)                                              
Indoor Flea Market 

Industrial Uses 

Temporary Asphalt & 
Concrete Batching Plat 
(CUP)                                                                                      

Temporary Asphalt & Concrete Batching 
Plat (CUP)                                                                                     
Laboratory, medical, dental, scientific or 
research                                                                      
Recycling collection location 

Recreational Uses 
None Park or Playground                                                             

Beer & Wine (On Premise Consumption) 
< 75% 

Educational  
& Institutional Uses 

Cemetery (CUP) 
Place of Worship 
Social Svc. Shelter (CUP) 
Child Care (CUP) 

Same as AG 
Child Care (No CUP) 
Hospital 

Vehicle Service 
Uses 

None Auto Leasing, Rental                                                           
Auto Sales - New & Used (Outside Lot)                             
Car Wash                                                                                                                                          
Vehicle Servicing  (Minor) 

Restaurant Uses None With & Without Drive-In 
Overnight 

Accommodations 
RV Park (CUP) Hotel or Motel 

Transportation 
Uses 

Emergency Vehicle 
Service (CUP)                                              
Helistop (CUP) 

Same as AG (No CUP) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

Surrounding Property Uses 
 

 Surrounding Property & Uses 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Auto-Urban Commercial AG Undeveloped 
North Auto Urban Commercial SF-3 Undeveloped (South Pointe)  

South Auto Urban Residential C, GR & 
AG 

Scattered SF Residential Uses 
on Acreage 

East Auto Urban Commercial AG  Undeveloped 

West Auto Urban Commercial GR Scattered Retail & Service Uses 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Comprehensive Plan Compliance 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map YES 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  YES 

CP Goal 4.1 - Growth and development 
patterns should be consistent with 
the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

YES 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and 
Sidewalks Ordinance 

YES 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

Dimensional Standards 
 

 

Current 
(AG) 

Residential 

Proposed 
(GR) 

Non-Res 
Minimum Lot Size 1 Acre N/A 
Minimum Lot Width 100 Feet N/A 
Minimum Lot Depth 150 Feet N/A 

Front Setback 50 Feet 15 Feet  

Side Setback 15 Feet 10 Feet 
Side Setback (corner) 15 Feet 10 Feet 
Rear Setback 10 Feet  10 Feet 
Max Building Height 3 Stories 3 Stories 

 
 
 10’ rear setback (Non-residential use abuts a residential zoning district or use -  UDC 

Section 4.4.4.F3 
 
General provisions for buffering and screening for non-residential uses adjacent to residential 
uses are found in UDC Section 7.7, highlighted provisions include but not limited to: 
* Landscaping or solid fencing from 6 to 8 feet in height (UDC Section 7.7.4), 
* Refuse containers located in the side or rear of the property (UDC Section 7.7.6), and  
* Screened outdoor storage (UDC Section 7.7.8.B1). 
 



Maps 
 

 
 

Location Map 
 

 
 

Aerial Map 



 

 
 

Zoning Map 
 

 
 

Future Land Use Map 



 
 

Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
 

 
 

Utility Map 



 
 

Notification Map 













 

EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2018 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 

Item 2:  Z-FY-18-11 – Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action for rezoning 
from Agricultural (AG) district to General Retail (GR) district on Lots 1 & 2, Block 5 of 
South Pointe Phase 1, 2.21 +/- acres, located on the north side of Loop 363, 
approximately 172 feet south east of its intersection with Dogwood Lane, addressed 
as 3137 & 3131 Alton Road.  

Mr. Mark Baker, Senior Planner, stated this item is scheduled to go forward to City Council for 
first reading on March 15, 2018 and second reading April 5, 2018. 

No specific use has been identified with this request. This is part of the platted South Pointe, 
Phase I, as Lots 1 & 2, Block 5. 

The zoning map is shown. GR is intended for retail and service uses, it fronts along Loop 363, 
and supports the adjacent South Pointe development. Adjacent GR is already in place.  

The Future Land Use and Character Map designates the subject property as Auto Urban 
Commercial which is identified for commercial uses, generally concentrated at intersections 
versus strip development along major roads and supports GR zoning. 

Both water and sewer from the developing South Pointe subdivision will provide utilities to 
serve the subject property.  

The Thoroughfare Plan designates Loop 363 as an Expressway so no sidewalk is required. 
There are no anticipated Transportation Capital Improvement Projects (TCIP) funded or 
scheduled through 2024. 

There are no proposed trails identified for the area. 

On site photos shown. 

Surrounding properties include the Conoco Station along Loop 363, zoned GR, to the west, 
and scattered residential uses on acreage, zoned AG, to the south. 

Aerial map shown. 

Comparison Table of uses (not all inclusive) and Development Standards for AG and GR are 
shown. 

Buffering and Screening standards would be required adjacent to residential uses: 

Per the Unified Development Code (UDC) Section 7.7.4 – Buffering: 



 

• May consist of evergreen hedges composed of five-gallon plants or larger, with a 
planted height of six-feet on 36-inch centers; 

• May consist of a six-foot to eight-foot high fence or wall, constructed by any number of 
allowed materials per UDC Section 7.7.5, such as: 

Wood, 
Masonry, 
Stone or pre-cast concrete 

Thirteen notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with two 
responses returned in agreement and zero responses returned in disagreement.  
The request is in compliance with the Future Land Use and Character Map, the Thoroughfare 
Plan, is compatible with surrounding uses and zoning, and public facilities are available to 
serve the property. 
Staff recommends approval of the request for a rezoning from AG District to GR District. 

Chair Fettig opened the public hearing. 

There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Walker made a motion to approve Item 2, Z-FY-18-11, per Staff 
recommendation and Commissioner Crisp made a second. 

Motion passed: (7:0) 
Commissioners Armstrong and Marshall absent.  



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-4903 
(Z-FY-18-11) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 
TO GENERAL RETAIL DISTRICT ON LOTS 1 & 2, BLOCK 5 OF SOUTH 
POINTE PHASE I, APPROXIMATELY 2.21 ACRES, LOCATED ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF LOOP 363, APPROXIMATELY 172 FEET SOUTH EAST OF 
ITS INTERSECTION WITH DOGWOOD LANE, ADDRESSED AS 3137 & 3131 
ALTON ROAD; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 

legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they 
are hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their 
entirety. 

 
Part 2: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to 

General Retail zoning district on lots 1 & 2, block 5 of South Pointe Phase I, approximately 
2.21 acres, located on the north side of Loop 363, approximately 172 feet south east of its 
intersection with Dogwood Lane, addressed as 3137 & 3131 Alton Road, as outlined in the 
map attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid 
by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall 
not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
 

 
 



2 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 15th day 

of March, 2018. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 
 

       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(R) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Jason Deckman, Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution amending a street use license (SUL-FY-15-02) 
to allow existing buildings and improvements both above and below ground, on Lot 3, Block 1, Golden 
Valley Subdivision, with an encroachment of 50 +/- feet that covers 0.67 of an acre into the Georgetown 
Railroad Right-of-Way.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The applicants, represented by Joe Naivar, Jr., request an amendment to the 
approved street use license (SUL-FY-15-02) to allow existing buildings, material storage, septic system, 
pavement and fence, on Lot 3, Block 1, Golden Valley Subdivision with an encroachment of 50 +/- feet 
that covers 0.67 of an acre into the Georgetown Railroad right-of-way. The applicant represents Asphalt 
Inc. LLC, d/b/a Lone Star Paving Company. The original license inadvertently only included the existing 
building encroachment, omitting the other existing encroachments. The original license was approved 
by City Council on January 8, 2016, as Resolution No. 2015-7937-R. 
 
Staff notified all utility providers, including the City of Temple Public Works Department, regarding the 
applicants’ amended street use license. There are no objections to this request.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Vicinity Map 
Original Resolution 
Survey & Field Notes 
Resolution 
 
 
  













Surveyors. GPS • GIS. Construction Layout 

RONALD 
CARROLL 
SURV~YORS,IN(. 

February 16,2018 page 1 of2 

Field notes for a SPECIFIC USE LICENSE for Mr. Joe Naviar for: 

Part of the STEPHEN FRAZIER SURVEY, Abstract Number 311, situated in the City of Temple, in 

Bell County, Texas, and embracing a portion of the tract described in the deed to the City of Temple, 

recorded in Document Number 2011-00009397 of the" Bell County Official Public Records. 

BEGINNING at 5/8 inch iron rebar found with a cap stamped "RCS INC" in the south right of way line 

of Taylor's Valley Road, being in the south line of a tract described in the deed to the State of Texas, 

Parcel 11, Tract 1, recorded in Volume 685, Page 594 ofthe Bell County Deed Records, for a westerly 

northeast comer of said City of Temple tract, formerly known as the Georgetown Railroad Company 

tract, recorded in Volume 2729, Page 515 of said Official Public Records, and being the northeast comer 

of Lot 3, Block 1 of GOLDEN VALLEY SUBDIVISION, a subdivision to the City of Temple, in Bell 

County, Texas, as it appears upon the map recorded in Plat Year 2016, Map Number 64 of the Bell 

County Plat Records, for the northeast comer of a tract described in the deed to Asphalt, Inc., recorded in 

Document Number 2018-00000469 of said Official Public Records, also being 100 feet northerly and 

parallel to the Track Center of said former Georgetown Railroad Company. 

Thence south 23 degrees-52 minutes-15 seconds west 50-0/1 0 feet to a calculated point being in a line 50 

feet northerly and parallel to said Track Center of the Georgetown Railroad Company and City of 

Temple tract. 

Thence north 66 degrees-07 minuutes-45 seconds west (along a line 50 feet northerly and parallel to said 

Track Center of the Georgetown Railroad Company and City of Temple tract, 588-95/100 feet to a 
calculated point. 

Thence north 26 degrees-08 minutes-45 seconds east 50-05/1 00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rebar found with a 

cap stamped "RCS INC" in the north line of said City of Temple and Georgetown Railroad Company 

tracts, being 100 feet northerly and parallel to said Track Center, for the southeast comer of Lot 2, in said 

Block 1 and the southeast comer of a tract described in the deed to Peerless Group, LLC., recorded in 

Document Number 2018-00000468 of said Official Public Records, for the southwest comer of said Lot 

3, in Block 1 and Asphalt, Inc. tract. 

Thence south 66 degrees-07 minutes-45 seconds east (plat call) along the north line of said City of 

Temple and Georgetown Railroad Company tracts, being 100 feet northerly and parallel to said Track 

Center of the Railroad, for the south line of said Lot 3, Block 1 and Asphalt, Inc. tract, 588-95/100 feet to 

the place of BEGINNING and containing 0-67/100 of an acre, as surveyed. 

5302 S. 31St Street. Temple, Texas. 76502 
(254) 773-1447. Fax (254) 773-1728. info@rcsurveyors.com 

www.rcsurveyors.com • TBPLS Firm No.1 0028400 



February 16,2018 Page 2 of2 

Field notes for a SPECIFIC USE LICENSE for Mr. Joe Naviar for: (continued) 

The basis of bearings was taken from the Texas State Plane Coordinate System, Central Zone, NAD83 

Datum, as obtained by GPS observations, and referenced to the LEICA SMARTNET NETWORK of 

NORTH AMERICA Base Station "TXTC" at Temple College, in Temple, Texas. 

See attached 11 inch by 17 inch sketch that accompanies these field notes. 

Compiled February 15,2018. 

Ronald Carroll, RPLS 2025 

Vice President 

S:jobs 13041 Golden Valley Sub draft fn Specific Use License Lot 3 Naivar 021318 

5302 S. 3]'1 Street. Temple, Texas. 76502 
(254) 773-1447. Fax (254) 773-1728. info@rcsurveyors.com 

www.rcsurveyors.com • TBPLS Firm No.1 0028400 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9096-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING A STREET USE LICENSE TO ALLOW EXISTING 
BUILDINGS AND IMPROVEMENTS BOTH ABOVE AND BELOW 
GROUND, ON LOT 3, BLOCK 1, GOLDEN VALLEY SUBDIVISION, WITH 
AN ENCROACHMENT OF APPROXIMATELY 50 FEETINTO THE 
GEORGETOWN RAILROAD RIGHT OF WAY; PROVIDING FOR THE 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS LICENSE; PROVIDING FOR 
COMPENSATION; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 

Whereas, the applicants, represented by Joe Naivar, Jr., have requested an amendment to 
the approved street use license approved by City Council on November 5, 2015 by Resolution 
No. 2015-7937-R which allowed existing buildings, material storage, septic system, pavement 
and fence on Lot 3, Block 1, Golden Valley Subdivision with an encroachment of approximately 
50 feet that covers 0.67 of an acre into the Georgetown Railroad right-of-way; 
 

Whereas, the applicants represent Asphalt Inc., LLC d/b/a Lone Star Paving Company 
and the original license inadvertently included only the existing building encroachment, omitting 
the other existing encroachments; 

 
 Whereas, Staff has notified all utility providers, including the City of Temple Public 
Works Department regarding the applicants’ amended street use license and there are no 
objections to this request; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council amends Resolution Number 2015-7937-R which granted a 
Street Use License which only allowed for existing buildings, material storage, septic system, 
pavement and fence on Lot 3, Block 1, Golden Valley Subdivision with an encroachment of 
approximately 50 feet that covers 0.67 of an acre into the Georgetown Railroad right-of-way to 
now include other existing encroachments as outlined in Exhibit ‘A’ attached hereto and made a 
part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act.  



2 
 

 
 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

04/05/18 
Item #5(S) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Floyd Mitchell, Chief of Police 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution rescinding Resolution No. 94-656-R, which was 
passed and approved on February 17, 1994 and established a Police Reserve Unit for the Temple 
Police Department.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  There are currently no members of the Reserve Unit and membership in the past 
10 years has dwindled to there being only an occasional Reserve Officer in the Unit.  The Department 
finds it is no longer in the public interest to put forth the resources required to recruit, equip, manage, 
and maintain training on persons in a Reserve Unit.  

FISCAL IMPACT: There will be nominal savings in required equipment costs due to the elimination of 
the Police Reserve Unit for the Temple Police Department. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution No. 94-656-R
Resolution 



































 RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9097-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 94-656-R APPROVED BY COUNCIL ON 
FEBRUARY 17, 1994 AND WHICH ESTABLISHED A POLICE RESERVE UNIT 
FOR THE TEMPLE POLICE DEPARTMENT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on February 17, 1994, Council approved Resolution No. 94-656-R which 
established a Police Reserve Unit for the Temple Police Department; 
 

Whereas, currently, there are no members of the Reserve Unit and membership in the past 
10 years has dwindled, with there being only an occasional Reserve Officer in the Unit; 
 

Whereas, the Department finds it is no longer in the public interest to put forth the resources 
required to recruit, equip, manage, and maintain training on persons in a Reserve Unit; 
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council rescind Resolution No. 94-656-R, approved on 
February 17, 1994 which established a Police Reserve Unit for the Temple Police Department; 
 

Whereas, there will be nominal savings in required equipment costs due to the elimination of 
the Police Reserve Unit for the Temple Police Department; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved and 
incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 

Part 2: The City Council rescinds Resolution No. 94-656-R, approved on February 17, 1994 
which established a Police Reserve Unit for the Temple Police Department. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution 
was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose 
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 

Item #5(T) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Brynn Myers, City Manager 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution revising the City of Temple Housing Improvement 
Program Guidelines and authorizing the City Manager to waive permitting fees related to the program. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description.                              
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  In response to needs identified in the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
Program 2015 Need’s Assessment, Council approved the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan in August, 
2015. The Plan outlined a Housing Improvement Program, which focused on owner-occupied housing 
rehabilitation to further the availability of safe, affordable, and decent housing for low to moderate 
income residents.  
The purpose of the program is to focus on homes that: 

• Need repairs or renovation to become safe, sanitary, secure, and/or fit for human habitation, 
and/or 

• Need accessibility accommodations for elderly, sight, or mobility impaired household members.  
 

Council approved the current Housing Improvement Program Guidelines July 7, 2016. The proposed 
changes to the Housing Improvement Program Guidelines will enhance the ability of the City to affect 
positive change in the community by streamlining the application process and removing burdensome 
requirements on the homeowner/applicant. The proposed changes are to: 

• Remove the requirement for the homeowner to repay 10% of the cost of repair or accessibility 
accommodation and execute a deed of trust/promissory note in favor of the City; 

• Remove the requirement for the homeowner to have and maintain homeowner’s insurance; 
• Make placing a lien on the property discretionary rather than mandatory, to be determined based 

on the value of the improvements made to the property, and make any lien placed on the 
property forgivable in a percentage amount for each year of the life of the lien 

 
As the proposed changes are to the benefit of the homeowner/applicant, Staff recommends that these 
revisions be applied retroactively to the currently pending application pool. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The program will be funded through CDBG grant funding as the funds are available. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Housing Improvement Program Guidelines – to be provided 
Resolution  
 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9098-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, REVISING THE CITY OF TEMPLE HOUSING IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM GUIDELINES AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
WAIVE PERMIT FEES RELATED TO THE PROGRAM; AND PROVIDING 
AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 

 Whereas, in response to needs identified in the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Program 2015 Need’s Assessment, Council approved the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan 
(Plan) in August, 2015; 
 
 Whereas, the Plan outlined a Housing Improvement Program, which focused on owner-
occupied housing rehabilitation to further the availability of safe, affordable, and decent housing 
for low to moderate income residents;  
 
 Whereas, the purpose of the program is to focus on homes that: 
 

• need repairs or renovation to become safe, sanitary, secure, and/or fit for human 
habitation; and/or 

• need accessibility accommodations for elderly, sight, or mobility impaired household 
members; 

 
Whereas, Council approved the current Housing Improvement Program Guidelines July 

7, 2016 - the proposed changes will enhance the ability of the City to affect positive change in 
the community by streamlining the application process and removing burdensome requirements 
on the homeowner/applicant;   

 
Whereas, the proposed changes are to: 
 

• Remove the requirement for the homeowner to repay 10% of the cost of repair or 
accessibility accommodation and execute a deed of trust/promissory note in favor 
of the City; 

• Remove the requirement for the homeowner to have and maintain homeowner’s 
insurance; and 

• Make placing a lien on the property discretionary rather than mandatory, to be 
determined based on the value of the improvements made to the property, and 
make any lien placed on the property forgivable in a percentage amount for each 
year of the life of the lien; 
 

 Whereas, the program will be funded through CDBG grant funding as the funds are 
available; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 
 



2 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 
 Part 2: The City Council revises the City of Temple Housing Improvement Program 
Guidelines, as set forth in Exhibit A, attached to this Resolution and incorporated herein for all 
purposes and authorizes the City Manager to waive permitting fees related to the program. 

 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 



 

   
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

04/05/18 
Item #5(U) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal year 
2017-2018. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: This item is to recommend various budget amendments, based on the adopted 
FY 2017-2018 budget. The amendments will involve transfers of funds between contingency 
accounts, department and fund levels. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The total amount of budget amendments is $10,800. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Budget Amendments 
Resolution 
 

  



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2018 BUDGET

April 5, 2018

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

110-3224-551-2514 Other Services / Travel & Training 3,600$           
110-0000-445-2102 Sammons Indoor Pool / Indoor Pool Classes/Fees 3,600$           

520-1300-515-1119 Salaries / Overtime 5,000$           
520-1300-515-2333 Repair & Maintenance / Auto & Equipment 1,200$           
520-1300-515-2615 Contracted Services / Equipment Rental/Lease 1,000$           
520-5000-535-6532 Capital - Special Project / Contingency Fund 7,200$           

To appropriate contingency funds to the Purchasing Department supported by
Water/Wastewater Fund for overtime, repairs & maintenance, and equipment rental/lease.

Purchasing's warehouse staff has experienced more call backs in the current fiscal year as
compared to previous fiscal years thus resulting in an increase in overtime hours.  

The department has also had several maintenance issued related to their 2001 Komastsu
forklift (asset # 11144). The issues have resulted in higher than anticipated repairs &
maintenance costs, as well as the need for a rental forklift to continue operational functions
while the City's forklift was being repaired.

TOTAL AMENDMENTS 10,800$         10,800$         

GENERAL FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                   
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                     
Carry forward from Prior Year -                     
Taken From Contingency -                     
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                   

Beginning Judgments & Damages Contingency 25,182$         
Added to Contingency Judgments & Damages from Council Contingency -                     
Taken From Judgments & Damages (25,000)          
Net Balance of Judgments & Damages Contingency Account 182$              

Beginning Compensation Contingency 343,000$       
Added to Compensation Contingency -                     
Taken From Compensation Contingency (343,000)        
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                   

Net Balance Council Contingency 182$              

Beginning Balance Budget Sweep Contingency -$                   
Added to Budget Sweep Contingency -                     
Taken From Budget Sweep -                     
Net Balance of Budget Sweep Contingency Account -$                   

WATER & SEWER FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 65,000$         
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                     
Taken From Contingency (12,084)          
Net Balance of Contingency Account 52,916$         

Beginning Compensation Contingency 63,000$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                     
Taken From Compensation Contingency (63,000)          
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                   

Net Balance Water & Sewer Fund Contingency 52,916$         

To appropriate anticipated revenues and expenditures related to Red Cross Lifeguard
Certification program. It is estimated there will be 100 students participate in the certification
program.

1



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2018 BUDGET

April 5, 2018

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                   
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                     
Carry forward from Prior Year -                     
Taken From Contingency -                     
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                   

Beginning Compensation Contingency 19,000$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                     
Taken From Compensation Contingency (19,000)          
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                   

Net Balance Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Contingency -$                   

DRAINAGE FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 807,065$       
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                     
Carry forward from Prior Year -                     
Taken From Contingency (694,864)        
Net Balance of Contingency Account 112,201$       

Beginning Compensation Contingency 12,500$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                 
Taken From Compensation Contingency (12,500)          
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                   

Net Balance Drainage Fund Contingency 112,201$       

FED/STATE GRANT FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                   
Carry forward from Prior Year 39,299           
Added to Contingency Sweep Account 6,926             
Taken From Contingency (37,343)          

Net Balance Fed/State Grant Fund Contingency 8,882$           

2



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9099-R 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENTS TO THE 
2017-2018 CITY BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, on the 25th day of August, 2017, the City Council approved a budget 
for the 2017-2018 fiscal year; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council deems it in the public interest to make certain 
amendments to the 2017-2018 City Budget. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and 
correct legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, 
Texas, and they are hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution 
as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council approves amending the 2017-2018 City Budget by 
adopting the budget amendments which are more fully described in Exhibit ‘A,’ 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 
  
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
             

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPARTMENT / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Jason Deckman, Planner 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing approval of a dual street name of 
West Avenue A /Santa Fe Way on a section of West Avenue A between South 3rd Street and South 
11th Street in the City of Temple, Bell County, Texas. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Based on the following, staff recommends approval for the dual naming 
of West Avenue A / Santa Fe Way: 
 

1. Per the Street Naming Policy adopted on October 1, 2015: “Parks, facilities, or streets may 
be named for a location, such as the name of the adjacent street or the related plat or 
subdivision.” 

2. The related subdivisions named “Santa Fe Plaza West” and “Santa Fe Plaza West Phase II”. 
 

ITEM SUMMARY: The City Manager received a request from David Blackburn, President of the Temple 
Economic Development Corporation (TEDC), to dual name West Avenue A / Santa Fe Way. The Santa 
Fe Plaza project, expected to be complete this summer, features two new office buildings. The Temple 
Chamber of Commerce and TEDC will share one building; the other will house the Administrative offices 
of the Temple Independent School District (TISD). 
 
If this request is approved by City Council, current addresses on West Avenue A between South 3rd 
Street and South 11th Street will remain effective and therefore, should not impact mail delivery or 9-1-
1 emergency services. 
 
Assigning a dual name to this segment of West Avenue A allows TEDC, TISD, and other tenants to 
advertise a ‘Santa Fe Way’ address, which will connect with branding and marketing efforts.  
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: If approved, eight properties owned by the City will be affected. No private owners 
of the existing properties will be impacted. Courtesy letters were sent on March 20, 2018 to the future 
tenants of Santa Fe Plaza to make them aware of the new street name and building addresses.  
 
 
 
 

 



04/05/18 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Exhibit A 
Resolution 2015-7889-R 
Notification Letter (example) 
Resolution 
 
  





























1 
 

  
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9700-R 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING APPROVAL OF A DUAL STREET NAME OF 
WEST AVENUE A / SANTA FE WAY ON A SECTION OF WEST AVENUE 
A BETWEEN SOUTH 3RD STREET AND SOUTH 11TH STREET IN THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City Manager received a request from David Blackburn, President of the 
Temple Economic Development Corporation (TEDC) to dual name West Avenue A / Santa Fe 
Way; 
 

Whereas, the Santa Fe Plaza project, expected to be complete this summer, features two 
new office buildings – the Temple Chamber of Commerce and TEDC will share one building 
and the other will house the administrative offices of the Temple Independent School District 
(TISD); 

 
Whereas, assigning a dual name to this segment of W. Avenue A allows TEDC, TISD, 

and other tenants to advertise a ‘Santa Fe Way’ address, which will connect with branding and 
marketing efforts; 
 

Whereas, current addresses on West Avenue A between South 3rd Street and South 11th 
Street will remain effective and therefore, should not impact mail delivery or 9-1-1 emergency 
services;   
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends approval of a dual street name of West Avenue A / Santa Fe 
Way on a section of West Avenue A between South 3rd Street and South 11th Street in the City of 
Temple, Bell County, Texas based on the following information: 
 

1. Per the Street Naming Policy adopted on October 1, 2015: “Parks, facilities, or streets 
may be named for a location, such as the name of the adjacent street or the related 
plat or subdivision;” and 

2. The related subdivision names are “Santa Fe Plaza West” and “Santa Fe Plaza West 
Phase II; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
  



2 
 

 
 

Part 2:  The City Council dually names West Avenue A / Santa Fe Way on a section of 
West Avenue A between South 3rd Street and South 11th Street in the City of Temple, Bell 
County, Texas. 
 
 Part 3:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for the dual 
naming of this street. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

  
04/05/18 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2  

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 
2206.053 finding that a 0.639-acre permanent easement situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, 
Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas is necessary for the construction of the Charter Oak Water Line and 
authorizing the use of eminent domain to condemn the property. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City is in the design phase for the proposed construction of the Charter Oak 
Water Line. The design requires the acquisition of a 0.639-acre permanent easement situated in the 
Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, for the construction of the water line with 
its necessary appurtenances under Chapter 251, Local Government Code § 251.001.  A survey and 
legal description of the property needed are included with the Resolution attached to this memorandum. 

An appraisal was performed on the property and the City made an offer to purchase the necessary 
easement, based on the appraisal, on May 31, 2016 via Lone Star Right of Way Services, Inc. (Lone 
Star).  The City and property owner were able to reach an agreement.  In anticipation of closing, Lone 
Star had the title company update the title commitment. However, it was discovered that a Federal Tax 
Lien was placed on the property in February 2018 in amount that exceeds the agreed upon value of 
the easement.  Therefore, to acquire the easement, the City must proceed to condemnation.  A final 
offer was sent to the property owner on March 22, 2018.  The owner has 14 days to respond, as required 
by the Texas Property Code.   

Accordingly, Staff is asking pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053, for the City 
Council to authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire the easement legally described 
as being 0.639-acre situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, located 
along the Gulf, Colorado & Santa Fe Railroad, Temple, Texas, Bell County Appraisal District ID Number 
5115. 

 

 
 
 

 
 



04/05/18 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the purchase of the 0.639-acre permanent easement necessary for the 
construction of the Charter Oak Water Line is appropriated in account 520-5900-535-6110, project 
#100608. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Legal Description  
Resolution 
 

  







1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9101-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, FINDING THAT AN APPROXIMATELY 0.639-ACRE 
PERMANENT EASEMENT SITUATED IN THE NANCY CHANCE 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 5, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, IS NECESSARY 
FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE CHARTER OAK WATER LINE; 
AUTHORIZING THE USE OF EMINENT DOMAIN TO CONDEMN THE 
PROPERTY; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City is currently in the design phase for the proposed construction of 
the Charter Oak Water Line and the design requires the acquisition of an approximately 
0.639-acre permanent easement situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell 
County, Texas - the easement is necessary for the construction of the water line with its 
necessary appurtenances under Chapter 251, Local Government Code § 251.001; 
 
 Whereas, an appraisal was performed on the property and the City made an offer to 
purchase the necessary easement based on the appraisal on May 31, 2016, via Lone Star 
Right of Way Services, Inc. (“Lone Star”), and the City and property owner were unable to 
reach an agreement; 
 
  Whereas, in anticipation of closing, Lone Star had the title company update the title 
commitment and it was discovered that a Federal Tax Lien was placed on the property in 
February 2018 in an amount that exceeds the agreed upon value of the easement; 
 
 Whereas, therefore, to acquire the easement, the City must proceed to condemnation, 
and a final offer was sent to the property owner on March 22, 2018 - the owner has 14 days 
to respond, as required by the Texas Property Code;   
 
 Whereas, Staff is requesting, pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 
2206.053, that Council authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire the 
easement legally described as being approximately 0.639 acre situated in the Nancy Chance 
Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, located along the Gulf, Colorado & Santa Fe 
Railroad, Temple, Texas, Bell County Appraisal District ID Number 5115; 
 

Whereas, funding for the purchase of the above property is appropriated in Account 
No. 520-5900-535-6110, Project No. 100608; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their 
entirety. 
 



2 
 

 
 

Part 2: The City Council hereby finds and determines that the necessity exists for 
acquiring, by eminent domain, an approximately 0.639-acre easement, situated in the Nancy 
Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, located along the Gulf, Colorado & 
Santa Fe Railroad, Temple, Texas, Bell County Appraisal District ID Number 5115. 
 

Part 3: The City Council hereby finds and determines that the construction of the 
Charter Oak Water Line is a public use under Chapter 251, Local Government Code § 
251.001(a)(1). 
 

Part 4: The City Council authorizes the use of the City’s eminent domain authority 
under Article 3, Section 3.6, of the Charter of the City of Temple and the initiation of 
condemnation proceedings of said property interests. 
 
 Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act and the 
Truth in Condemnation Act, Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva P.E., Public Works Director 
Kenny Henderson, Director of Transportation  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 
establishing a speed limit of 45 miles per hour from the 5100 block of South 5th Street to the 6400 of 
South 5th Street. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinance as presented in item description, with second and final 
reading on April 19, 2018. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: In the past decade the residential community has grown along South 5th Street 
between Waters Dairy and Farm to Market Road 93. With approximately 1,100 homes plus homes still 
to come, this has greatly increased the traffic along South 5th Street and the number of connecting 
intersections. Staff is recommending a speed limit reduction from 50 miles per hour to 45 miles per 
hour along South 5th Street from the 5100 block to the 6400 block. The Transportation Division 
conducted a speed study in the area mentioned and found the 85-percentile speed to be 53 miles per 
hour. 
     
FISCAL IMPACT:   None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Map 
Ordinance 
 
 
 
  



S 
31

ST
 ST

LO
W

E S
DR

WATERS DAIRY RD

W FM 93

S 5TH ST

WYNDHAM HILL PKWY

E BLACKLAND RD

MARLANDWOOD RD

HA
RT

RI
CK

BL
UF

FR
D

CANYON CREEK DR

WINCHESTER DR

:
GIS products are for informational purposes and may not have
been prepared for, or be suitable for, legal, engineering, or
surveying purposes. They do not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represent only the approximate relative location of
property boundaries and other features.

City of Temple

Pub lic Works

Dominique Lucio
Mapping/GIS

3/26/2018
South 5th Street Speed Reduction Request

Legend
Proposed 45 MPH

Speed Reduction Location



 
 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-4904 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, ESTABLISHING THE PRIMA FACIE SPEED LIMIT FROM THE 
5100 BLOCK OF SOUTH 5TH STREET TO THE 6400 BLOCK OF SOUTH 5TH 
STREET, WITHIN TEMPLE CITY LIMITS; PROVIDING A REPEALER; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY FOR VIOLATIONS NOT TO EXCEED $500 
FOR EACH VIOLATION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING 
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

               
 
 Whereas, in the past decade, the residential community has grown along South 5th Street 
between Waters Dairy and Farm to Market Road 93 with approximately 1,100 homes plus homes 
still to come; 
 
 Whereas, this growth has greatly increased the traffic along South 5th Street and the 
number of connecting intersections; 
 
 Whereas, Staff believes that it is necessary to reduce the speed limit in this area from 50 
miles per hour to 45 miles per hour in the following area: 
 

• from the 5100 block of South 5th Street to the 6400 block of South 5th Street; 
 
 Whereas, the Transportation Division conducted a speed study in this area and found the 
85-percentile speed to be 53 miles per hour; 
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council reduce the speed limit from the 5100 block of South 
5th street to the 6400 block of South 5th Street from 50 miles per hour to 45 miles per hour; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
approve this prima facie speed limit for the benefit of the citizens for the promotion of the public 
health, welfare, and safety. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council finds that the reasonable and prudent prima facie maximum 
speed limit for vehicular traffic from the 5100 block of South 5th Street to the 6400 block of 
South 5th Street, is 45 mph. 

 
Part 3: It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate a motor vehicle, bicycle, or 

other vehicle of any kind, whether or not motor powered, on that portion of the roadways 
described above under the conditions described herein, at a speed greater than is reasonable and  



 
 2 

 
 
prudent under the circumstances then existing, but any speed in excess of the reasonable and 
prudent prima facie maximum speed limits as set forth in Part 2 hereof shall be prima facie 
evidence that such speed is not reasonable or prudent and that it is unlawful. 

 
Part 4: All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 
 
Part 5: A person who violates a provision of this Ordinance is guilty of a separate offense 

for each day or portion of a day which the offense is committed, continued, or permitted, and 
each offense is punishable by a fine not to exceed $500. 
 

Part 6: If any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

Part 7: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly 
so ordained. 
 

Part 8: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading on the 5th day of April, 2018. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 19th day of April, 2018. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
_______________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________   ______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Lynn Barrett, Assistant Planning Director  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-18-13: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from General Retail to Planned Development Multi-Family Three with 
a site development plan on 4.203 +/- acres for a five-story apartment building situated on Lot 5, Block 
1,Temple Mall Addition Replat No. 1, addressed as 1210 Azalea Drive. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of Z-FY-18-13 rezoning the subject 
property from GR to PD-MF-3 for a five-story, 140 unit apartment building with the following conditions: 
 
PD Conditions: 

1. Substantial compliance with the attached development/site plan including Azalea sidewalk 
2. Provide a landscaped area exceeding 20% (approximately 37,000 square feet) with 79 trees 

and 316 bushes; 50% to be from medium/large list (exceeds requirements of 5% landscaping) 
3. A 10 foot landscaped buffer yard along the frontage with Azalea  
4. Building elevations would substantially comply with submitted plans 
5. Changes to the development site plan related to drainage considerations for site approval at the 

building permit stage would not be considered a substantial change  
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At their March 5th, 2018 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted eight to zero to recommend approval of the rezoning and 
development site plan to PD MF-3 per staff’s recommendation.    
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Ace Reneau, on behalf of the owner Temple Mall LLC, requests a rezoning from 
General Retail on a portion of the undeveloped back portion of the Temple Mall property that was 
recently re-platted creating the subject lot. Through a PD MF-3, the applicant is proposing an apartment 
building of five stories with pool and resident plaza, with surrounding parking on three sides. Due to its 
shape, the property presents challenges relating to buffering the parking area, which are offset by the 
additional landscaping offered. There will be a mix of one and two bedroom units for a total of 140 
included in the project. Amenities include a swimming pool and resident plaza. Full water, sewer and 
drainage plans would be reviewed by staff at the building permit stage. Due to changes in development 
patterns away from huge retail shopping malls, staff believes this an appropriate use for the property.   
 

 
 



04/05/18 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
Four egress points would be provided: two onto Azalea Drive and two into the adjacent mall property 
having additional outlets onto the Loop, 31st Street and Lowes Drive. Additional traffic analysis shows 
the peak hour trip figures for an apartment building and a shopping center, with a shopping center 
generating considerably more traffic.  For example, per the included International Transportation 

 
Engineer trip generation rates for the 140 units, peak hour trips would be calculated at 81, which is the 
equivalent number of trips to a 16,000 square foot shopping center. The development has two access 
points to Azalea Drive and two internal access points to the Temple Mall property which lead to Lowes 
Drive and to the Loop. Access concerns could be addressed in the future with a potential driveway 
connection to an unimproved adjacent Right of Way that intersects Lowes Drive.  
 
The applicant, Mr. Reneau, and owner, Temple Mall LLC, represented by Hal Thorne and Kirk Wilson, 
met with planning and legal staff and the City Manager on March 21st to discuss a realignment proposal 
for the western side of Azalea Drive, which is currently privately owned. The attendees gave a verbal 
commitment to dedicating Right-of-Way to the city to reconfigure Azalea Drive from 31st Street 
extending to the current city ROW. A depiction of the proposal is included with the report attachments. 
 
Per UDC, Section 3.4.3 & 3.4.4, a Planned Development requires approval of a Development/Site plan 
that is binding.  
 
On January 19, 2018, the DRC met to discuss the proposal.  
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the property, 
Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 

 
Direction 

 
FLUP 

 
Zoning 

 
Current Land Use 

Subject 
Property  

Auto Urban Commercial    GR    Undeveloped 

North  Auto Urban Commercial  PD C and PD 
GR 

Undeveloped and Mall 

South  Auto Urban Commercial;  GR  Undeveloped  

East  Auto Urban Commercial   PD C Undeveloped 

West  Auto Urban Commercial GR Retail/Mall  

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 



04/05/18 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map 

 

Compliant? 

CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Partial 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
Auto Urban Commercial is the dominant future land use for this area. The Choices ’08 City of Temple 
Comprehensive Plan states that the Auto Urban Commercial character district is suited for commercial 
development with larger sites predominating. The PD provides an alternative use for an aging 
undeveloped corner of existing developed commercial property and would reflect the general 
movement away from large, concentrated mall shopping centers. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) and Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalk Ordinance 
The applicant proposes to construct a sidewalk along Azalea. It is not near the trails master plan area. 
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Water and sewer are available through several potential connections. Details of public facilities and 
extensions will be addressed during the permitting process.    
 
UDC, Section 3.4 Planned Development  
A Planned Development is defined as: 

“A flexible overlay zoning district designed to respond to unique development proposals, special 
design considerations and land use transitions by allowing evaluation of land use relationships 
to surrounding areas through development plan approval.”  

 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The development site plan will provide the development and 
dimensional standards for this development.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



04/05/18 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Six notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent out to 
property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City Ordinance.  
As of Wednesday March 21, 2018, one notice has been returned in favor of the proposed rezoning 
(property owners) Additionally Temple ISD has returned a notice in favor of this development; and 
zero notices have been returned in opposition to the proposed rezoning. The newspaper printed the 
notice of the public hearing on February  8, 2017, in accordance with state law and local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Aerial Map 
Location Map  
Site Plans 
Azalea Drive reconfiguration 
Plat 
Zoning Map 
Future Land Use Map 
Traffic Work sheet 
Returned Notices 
Ordinance



LO
W
ES

 D
R

AZALEA DR

MALL DR

P
R
IV
A
TE

 D
R

3111

3401

3112

1210

3100

3116

3350

605

3401

1506

3115

3351

3403

3107

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-18-13

GR TO PD MF-3

Address :
1210 Azalea Dr

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 2/6/2018

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcel Features
Parcels

Production.SDE.Easement



LO
W
ES

 D
R

AZALEA DR

MALL DR

P
R
IV
A
TE

 D
R

3111

3401

3112

1210

3100

3116

3350

605

3401

1506

3115

3351

3403

3107

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-18-13

GR TO PD MF-3

Address :
1210 Azalea Dr

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 2/6/2018

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcel Features
Parcels

Production.SDE.Easement

























Zoning Map

 



Date: 2/6/20183405

3403

605

3115

3350

3351

3401

3303

3116

3100

1506

3112

3111

1210

3107

3401

P
R
IV
A
TE

 D
R

MALL DR

AZALEA DR

LO
W
ES

 D
R

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-18-13

GR TO PD MF-3

Address :
1210 Azalea Dr

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 2/6/2018
 lrbarrett

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

Transportation
EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcel Features
Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

Production.SDE.Easement



lrbarrett
Highlight

lrbarrett
Highlight







1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-4905 
(Z-FY-18-13) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM GENERAL RETAIL TO PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT MULTI-FAMILY THREE, WITH A SITE DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN ON APPROXIMATELY 4.203 ACRES FOR A FIVE-STORY APARTMENT 
BUILDING SITUATED ON LOT 5, BLOCK 1, TEMPLE MALL ADDITION, 
REPLAT NO. 1, AND ADDRESSED AS 1210 AZALEA DRIVE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, Ace Reneau, on behalf of the owner Temple Mall LLC, requests a rezoning from 
General Retail zoning district to Planned Development Multi-Family Three on a portion of the 
undeveloped back portion of the Temple Mall property that was recently re-platted creating the 
subject lot; 

 
Whereas, with Planned Development Multi-Family Three, the applicant is proposing an 

apartment building of five stories with a pool and resident plaza, with surrounding parking on three 
sides - due to its shape, the property presents challenges relating to buffering the parking area, which 
are offset by the additional landscaping offered; 

 
Whereas, there will be a mix of one and two bedroom units for a total of 140 units included 

in the project - amenities include a swimming pool and resident plaza; 
 

Whereas, the development has two access points to Azalea Drive and two internal access 
points to the Temple Mall property which lead to Lowes Drive and to the Loop - access concerns 
could be addressed in the future with a potential driveway connection to an unimproved adjacent 
Right of Way that intersects Lowes Drive; 

 
Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 

consideration of the conditions, recommends approval of the rezoning and Site Development Plan 
from General Retail Zoning District to Planned Development Multi-Family Three Zoning District, 
on approximately 4.203 acres situated on lot 5, block 1, Temple Mall Addition, Replat No. 1, 
addressed as 1210 Azalea Drive, Temple, Texas; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, after public notice as required by 

law, has at a public hearing, carefully considered all the evidence submitted by the applicant 
concerning the proposed plans for this tract of land, and has heard the comments and evidence 
presented by all persons supporting or opposing this application at said public hearing, and after 
examining the conditions, operation and the location of said property, finds that the proposed use of 
the property substantially complies with the comprehensive plan and the area plan adopted by the 
City Council. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 

TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 

 



2 
 

 
Part 2: The City Council approves a rezoning from General Retail Zoning District to 

Planned Development Multi-Family Three Zoning District, on approximately 4.203 acres of a five-
story apartment building situated on lot 5, block 1, Temple Mall Addition, Replat No. 1, addressed 
as 1210 Azalea Drive, Temple, Texas, as more thoroughly described by the site development plan 
attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes along with the following 
conditions:  

 
1. Substantial compliance with the attached development/site plan including Azalea Drive 

sidewalk; 
2. Provide a landscaped area exceeding 20% (approximately 37,000 square feet) with 79 trees 

and 316 bushes; 50% to be from medium/large list (exceeds requirements of 5% 
landscaping); 

3. A 10-foot landscaped buffer yard along the frontage with Azalea Drive; 
4. Building elevations would substantially comply with submitted plans; and 
5. Changes to the development site plan related to drainage considerations for site approval at 

the building permit stage would not be considered a substantial change. 
 

Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary changes to 
the City Zoning Map. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance of any 
such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 

 
Part 5: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly so 
ordained. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance 

was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose 
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 5th day of April, 

2018. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 19th day of April, 2018. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

           
____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Mark Baker, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-18-15: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing rezoning from Agricultural to General Retail proposed for 3 +/- acres and Multiple-
Family Dwelling 1 proposed for 1 +/- acre, located on the eastside of State Highway 317, approximately 
1,100 feet south of its intersection with Hogan Road, addressed as 5701 State Highway 317. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from AG to NS district, of the 
three western-most acres and keeping the eastern one acre AG for the following reasons: 
 

1. The location and acreage of the proposed NS zoning is compatible with surrounding zoning, 
existing and anticipated  uses as well as future growth trends in the area; 

2. Existing residential uses will be buffered and screened from all non-residential uses at the 
common borders between the NS & Agriculturally-zoned property or the NS & residentially used 
or zoned property; 

3. The proposal is in compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 
4. Public facilities are currently available to serve the subject property as a three employee office.   

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION DISCUSSION: During the March 5, 2018 Planning & Zoning 
Commission meeting, concerns were discussed about the following: 

1. Traffic and access to the project site from SH 317; 
2. Expansion and timing of upgrades to existing utilities beyond a three employee office use; and 
3. Undesired impacts associated with potential multi-family & non-residential uses fronting along 

SH 317. 
 
As a result of the above discussion items, the applicant agreed to table the request until the March 19, 
2018 Planning & Zoning Commission meeting and meet with staff to discuss options. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



04/05/18 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
On March 13, 2018, staff met with the applicant to discuss options and alternatives. The applicant and 
staff are in agreement to proceed with Neighborhood Service (NS) instead of General Retail (GR) and 
withdraw the one acre of MF-1 from the request, effectively reducing the request from four acres to 
three acres all of which would be for NS. Additionally, the buffer has been increased by a distance of 
approximately 176 feet between the NS-zoned-portion of the property and the adjacent residential 
property, for a total distance of 327 feet. The attached surveyor sketch and field notes reflect the 
boundary of the three acres and be attached as Exhibit A of the ordinance, if the rezoning is approved  
by City Council. As presented at the March 5, 2018 Planning & Zoning Commission meeting and 
discussed later in this report, a 4/5th vote by City Council is still required even though the request has 
been revised. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their March 19, 2018 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted six to zero to recommend approval per staff’s recommendation 
for NS on the three western-most acres of the subject property.  
   
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicants, Michael Allen & Cy Long,  initially requested rezoning of 4.00 +/- 
acres from Agricultural (AG) zoning district to a combination of three acres for General Retail (GR) and 
one acre of Multiple-Family 1 (MF-1) zoning districts. The MF-1 would have allowed up to 15 dwelling 
units per acre.  As a result of discussion at the March 5, 2018 Planning & Zoning Commission and 
subsequent agreement between the applicant and Planning staff, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommended approval from AG to NS for the three western-most acres of the subject property.  
 
The applicant proposes to use current structures for non-residential uses within the current confines of 
the existing septic system. Expansion will require review of a subdivision plat and evaluation of whether 
utilities need to be upgraded and/or extended. 
 
While TxDOT has been notified of the rezoning, no formal response has been received by staff.  A 
TxDOT permit however, to widen the existing 16-foot driveway to 24 feet wide, was issued to the 
applicant on November 1, 2017.  
 
BUFFERING & SCREENING:  Per UDC Section 7.7.4, buffering and screening standards apply along 
the common boundary between nonresidential and an agricultural use or residential zoning district or 
use. Standards are more detailed on the attached table. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: Compliance to goals, objectives or maps of the 
Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan are summarized by the attached Comprehensive 
Plan Compliance table but further described below: 
 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is split by two Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designations, the Suburban 
Commercial and the Suburban Residential designations. The Suburban Commercial designation is 
appropriate for office and retail service uses and supports Office 1 (O-1), Office 2 (O-2) and 
Neighborhood Service (NS) zoning designations. Therefore, the requested rezoning is in compliance 
with the Future Land Map. 
 
 

 



04/05/18 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access from State Highway 317 (SH 317), an arterial street. While TxDOT 
improvements are on-going, the state was notified of the proposed rezoning and no comments have 
been received. TxDOT improvements include a 10-foot sidewalk on the east side of SH 317.  According 
to TxDOT, the SH 317 improvements include widening from two lanes to four lanes with, two lanes in 
each direction, with a raised center median. Specifically related to this rezoning, median breaks will be 
provided at Hogan Road, Oak Hills Road and Poison Oak Road.  A plan view section of the section 
closest to the subject property is attached. 
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available through the extension of an existing eight inch sewer line in Oak Hills Drive. On 
October 26, 2017, Bell County Health Department issued a letter authorizing the use of the existing 
septic for an office use with a maximum of three employees. Water is available through an existing two 
inch water line in SH 317. While, according to the Public Works Department, the two inch water line will 
be adequate for the proposed office use, the necessity to upsize the water line will need to be re-
evaluated with any future expansion to the property. Evaluation will be through the platting process. 
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
A proposed local connector trail is shown on the Trails Master Plan.  SH 317, as an arterial requires a 
6-foot sidewalk. Compliance with the Trails Master Plan and sidewalks will be addressed during the 
plat process. However, the City of Temple has agreed to fund the upsizing of a new sidewalk designed 
by TxDOT, from six feet to 10-feet, to comply with the Trails Master Plan. 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The attached tables compare and contrast, the current 
development standards between AG and NS as provided for in UDC Section 4.5.  A table with traffic 
counts associated with select NS & GR uses has also been attached. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Four notices to property owners, were sent to property owners within 200-feet of the 
subject property containing notice of the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance. 
As of Monday March 26, 2018 at 9:00 AM, one notice in agreement, two notices in disagreement and 
one notice from outside of the notification boundary, for a total of four notices have been received. Staff 
has calculated the land area within the notification boundary at 47.89% to be in opposition. Since the 
initial rezoning request for GR & MF-1 has been advertised, per UDC Section 3.4.4, a 4/5th vote by City 
Council has been triggered in order to approve the request.  
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on February 22, 2018, in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



04/05/18 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Survey Map & Field Notes (Exhibit A) 
Bell County Septic Letter (dated October 26, 2017) 
Photos 
Maps 
Tables 
TxDOT Plan View Maps (Hogan Road to Oak Hills Drive) 
Returned Property Notices 
P&Z Excerpts (March 5 & 19, 2018) 
Ordinance 
 
  



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A





Site & Surrounding Property Photos 
 

 
 

Site: Existing (Unoccupied) Building  
(AG) 

 

 
 

West: Looking Across SH 317 – Scattered SF Residences on Acreage  
(AG) 

 



 
 

South: Existing SF Residence on Acreage 
(AG) 

 

 
 

North – East side of SH 317 – Primarily Undeveloped (AG) 
 



 
 

East – Looking across Subject Property toward residence (Yellow Arrow) on 
adjacent tract (AG) 

 

 
 

Aerial: Subject property in relation to adjacent residential dwelling - Note 
approximate distance is 150 feet (AG) 



Maps 
 

 
 

Location Map 
 

 
 

Aerial Map 



 
 

Zoning Map 
 

 
 

Future Land Use Map 



 
 

Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
 

 
 

Utility Map 



 
 

Notification Map 
 

 
 

Opposition Map 



Tables 
Permitted & Conditional Uses Table  
Comparison between AG, GR & NS  

 
Use Type Agricultural (AG) Neighborhood Service (NS) General Retail (GR) 

Agricultural Uses Farm, Ranch or Orchard Same as AG Same as AG 

Residential Uses 

Single Family Residence 
(Detached & Attached)                                                                                                                                           
Industrialized Housing                                                      
Family or Group Home           
Home for the Aged (CUP)                                                     

Single Family Detached & 
Attached Only 
Industrialized Housing 
Townhouse (1)  
No Apartment 
No Triplex 
No Duplex (2) 
Family /Group Home (CUP)                                                                                                               

 Single Family 
Residence (Detached & 
Attached)                                                                
Duplex                                                                                    
Townhouse                                                                            
Industrialized Housing                                                      
Family or Group Home                                                       
Home for the Aged 

Retail & Service 
Uses 

None Most Retail & Service Uses 
Beer & Wine Sales, off-
premise consumption (CUP)                                                

Most Retail & Service 
Uses                                               
Alcoholic Beverage 
Sales, off-premise   
consumption, package 
Store (CUP) 

Commercial Uses 

None                             None    Plumbing Shop                                                                               
Upholstery Shop                                                                   
Kennel without 
Veterinary Hospital 
(CUP)                     
Indoor Flea Market 

Office Uses None Office Uses Office Warehouse 
(CUP) 

Industrial Uses 
Temporary Asphalt & 
Concrete Batching Plat 
(CUP)                                                                                      

Same as NS 
Laboratory, medical, dental, 
scientific or research (CUP)                                                                                                                           

Same as NS 
Recycling collection 
location 

Recreational Uses 

None Park or Playground                                                 Same as NS                                                             
Beer & Wine (On 
Premise Consumption) 
< 75% 

Vehicle Service 
Uses 

None Fuel Sales (CUP) Auto Leasing, Rental                                                           
Auto Sales - New & 
Used (outside Lot)                         
Car Wash                                                                                                                                          
Vehicle Servicing  
(Minor) 

Restaurant Uses None Restaurant - No Drive-In With & Without Drive-
In 

Overnight 
Accommodations 

RV Park (CUP) None Hotel or Motel 

 
(1) & (2) shown on next page 

 



(1) A Townhouse is a structure on an individual lot, that is one of a series of three or more 
dwelling units designed for single-family occupancy structurally connected or 
immediately adjacent  to and abutting each other between individual dwelling units 
 

(2) A Duplex is a detached building designed and constructed within two separate living 
units under a single roof for occupancy of two families. 

 
 
 
 
 

Surrounding Property Uses 
 

 Surrounding Property & Uses 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Suburban Commercial /  
Suburban Residential 

AG Single Family Residence on 
Acreage 

North Suburban Commercial /  
Suburban Residential 

AG & GR Scattered SF Uses on Acreage  

South Suburban Commercial /  
Suburban Residential 

AG & SF-1 Scattered SF Uses on Acreage 

East Suburban Commercial /  
Suburban Residential 

AG & SF-2 Scattered SF Uses on Acreage 

West Suburban Commercial AG Scattered SF Uses on Acreage 

 
 
 
 
 

Comprehensive Plan Compliance 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map YES 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  YES 

CP Goal 4.1 - Growth and development 
patterns should be consistent with 
the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

YES 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and 
Sidewalks Ordinance 

YES 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dimensional Standards 
(Revised with NS Standards) 

 

 

Current  (AG) 
Residential 

(GR) 
Non-Res 

Recommended (NS) 
Non-Residential 

Minimum Lot Size 1 Acre N/A N/A 
Minimum Lot Width 100 Feet N/A N/A 
Minimum Lot Depth 150 Feet N/A N/A 
Front Setback 50 Feet 15 Feet 15 Feet 

Side Setback 15 Feet 10 Feet 10 Feet 

Side Setback (corner) 15 Feet 10 Feet 15 Feet 

Rear Setback 10 Feet  10 Feet  10 Feet 
Max Building Height 3 Stories 3 Stories 2 ½ Stories 

 
 10’ rear setback (Non-residential use abuts a residential zoning district or use - UDC 

Section 4.4.4.F3 
 
General provisions for buffering and screening for non-residential uses adjacent to residential 
uses are found in UDC Section 7.7, highlighted provisions include but not limited to: 
* Landscaping or solid fencing from 6 to 8 feet in height (UDC Section 7.7.4), 
* Refuse containers located in the side or rear of the property (UDC Section 7.7.6), and  
* Screened outdoor storage (UDC Section 7.7.8.B1). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Traffic Count Information 
Select - NS & GR Permitted & Conditional Uses 

 

Peak Hour Trip Rates Table (9th Ed. ITE Manual) 
Use Peak Hour Trip Rate 

Single Family (Detached) Residence 1.00 (per Dwelling Unit) 
Townhouse 0.52 (per Dwelling Unit) 

Assisted Living Facility 0.22 (per Bed) 
Congregate Care 0.17 (per Dwelling Unit) 

General Office Building 1.49 (per 1,000 S.F.) 
Hair Salon 1.93 (per 1,000 S.F.) 

Gasoline Service Station /  with 
Convenience Store & Fuel Pumps 

13.51  
(per Fueling Station) 

Gasoline Service Station /  Convenience 
Store / Fuel Pumps / Car Wash (GR Use) 

13.94  
(per Fueling Station) 

Fast Food Restaurant (No Drive-Thru)   26.15 (per 1,000 S.F.) 
Restaurant w/ Drive Thru (GR Use) 33.84 (per 1,000 S.F.) 

Restaurant (Sit Down) 11.15 (per 1,000 S.F.) 
Bank 12.13 (per 1,000 S.F.) 

Variety Store 6.82 (per 1,000 S.F.) 
Free Standing Discount Store 4.98 (per 1,000 S.F.) 

Arts & Crafts Store 6.21 (per 1,000 S.F.) 
Hotel (GR Use) 0.60 (per Room) 
Motel (GR Use) 0.47 (per Room) 

Bar (GR Use with CUP) 11.34 (per 1,000 S.F.) 
 





mbaker
Callout
Subject Property













From: Vernon Holleman
To: Mark Baker
Subject: Zoning Application Number: Z-FY-18-15
Date: Sunday, March 04, 2018 6:04:30 PM

My wife and I have already responded with a disagreement to the proposed zoning changes for
the property adjacent to the area in review which is surrounded on the north by the Buffalo
Oak Farm and on the East and South by Mrs Billeck and on the West by highway 317.

Our major disagreement is in regards to the proposal for Multiple Family 1 (MF-1)  category
usages.

I feel confident that if the City Planning Commission examines the geography and other
potential disasters it will become obvious to them that this is not a satisfactory location for
Multiple Family units and will be a liability for the City and for the Highway 317.

I am confident that you have it memorized but I will quote the CI.Temple.Tx. US zoning code
Article 4.3.11  MF-1 Multiple Falmily Dwelling 1 which reads.  Tlhe Multiple Family
Dwelling 1 zoning district permits typical garden apartment development of one to two stories,
allowing approximately 15 units per acre and is intended to be located near and reasonably
accessible to , collectors and arterial s, due to traffic generating capacity of medium density
multiple family dwellings.

The commission is challenged with careful study of such proposal to avoid errors of the past.  

The geography of the proposed tract of land does will not permit reasonable fulfillment of the
requirements of Article 4.3.11..  Careful hands on hands inspection of the acreage and
surrounding areas should be personally made by members of the committee or other experts.
The  house near the Highway on the property sits at a much higher level than the  area below
it.  I purchased my property the Buffalo Oak Farm about fifty years ago and I have seen the
evolution of the highway development and have communicated with surveyors, geology
experts and multiple highway officials .  I have always had concerns about the water drainage
from the West, from the West to the East of Highway 317.  They have repeatedly ad firmly
assured me that that is the natural water flow and cannot be completely changed.  

Highway 317 is now in final stages of completion.  I was required to give an easement for
water drainage near the south corner of my property on 317.  I was there last week end and see
there is a four foot drain pointing to that easement area.  If your look on the rezoning map you
sent you can see a faint dotted line indicating the easement area.  It looks like they have drains
on each side of the highway so it remains to be seen how much drainage there will be to that
easement area and how much flow will be diverted from what has been referred to by the
experts as a natural drainage which goes through the back of the proposed property and on into
the Oak Hills area. In the past water has been as high as the back porch of the house on the
property as told e by Mr. Lewis who owned the property years ago.  Mrs Billick owns the road
on the South Side of the property, her access from Highway 317.  When the water flow was
high you could not drive across the "river" which was created.  There are culverts under her
road at the low point to facilitate the flow of water and not wash out the road. Attempts to fill
in the low spots behind the house on this property have caused silt and dirt to stop up the
flow.  

mailto:vdholleman@gmail.com
mailto:mbaker@templetx.gov
mbaker
Typewritten Text
SUPPLEMENT TO RETURNED RESPONSE LETTER



Access to this  proposed area would have to be from the North going lane of 317. There would
probably have to be a traffic light to accommodate the large number of cars.  The Highway
department would probably have to make a new Turn Around near the entrance. The traffic on
317 is already pretty bad "heavy".  

Under this zoning there could be as many as 60 family units according to my "fuzzy math".  It
is my observation that it seems that everyone in such unit owns an automobile.
Accommodations would have to be made for parking.  The city would have to furnish trash
containers and paper management containers.  Pickup and delivery would be a problem for the
City especially because entry and access for the garbage pickup trucks would be slow because
of heavy traffic flow and limited access.

Arterial s would be a problem.  The city as you know annexed many areas of farmland with
their annexation into Temple and many areas still have septic tanks so this would be a very
expensive enterprise and difficult because of the already made mention of the shape of the
land. 

I could go on.  These are facts you probably already know.  It is the responsibility of the City
Planning Commission to make as good a decision as possible for the best interest of the City
and its citizens and not be swayed by developers sometimes whose main objective is financial
gain sometimes to expense of Citizens of the City and Community.  

In Summary We object to the proposal for Multiple Family 1 (MF-1) classification
construction.  I hope that land  use can be adjusted to a more reasonable classification. 

Sincerely

Vernon D. Holleman
9015 Hogan Road
Temple , Texas 76502 







 

EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, MARCH 5, 2018 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 

Item 4: Z-FY-18-15 – Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on a rezoning 
from Agricultural (AG) to General Retail (GR) and Multiple-Family Dwelling 1 (MF-1) 
on 4.0 +/- acres, located on the eastside of State Highway 317, approximately 1,100 
feet south of its intersection with Hogan Road, addressed as 5701 State Highway 
317. 

Vice-Chair Langley and Commissioner Marshall abstained from this item. 

Mr. Mark Baker, Senior Planner, stated this item was scheduled to go forward to City Council 
for first reading on April 5, 2018 and second reading on April 19, 2018. 

This is a rezoning request of AG to GR on three acres adjacent to SH 317 and MF-1 on one 
acre at the rear of the tract. 

Some existing buildings are proposed to be converted to office uses and any additional uses, 
such as single family or multi-family uses, are proposed at a future time. 

The future expansion requires a subdivision plat and that plat will also address: 

• Access to any multi-family or residential units on the east side of property 

• Density 

• Drainage (Plat and Construction documents will address existing and post drainage 
conditions) 

• TxDOT has issued a permit to expand the existing driveway from 16-feet to 24-feet 

• Bell County Health Department has authorized use of existing septic for office use 
up to three employees 

GR and MF-1 is proposed presently for office uses and multiple family uses (the MF uses 
would be in the future). GR is compatible and appropriate along State Highway 317. Multiple 
family or other residential uses would be appropriate toward the east and adjacent to existing 
residential uses. 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designates the subject property as Suburban 
Commercial which is appropriate for retail and office uses, generally concentrated at 
intersections versus strip development along major roads. It also supports GR at certain 
locations on a case-by-case basis.  

State Highway 317 is one of those conditions that does supports GR and multi-family uses. 



 

Suburban Residential is identified for mid-sized single family lots (primarily SF-1 and SF-2). 
Designated acreage within the classification is not problematic to overall request for 
anticipated multi-family uses (less than one acre). 

Water and sewer are in the vicinity of the property but would likely need to be extended for 
future development. The existing septic system is sufficient for office use up to three 
employees. 

The Thoroughfare Plan designates State Highway 317 as a Major Arterial. 

TxDOT improvements are on-going and include: 

10-foot sidewalk on east side of State Highway 317 

Trails: 

A proposed Local Connector Trail is addressed by the Trails Master Plan and would be 
addressed by the upsized sidewalk 

Sidewalk upsizing would be paid by City 

Sidewalk is designed by TxDOT 

On-site photos shown. 

Surrounding properties include undeveloped property to the north, and existing single family 
residences on acreage to the south, east, and west. 

Comparison table between AG, GR and MF-1 uses (not all-inclusive) and Development 
standards shown. 

Buffering and Screening standards would apply: 

Per UDC Section 7.7.4 -Buffering: 

May consist of evergreen hedges composed of five-gallon plants or larger, with a 
planted height of six-feet on 36-inch centers 

May consist of a six-foot to eight-foot high fence or wall, constructed by any number of 
allowed materials per UDC Section 7.7.5, such as: 

Wood, 
Masonry, 
Stone or pre-cast concrete 

Along the common boundary -Continuous buffer & screening is required: 

Between non-residential or multiple-family uses and an agricultural or residential zoning 
district or use 



 

Four notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with one response 
returned in agreement and two responses returned in disagreement.  

Since 47.89 percent of the land area is in opposition, a 4/5ths vote is required by City Council 
in order to approve this request. 

This request is in compliance with the Future Land Use and Character Map, the Thoroughfare 
Plan, is compatible with surrounding uses and zoning, and public facilities are available to 
serve the subject property. 

Staff recommends approval of the request for a rezoning from AG district to GR and MF-1 
districts. 

Chair Fettig opened the public hearing. 

Ms. Shirley Holleman, 9015 Hogan Road, Temple, Texas, stated she owns 45 acres off of 
State Highway 317 with Longhorns on it. Her property also includes a wooded habitat area 
where some rare species of birds live. Ms. Holleman enjoys the wildlife and would like to keep 
it that way. 

The subject property is not going to hold anything; there is no drainage or sewage lines and 
Ms. Holleman feels it is a bad idea. There is only a small area to go in and out.  

Ms. Holleman strongly hopes the Commission will not approve this request. 

Mr. Doug Holleman, 9015 Hogan Road, Temple, Texas, stated he oversees? the property. Mr. 
Holleman stated the drainage problem there is severe and should be a deal killer.  

Chair Fettig explained that all of this is seriously looked at by the Engineering/Public Works 
Department prior to approving any development. 

Ms. Mary Billeck, 5655 State Highway 317, Temple, Texas, stated she lives to the south and 
east of the subject property. Ms. Billeck is concerned about increased traffic and does not 
want stores that sell alcohol nearby. The multi-family proposal will be located 100 feet from 
her house and the drainage is not good. When she moved out there she was told there was a 
fault line. When it rains, Ms. Billeck cannot leave her house because of all the water and has 
reoccurring issues with her tinhorns filling up and not draining. 

Mr. Jim Gamrod, 5702 State Highway 317, Temple, Texas, stated he lives directly across the 
street from the subject property. 317 does not have a center turn lane so cars will end up 
making U-turns. Mr. Gamrod cannot leave his driveway at 7:30 in the morning due to the 
traffic and afternoon traffic (5:00 to 5:30) is creating chaos trying to make a left turn. There is 
no additional access for the proposed project.  

Mr. Gamrod feels this is a giant step backwards as far as traffic goes and should all be single 
family dwellings and the balance should be a park. 

Ms. Sandra Mosby, 7805 Broken Spoke, Temple, Texas, stated 317 is one of the main roads 
to her subdivision meaning the traffic leaving her subdivision will need to turn around one way 
or the other to get onto 317. The traffic will only get worse. 



 

Mr. Michael Allen, 3109 Las Cruces Blvd., Temple, Texas, stated he is a half-interest owner in 
the subject property and wanted to introduce himself. Mr. Allen wanted to assure the citizens 
that any future development would have the appropriate site work done as previously 
mentioned. 

Currently, Mr. Allen only has plans to paint and put in new flooring and doors in order to 
remodel the existing building and get a tenant in there with an office. Any future development, 
even adding on to the existing building, will trigger a lot more work. Some blacktopping may 
need to be done for parking. The traffic flow should not be affected much by this remodel 
project. 

Mr. Allen confirmed there are no real multi-family plans at this point for the one acre at the 
back of the property. 

Chair Fettig asked about the preliminary cut outs on 317. 

Ms. Mary Billeck returned to the podium and stated she spoke to the workers on 317 today 
and was told there would be curbs all the way and traffic would have to go to Hogan to turn 
around. 

Mr. Allen commented they have the TxDOT plans and there is a median right where their 
entrance is and no turn around.   

Ms. Holleman returned to the podium and challenged the Commission to travel 317 during 
5:00 and 7:00 p.m. because you cannot get on the road or turn around anywhere. 

Chair Fettig agreed since he travels the road quite often but stated TxDOT seems to be 
making some progress on the road. The City cannot build roads before you build 
houses/buildings. 

Ms. Holleman added Hogan Road is about to be widened and will add to the problem. 
Apartments are proposed to go nearby and will add more traffic. 

Mr. Gamrod returned and stated 2305 and 53 are built differently; you have turning lanes 
available. 317 has no turning lanes. 

A school is proposed to be built on Poison Oak and has no road. 

Mr. Gamrod is not aware of any multi-family projects south of 2305 and believes it is all single 
residential. 

Mr. Chandler stated SH 317 is a TxDOT roadway and TxDOT has the ultimate decision on 
whether a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) would be required. 

Mr. Dan Elrod, 5606 State Highway 317, Temple, Texas, just south of Mr. Gamrod and asked 
who determines where the restriction stops and who gets notified since only four people 
received a notice. 

Mr. Chandler responded that it is a state statute and which the city has adopted and is a 200-
foot notification. When it involves larger lots, which is the case here, it was only the four 



 

individuals. Chair Fettig added that staff advertises in the newspaper and posts signs on the 
subject property. 

Mr. Elrod stated he has contacted Representative Shine who referred him to other sources 
about the speed limit on 317. Mr. Elrod proposed the speed limit be reduced to 45 between 
the two bridges. Mr. Elrod agrees with Mr. Gamrod that when he leaves his house he has to 
go in the opposite direction to get out. 

Mr. Elrod commented that marketability is also a problem since getting on 317 requires going 
in the opposite direction of where you want to go and with all of the projects proposed along 
317, it will only get worse. 

There being no further speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Mr. Allen confirmed that at this point they will have a small office building on the subject 
property and there are no current plans for the rest of the property. 

A table was shown to see the uses allowed under GR and briefly discussed. 

Rezoning options briefly discussed. 

Mr. Chandler reminded the Commission they have the option to recommend a less intense 
zoning district, such as Office One (O-1).  

Commissioner Crisp asked if the applicant would be interested in considering another zoning? 

Mr. Allen returned to the podium and responded yes, the applicants would be acceptable to a 
different recommendation; however, the applicants have not researched other options. 

Chair Fettig suggested Neighborhood Services (NS) which allows two and a half stories. 

Mr. Allen stated he was willing to take recommendations from the P&Z Commission rather 
than delay the process for two more weeks. 

The Commission wanted the applicants to have adequate time to discuss their options and 
recommended tabling the item. Mr. Allen was in agreement with that recommendation. 

Commissioner Crisp made a motion to table Item 4, Z-FY-18-15, until March 19, 2018 P&Z 
meeting to allow the applicants to discuss options and Commissioner Castillo made a second. 

Motion passed: (6:0:2) 
Vice-Chair Langley and Commissioner Marshall abstained, Commissioner Ward absent.  
 
Vice-Chair Langley and Commissioner Marshall returned to their seats. 

 
 



 

EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, MARCH 19, 2018 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 

Item 4: Z-FY-18-15 – Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on a rezoning 
from Agricultural (AG) to General Retail (GR) proposed for 3 +/- acres and Multiple-
Family Dwelling 1 (MF-1) proposed for 1 +/- acre, located on the eastside of State 
Highway 317, approximately 1,100 feet south of its intersection with Hogan Road, 
addressed as 5701 State Highway 317. 

Vice-Chair Langley and Commissioner Marshall both abstained from this item. Vice-Chair 
Langley also has another commitment and left for the day. Commissioner Marshall also left 
the meeting and did not return for closing comments. 

Mr. Mark Baker, Senior Planner, stated this item was tabled at the March 5, 2018 meeting. 
This item is still on track to go forward to City Council for first reading on April 5, 2018 and 
second reading April 19, 2018. 

Aerial map shown. 

At the March 5, 2018 for P&Z, several topics were discussed: 
Traffic and Access 
Expansion and upgrades to existing utility facilities 
Undesired impacts associated with potential multi-family residential and non-residential 
uses 
Consideration to meet with staff to discuss alternatives and options 

On March 13, 2018, Staff and applicant met on March 13, 2018 and the outcome was: 
Applicant agreed Neighborhood Service (NS) would replace GR 
Applicant withdrew the MF-1 portion of the request 
Revision would reduce acreage from four acres to the three (Western-most) acres  
Staff and Applicant are in agreement to all revision(s) 

The existing building is proposed for three employee office building 

Potential for additional uses in the future 

Any future expansion requires a subdivision plat. The plat will also address: 

Creation of single or multiple lots 

Upgrading or extension of existing utilities 



 

During the March 5, 2018 P&Z meeting there was discussion regarding TxDOT State Highway 
317 improvements. Mr. Baker showed some of the cross-sections that show the limited 
median breaks that would be provided as well as the expansion of the highway from two lanes 
to four lanes. The four lanes would provide for two northbound and two southbound lanes. 
The limited median breaks in the immediate area would include median breaks at Hogan, Oak 
Hills and Trail Ridge.  

Comparison table of Standards and Uses for AG, NS and GR are shown. 

Traffic Count Information for peak hour trip rates table is shown and briefly discussed. 

For example, a gasoline service station convenience store would be permitted in NS by right. 
Fuel pump use would require a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in NS. 

Four notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with one response 
returned in agreement and two responses returned in disagreement.  

The return notices provide for 47.89 percent of opposition which triggers UDC Sec. 3.4.4, 
4/5ths vote required by City Council in order to approve. 

Staff recommends approval of the revised request for a rezoning from AG District to NS 
District on three acres. 

Chair Fettig opened the public hearing. 

Ms. Mary Billeck, 5655 State Highway 317, Temple, Texas, stated she has property to the 
east and south of the subject property. Ms. Billeck does not want retail next to her property if 
possible. 

Mr. Baker explains the notification process and opposition calculations. 

Mr. Chandler added that the Code includes the right-of-way, so the 317 rights-of-way was 
included in the total amount. 

Mr. Cy Long, 2003 Worth Lane, Salado, Texas, stated he was the property owner and feels 
they have tried to accommodate the feedback received from the last meeting.  

Mr. Long was permitted for a 24-foot driveway by TxDOT over and above the 16-foot.  

The current goal is to clean the house and surrounding area up and use it as a low-traffic 
office.  

Mr. Long lived at the house for some time and does not feel the traffic will be impacted. 

There being no further speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Castillo made a motion to approve Item 4, Z-FY-18-15, per Staff 
recommendation, and Commissioner Walker made a second. 

Motion passed: (6:0:2) 
Vice-Chair Langley and Commissioner Marshall abstained  



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-4906 
(Z-FY-18-15) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL ZONING 
DISTRICT TO GENERAL RETAIL ZONING DISTRICT ON 
APPROXIMATELY 3 ACRES, LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF STATE 
HIGHWAY 317, APPROXIMATELY 1,100 FEET SOUTH OF ITS 
INTERSECTION WITH HOGAN ROAD, ADDRESSED AS 5701 STATE 
HIGHWAY 317; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 

legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they 
are hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their 
entirety. 

 
Part 2: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to 

Neighborhood Services zoning district on approximately 3 acres, located on the east side of 
State Highway 317, approximately 1,100 feet south of its intersection with Hogan Road, 
addressed as 5701 State Highway 317, as outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit 
‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid 
by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall 
not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this Ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 5: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 5th day of 

April, 2018. 
 



2 
 

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 19th day of April, 2018. 

 
 

       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/05/18 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Lynn Barrett, Assistant Planning Director  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-18-16: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning and site development plan on 81.00 +/- acres from Agricultural zoning 
district to Planned Development Single Family Two zoning district, addressed as 1810 South Pea Ridge 
Road in the Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract No. 17, Temple, Texas. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Based on the following, staff recommends approval with conditions for 
a rezoning from the current AG zoning district to the PD-SF zoning district for the following reasons: 
 

1. That the proposed Development Plan/Site Plan reflects compliance with the provisions of the 
Planned Development Criteria as required by Unified Development Code (UDC) Section 
3.4.5; 

2. The request is in compliance with the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Suburban Residential 
designation and current adjacent subdivisions; 

3. The proposed zoning is compatible with surrounding zoning;  
4. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan and Trails Master Plan; and   
5. Public facilities are nearby to serve the subject property.  

 
PD Conditions:  

1. Substantial compliance with the attached Development Plan/Site Plan 
2. 20’ Front setbacks, 10‘ rear, 10’ side setbacks street side, 5’ side setbacks interior lots  
3. Paved trail heads provided to adjacent city trails planned 
4. No single residential lots with drive access onto realigned South Pea Ridge Road; shared 

drive if needed only with No Backing requirement 
5. East of Pea Ridge realignment (approximately three acres), option of one or two family 

dwellings with two family only on minimum 60 foot wide lots 
6. Maximum of 350 total lots 
7. Sodded front yards 
8. One tree in each front yard minimum 2” diameter at breast height 
9. Minimum of three 5 gallon shrubs, five 1-gallon shrubs in front yard 
10. Front facade of each structure will have a minimum of two architectural features of roof 

breaks, columns, gables, varied roof pitch, etc. 
 

 



04/05/18 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
11. Each home facade is required to be a minimum of 80% masonry except for gables, 

dormers, eves, overhangs, porches, etc. 
12.  Front facade to be a minimum of 50% masonry excluding hardie plank siding with same 

permitted exceptions as written above 
13. Residential sidewalks as shown to be installed as homes are constructed. Sidewalk along 

South Pea Ridge portion will be built along with oversizing the roadway to collector 
standards. 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their March 5, 2018 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted eight to zero to recommend approval of the rezoning to PD SF-
2 with development/site plan per staff’s recommendation.    
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The applicant, WBW, is owner of the 81 acres and is proposing development of the 
subject property with future plans for an accompanying land swap of a comparably sized parcel of city 
adjacent property with acreage it owns to provide parkland for the additional connecting portion of 
drainage areas at the east side of their tract. This will require an additional PD amendment to add the 
swapped portion prior to development. Additionally, the developer will participate in realigning South 
Pea Ridge Road through their property. The PD request currently is just for the property the applicant 
currently owns. Consideration of the land swap is proposed for the April 19th Council agenda. 
 
Per UDC Section, 3.4.3.A, a PD is subject to review and approval by City Council and requires a binding 
site plan. In this case, the proposal would include a future amendment to add additional property to the 
development.  
 
As required by UDC Section 3.4.2 B, the Development Plan/Site Plan for the proposed PD was 
reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC) on February 20, 2018.  Site characteristics, 
proposed land swap and history of the property were discussed. 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTIES AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 

 
Direction 

 
FLUP 

 
Zoning 

 
Current Land Use 

Subject 
Property  

 Suburban Residential   AG  Old homestead, ranchland 

North  Suburban Residential and 
Parkland/Open Space 

AG &  
PD SF-1 

Residential 

South  Suburban Residential AG  Undeveloped 

East  Suburban Residential AG, PD -
2F, SF-2 

Residential, Undeveloped 

West  Suburban Residential SF-2 Residential  



04/05/18 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan (CP) and Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map 

 

Compliant? 

CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Yes 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
In the FLUM, the subject property is designated as the Suburban Residential character district. This 
district is intended for residential subdivisions of medium density as represented by this PD. 
The proposal is in compliance with the FLUM and adjacent current zoning. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access from South Pea Ridge Road, which is designated as a collector in 
the Thoroughfare Plan and will be realigned in compliance with engineering best practices for a 
curvilinear route through the subject property. The upsizing of pavement width from a local subdivision 
street to the collector cross section is proposed to be completed by the developer and cost-shared with 
the city.  
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Water and Sewer are available to service the subject property. 
 
Planned Development 
UDC Section 3.4.1 defines a PD as: 

“A flexible overlay zoning district designed to respond to unique development proposals, special 
design considerations and land use transitions by allowing evaluation of land use relationships to 
surrounding areas through development plan approval.”  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



04/05/18 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Fifty-one notices were mailed to property owners within the 200 feet buffer area of 
the subject property. The notices included information on the public hearing as required by State Law 
and City Ordinance.  As of noon on Tuesday, March 20th, 2018, 10 notices in disagreement; and four 
in agreement (two from property owner) were returned. Disagreement response totals less than 9% of 
the buffer area. Additionally, eight neighbors living outside the 200 feet buffer area sent in disagreement 
responses.  
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on February 22, 2018 in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Development/Site Plan 
Aerial Map 
Utility Map 
Zoning Map 
Site Photos 
Future Land Use and Character Map  
Thoroughfare & Trails Map  
Notification Map 
Returned Property Notices 
Area neighbor responses 
Ordinance 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-4907 
(Z-FY-18-16) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING A REZONING AND SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN ON 
APPROXIMATELY 81 ACRES FROM AGRICULTURAL ZONING DISTRICT TO 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT SINGLE FAMILY TWO ZONING DISTRICT, 
ADDRESSED AS 1810 SOUTH PEA RIDGE ROAD, IN THE BALDWIN 
ROBERTSON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 17, TEMPLE, TEXAS; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING 
AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, the applicant, WBW, is the owner of 81 acres located at 1810 South Pea Ridge Road 
and is proposing development of the subject property with future plans for an accompanying land swap 
of a comparably sized parcel of City property to provide park land for the additional connecting portion 
of drainage areas at the east side of their tract; 

 
Whereas, additionally, applicant will participate in realigning South Pea Ridge Road through the 

subject property; 
 

Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 
consideration of the conditions, recommends approval of the rezoning and Site Development Plan from 
Agricultural Zoning District to Planned Development Single Family Two Zoning District, on 
approximately 81 acres addressed as 1810 South Pea Ridge Road in the Baldwin Robertson Survey, 
Abstract No. 17, Temple, Texas; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, after public notice as required by law, 

has at a public hearing, carefully considered all the evidence submitted by the applicant concerning the 
proposed plans for this tract of land, and has heard the comments and evidence presented by all persons 
supporting or opposing this application at said public hearing, and after examining the conditions, 
operation and the location of said property, finds that the proposed use of the property substantially 
complies with the comprehensive plan and the area plan adopted by the City Council. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 

Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved and 
incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 

 
Part 2: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural Zoning District to Planned 

Development Single Family Two Zoning District on approximately 81 acres situated in the Baldwin 
Robertson Survey, Abstract No. 17, Temple, Texas and addressed as 1810 South Pea Ridge Road, as 
more thoroughly described by the site development plan attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part 
hereof for all purposes along with the following conditions:  

 
1. Substantial compliance with the attached Development Plan/Site Plan; 
2. 20’ Front setbacks, 10’ rear, 10’ side setbacks street side, 5’ side setbacks interior lots;  
3. Paved trail heads provided to adjacent city trails planned; 
4. No single residential lots with drive access allowed onto realigned S Pea Ridge Road; 

shared drive if needed only with No Backing requirement; 
 



2 
 

 
5. East of Pea Ridge realignment (approximately 3 acres), option of one or two family 

dwellings with two family only on minimum 60-foot-wide lots; 
6. Maximum of 350 total lots; 
7. Sodded front yards; 
8. One tree in each front yard minimum 2” diameter at breast height; 
9. Minimum of three 5 gallon shrubs, five 1-gallon shrubs in front yard; 
10. Front façade of each structure will have a minimum of two architectural features of roof 

breaks, columns, gables, varied roof pitch, etc.; 
11. Each home façade is required to be a minimum of 80% masonry except for gables, dormers, 

eves, overhangs, porches, etc.; 
12.  Front façade to be a minimum of 50% masonry excluding hardie plank siding with same 

permitted exceptions as written above; and 
13. Residential sidewalks as shown to be installed as homes are constructed. Sidewalk along S. 

Pea Ridge portion will be built along with oversizing the roadway to collector standards. 
 

Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary changes to the 
City Zoning Map. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, paragraphs, 

sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, 
paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City 
Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or 
section. 

 
Part 5: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in accordance 

with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 5th day of April, 

2018. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 19th day of April, 2018. 
     

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
            
 

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



=

I I M A+1,w

a
J.

C

Rt-LtiÀsJ:

,\( lr()Rllrr) ßì \!ts\

o Ìt:Nl t.a)a{Tlo\ TftM!t r. T\

fRniltf t tñ11)R\rarÍ)\ DÌ:\(]IM-N

####

TI-IE RESER\/E AT'PEA RIDGE.I
CII'Y OF TEN4PI-E. BIrLL CIOUNTY. TEXAS

t\utiR's.\PPlìo\'\r.

\L).I )ì!L)\\;ì L Lr\

I ìrli \tt\\'). ì

Yalgo, LLC
ì)rilllL.ìj. \L-. \!r. r

l,llrJ:L ili -',ilì
:¡il tilr riì iìiì
l): lir 'iììri-

r..\..:i.:¡.J.i
I Lìrr ¡-Jr rÌ.r r:r . I rl . l

l.\. ' lì.!i.r..r..1S r\.ÌL:f Lì' r.,1..

SI[L I

i0
oJ'

8





1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27
28

29
30

31
32

33
34

35
36

37
38

39
40

411
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

1314
15

16
17

18
19

20
21

22
23

24
25

26

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9

10

11

12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19

20

21222324252627282930313233343536373839404142

43

44
45

46
47

48
49

50
51

52
53

54
55

56
57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65 66

67

68
69

70
71

72
73

74
75

76
77

78
79

80
81

82
83

84
85 86

87
88

89
90

91
92

93
94

95
96

97
98

99
100

101
102

103
104

105
106

107
108

109
110

111

1121
2

3
4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20
21

22 23

24

25

26

27

28

29
30

31
32

33 1
2

3
4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13
14

15
16

17 1
2

3

4

5

6
7

8

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15

16
17

18
19

20
21

22
23

24
25

26
27

28

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8
9

10
11

12

e

x

:
 
5

9

6

.
0

0

e

x

:
 
5

7

5

.
5

4

IN FEET

GRAPHIC SCALE

OF

SHEET
REV. DESCRIPTION DATE BY

CITY OF TEMPLE, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS
THE RESERVE AT PEA RIDGE 1

1

PR
IN

TE
D

 O
N

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
16

, 2
01

8

APPROVED BY:  TWF

TOTAL LOTS:
TOTAL BLOCKS:
TOTAL SIZE:

PROJECT INFORMATION

74.02 ACRES

299
8

CLIENT NAME:  WBW DEVELOPMENT GROUP,LLC - SERIES 027
CLIENT LOCATION:  KILLEEN, TX

AUTHORIZED BY: XXX

PROJECT NUMBER:  RP01

ENGINEER'S APPROVAL

1 02/15/2018 JLSORIGINAL RELEASE OF

LAYOUT Yalgo, LLC
3000 Illinois Ave., Suite 100

Killeen, TX  76543
PH (254) 953-5353
FX (254) 953-5057

Texas Registered
Engineering Firm # 10264

Texas Registered
Surveying Firm 10194095

0 1" 2" 3"

300'200'100'0 THIS DOCUMENT IS RELEASED FOR THE
PURPOSE OF REVIEW UNDER THE

AUTHORITY OF TYLER W. FREESE 127376
ON 02/15/2018. IT IS NOT TO BE USED FOR

CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES.

LEGEND
FLOOD PLAIN

PROJECT BOUNDARY





 



S
PE
A
RI
D
G
E
RD

BROKEN
SHOE

TRL

BR
IAR

HO
LLO

W
DR

RU
STIC M

AN
O
R D

R

WIND CHIME WAY

BROKEN SPOKE DR

R
U
ST

Y 
SP

U
R
 D
R

SO
U
TH

ER
N
 D
R
A
W
 D
R

TH
ICK

ET
 TR

L

D
R
Y 
C
R
EE

K
 D
R

SH
A
D
O
W
 C
A
N
YO

N
 D
R GUNBARREL DR

GRISTMILL LN

U
P
LA

N
D
 B
EN

D
 D
R

B
R
EE

ZE
 W

A
Y 
LNW

IN
D
Y 
C
IR

R
U
ST

Y 
N
A
IL
 D
R

BRANDING IRON CTÜ

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-18-16

AG TO PD SF-2

Address :
1810 S PEA RIDGE

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 2/21/2018

Transportation
Streets

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcel Features
Parcels

Production.SDE.Easement



S
PE
A
RI
D
G
E
RD

BROKEN
SHOE

TRL

BR
IAR

HO
LLO

W
DR

RU
STIC M

AN
O
R D

R

WIND CHIME WAY

BROKEN SPOKE DR

R
U
ST

Y 
SP

U
R
 D
R

SO
U
TH

ER
N
 D
R
A
W
 D
R

TH
ICK

ET
 TR

L

D
R
Y 
C
R
EE

K
 D
R

SH
A
D
O
W
 C
A
N
YO

N
 D
R GUNBARREL DR

GRISTMILL LN

U
P
LA

N
D
 B
EN

D
 D
R

B
R
EE

ZE
 W

A
Y 
LNW

IN
D
Y 
C
IR

R
U
ST

Y 
N
A
IL
 D
R

BRANDING IRON CTÜ

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-18-16

AG TO PD SF-2

Address :
1810 S PEA RIDGE

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 2/21/2018

Transportation
Streets

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcel Features
Parcels

Production.SDE.Easement



GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

2

8
6

14

18

6

8

8

8

6

1
8

S
PE
A
RI
D
G
E
RD

WIND CHIME WAY

B
R
O
K
EN

 S
H
O
E 
TR

L

BROKEN SPOKE DR

RU
STIC M

AN
O
R D

R

SO
U
TH

ER
N
 D
R
A
W
 D
R

BR
IAR

 HO
LLO

W DR

U
P
LA

N
D
 B
EN

D
 D
R

B
R
EE

ZE
 W

A
Y 
LN

D
R
Y 
C
R
EE

K
 D
R

GUNBARREL DR

TH
ICK

ET
 TR

L

W
IN

D
Y 
C
IR

U
P
LA

N
D
 B
EN

D
 D
R

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-18-16

AG TO PD SF-2

Address :
1810 S PEA RIDGE

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 2/21/2018

Sewer
Manhole

Gravity Main

WaterDistribution
GF Hydrant

Main

Parcel Features
Parcels

Production.SDE.Easement



TH
ICK

ET
 TR

L

SKYVIEW

W
O
O
D
 C
R
EE

K
 D

R

BRO
KEN

 SH
O
E TRL

DUDLEYS DRAW DR

POISON OAK RD

B
R
EE

ZE
 W

A
Y 
LN

BROKEN SPOKE DR

UPLAND BEND DR

B
R
IA
R
 H

O
LL
O
W
 D

R

R
U
ST

Y 
SP

U
R
 D

R

SH
A
D
O
W
 C
A
N
YO

N
 D

R

SO
U
TH

ER
N
 D

R
A
W
 D

R

R
U
ST

Y 
N
A
IL
 D

R
W
IN

D
Y 
C
IR WIND CHIME WAY

DRY CREEK CT

W
A
G
O
N

G
A
P
RD

NEUBERRYCLIFFE

D
R
Y 
C
R
EE

K
 D

R

O
A
K
 C
H
A
SE

 T
R
L

GUNBARREL DR

RU
STIC M

AN
O
R D

R

HOGANRD

S 
P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

Ü

Date: 2/21/2018
 lrbarrett

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-18-16

AG TO PD SF-2

Address :
1810 S Pea Ridge Rd

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

Production.SDE.Easement



SITE PHOTOS 

 

 

 



 
  

 

AREA  



 

 

Above shows Property at right and S Pea Ridge curve which is proposed for straightening

 

Southern portion showing the Oncor power lines transecting the property 



AREA PHOTOS

 

Looking North along S Pea Ridge 

 

Looking West at Carriage House Trails which abuts the subject property 



 

View South along Pea Ridge Road, subject property is at right 

 

Portion of curve which will be straightened 



Date: 2/21/2018

Oaks of
Westwood

Park

P
O
IS
O
N
 O

A
K
 R
D

O
LD

 W
A
C
O
 R
D

SKYVIEW

DUDLEYS DRAW DR

B
R
EE

ZE
 W

A
Y 
LN

BROKEN SPOKE DR

UPLAND BEND DR

B
R
IA
R
 H

O
LL
O
W
 D

R

POISON OAK RD

R
U
ST

Y 
SP

U
R
 D

R

SH
A
D
O
W
 C
A
N
YO

N
 D

R

SO
U
TH

ER
N
 D

R
A
W
 D

R

R
U
ST

Y 
N
A
IL
 D

R
W
IN

D
Y 
C
IR WIND CHIME WAY

DRY CREEK CT

NEUBERRYCLIFF
E

TH
ICK

ET
 TR

L

D
R
Y 
C
R
EE

K
 D

R

W
A
G
O
N
 G
A
P 
R
D

GRISTMILL LN

SALT MILL HOLLOW DR

BRO
KEN

 SH
O
E TRL

GUNBARREL DR

W
O
O
D
 C
R
EE

K
 D

R

RU
STIC M

AN
O
R D

R

SPLIT TRAIL CV

HOGANRD

S 
P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-18-16

AG TO PD SF-2

Address :
1810 S PEA RIDGE

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 2/21/2018
 lrbarrett

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

Transportation
EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcel Features
Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

Production.SDE.Easement



Date: 2/21/2018

[
[

[
[

[
[

[

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

Oaks of
Westwood

Park

P
O
IS
O
N
 O

A
K
 R
D

O
LD

 W
A
C
O
 R
D

SKYVIEW

DUDLEYS DRAW DR

B
R
EE

ZE
 W

A
Y 
LN

BROKEN SPOKE DR

UPLAND BEND DR

B
R
IA
R
 H

O
LL
O
W
 D

R

POISON OAK RD

R
U
ST

Y 
SP

U
R
 D

R

SH
A
D
O
W
 C
A
N
YO

N
 D

R

SO
U
TH

ER
N
 D

R
A
W
 D

R

R
U
ST

Y 
N
A
IL
 D

R
W
IN

D
Y 
C
IR WIND CHIME WAY

DRY CREEK CT

NEUBERRYCLIFF
E

TH
ICK

ET
 TR

L

D
R
Y 
C
R
EE

K
 D

R

W
A
G
O
N
 G
A
P 
R
D

GRISTMILL LN

SALT MILL HOLLOW DR

BRO
KEN

 SH
O
E TRL

GUNBARREL DR

W
O
O
D
 C
R
EE

K
 D

R

RU
STIC M

AN
O
R D

R

SPLIT TRAIL CV

HOGANRD

S 
P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-18-16

AG TO PD SF-2

Address :
1810 S PEA RIDGE

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 2/21/2018
 lrbarrett

Parcel
Features

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

Production.SDE.

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP



1810
PropID:
2764

2602
PropID:
48014

1809
PropID:
393795

1518
PropID:
393815

7628
PropID:
393818

7636
PropID:
393820

1518
PropID:
393822

1710
PropID:
393830

1718
PropID:
393832

1621
PropID:
393841

1613
PropID:
393843

1605
PropID:
393845

1517
PropID:
393847

1518
PropID:
393848
1522

PropID:
393849
1610

PropID:
393851

1618
PropID:
393853

1710
PropID:
393856

1718
PropID:
393858
1806

PropID:
393860

1805
PropID:
393861

1713
PropID:
393864

1621
PropID:
393867

1605
PropID:
393871

1521
PropID:
393872

1606
PropID:
393876

1614
PropID:
393878

1706
PropID:
393881

1718
PropID:
393884

1806
PropID:
393886

7914
PropID:
393918

7425
PropID:
3505192311

PropID:
350523

2310
PropID:
350526

7423
PropID:
350528

2409
PropID:
318226

2309
PropID:
318230

2316
PropID:
318235

1909
PropID:
316509

7955
PropID:
123756

1617
PropID:
393787

8352
PropID:
418566

1720
PropID:
72378

7420
PropID:
60359

7402
PropID:
95312

2316
PropID:
69654

7618
PropID:
393776

1513
PropID:
393777
1517

PropID:
393778
1605

PropID:
393780

7627
PropID:
393785

1705
PropID:
393789

1713
PropID:
393791

1721
PropID:
393793

7731
PropID:
393798

7809
PropID:
393800

7906
PropID:
393920

7810
PropID:
393922 7728

PropID:
393925

2180
PropID:
133033

2122
PropID:
133034

2044
PropID:
133035

1955
PropID:
133037

1955
PropID:
148232

1985
PropID:
133038

8403
PropID:
317254

1718
PropID:
317259

1719
PropID:
317279
1727

PropID:
317281

8215
PropID:
332347

8307
PropID:
332350

1722
PropID:
332353

1714
PropID:
332355

1707
PropID:
332370
1715

PropID:
332372

1623
PropID:
333344

1703
PropID:
333346

1711
PropID:
333348

1719
PropID:
333350

8125
PropID:
333354

1726
PropID:
333358

7420
PropID:
350497

7408
PropID:
350500

7316
PropID:
350502

7414
PropID:
350506

7418
PropID:
350507

7311
PropID:
350511

7319
PropID:
350513

7417
PropID:
350517

2314
PropID:
350525

2321
PropID:
318245

7212
PropID:
318211

7208
PropID:
318212

7204
PropID:
318213
2303

PropID:
318214

2313
PropID:
318217

2409
PropID:
318220

2316
PropID:
318241
2408

PropID:
318243

1807
PropID:
438111

2255
PropID:
133039

2300
PropID:
133032

1613
PropID:
393782

7304
PropID:
318209

1627
PropID:
438108

1611
PropID:
438107

1525
PropID:
438106

1509
PropID:
438105

1719
PropID:
438109

1733
PropID:
438110

1506
PropID:
454155

1425
PropID:
454113

1421
PropID:
454112

1505
PropID:
454116

1417
PropID:
454111

1517
PropID:
454119

1607
PropID:
454121

1409
PropID:
454109

1615
PropID:
454123

1310
PropID:
54638

1810
PropID:
2641

8109
PropID:
458033

8117
PropID:
458031

2129
PropID:
458037

2125
PropID:
458055

2117
PropID:
458040

2112
PropID:
458060

2109
PropID:
458051

2101
PropID:
458064

8201
PropID:
458022

2028
PropID:
458070

2100
PropID:
458063

2031
PropID:
458042

2025
PropID:
458068

2020
PropID:
458072

2017
PropID:
458085

2017
PropID:
458066

2001
PropID:
458081

1914
PropID:
457983

1909
PropID:
458078

1901
PropID:
458076

1907
PropID:
37720

1930
PropID:
148290

1505
PropID:
454504

2107
PropID:
37720

8200
PropID:
232756

2022
PropID:
37720

2006
PropID:
37720

2013
PropID:
37720

2007
PropID:
37720

1914
PropID:
37720

1919
PropID:
37720

1920
PropID:
37720

1906
PropID:
37720

1903
PropID:
37720

1911
PropID:
37720

1847
PropID:
37720

1830
PropID:
37720

1711
PropID:
37720

1707
PropID:
37720

1831
PropID:
37720

1822
PropID:
37720

1703
PropID:
37720

1814
PropID:
37720

1710
PropID:
37720

1702
PropID:
37720

1819
PropID:
37720

1802
PropID:
37720

1805
PropID:
37720

2101
PropID:
470382

1919
PropID:
37720

1911
PropID:
37720

2025
PropID:
37720

2021
PropID:
37720

2011
PropID:
37720

1438
PropID:
333822

7626
PropID:
393774

7813
PropID:
393801

8005
PropID:
393806

8013
PropID:
393808

1810
PropID:
393809

1806
PropID:
393810

1720
PropID:
393811

1716
PropID:
393812

8015
PropID:
393813

1589
PropID:
3938211610

PropID:
393825

1806
PropID:
393834

1805
PropID:
393887

1709
PropID:
393891

1617
PropID:
393894

1609
PropID:
393896

1517
PropID:
393899

8023
PropID:
393900

8019
PropID:
393901
8018

PropID:
393904

8022
PropID:
393905

8014
PropID:
393908

8015
PropID:
393909

8019
PropID:
393910

7407
PropID:
350521

7619
PropID:
393783

7723
PropID:
393796

7909
PropID:
393803

2413
PropID:
318221

2304
PropID:
318238

1812
PropID:
49962

2206
PropID:
458028

2128
PropID:
458056

2126
PropID:
458026

2117
PropID:
458053

8213
PropID:
458019

2029
PropID:
458069

2021
PropID:
458045

1902
PropID:
457980

8358
PropID:
208674

8402
PropID:
446457

8101
PropID:
458035

2332
PropID:
7095

W
O
O
D
 C
R
EE

K
 D

R

BRO
KEN

 SH
O
E TRL

DUDLEYS DRAW DR

POISON OAK RD

B
R
EE

ZE
 W

A
Y 
LN

BROKEN SPOKE DR

U
P
LA

N
D
 B
EN

D
 D

R

R
U
ST

Y 
SP

U
R
 D

R

SH
A
D
O
W
 C
A
N
YO

N
 D

R

SO
U
TH

ER
N
 D

R
A
W
 D

R

R
U
ST

Y 
N
A
IL
 D

R
W
IN

D
Y 
C
IR WIND CHIME WAY

DRY CREEK CT

W
A
G
O
N

G
A
P
RD

NEUBERRYCLI
FF
E

D
R
Y 
C
R
EE

K
 D

R

O
A
K
 C
H
A
SE

 T
R
L

GUNBARREL DR

RU
STIC M

AN
O
R D

R

HOGANRD

S 
P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

Ü

Date: 2/21/2018
 lrbarrett

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-18-16

AG TO PD SF-2

Address :
1810 S Pea Ridge Rd

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

Production.SDE.Easement
















































	Item #4
	Regular Agenda
	UDEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:U
	Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner
	Brian Chandler, Director of Planning
	04/05/18
	Item #4
	Regular Agenda
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of right of way necessary for the expansion of Kegley Road Phase IV and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase in an estimated amount of $7,000.
	UITEM DESCRIPTIONU: SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing a renewal of the franchise with Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc., to provide non-emergency ambulance transfer services within the City.
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing the closure of a section of Avenue C, between Avenue B and Main Street, and the closure of a section of 1PstP Street south of Avenue B.
	UDEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	UCOMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE:U Compliance to goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan are summarized by the attached Comprehensive Plan Compliance table but further described below:
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution amending a street use license (SUL-FY-15-02) to allow existing buildings and improvements both above and below ground, on Lot 3, Block 1, Golden Valley Subdivision, with an encroachment of 50 +/- feet...
	04/05/18
	Consent Agenda
	Page 1 of 1
	ATTACHMENTS:
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053 finding that a 0.639-acre permanent easement situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas is necessary for the construct...
	Item #9
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 4
	UITEM SUMMARY:U  Ace Reneau, on behalf of the owner Temple Mall LLC, requests a rezoning from General Retail on a portion of the undeveloped back portion of the Temple Mall property that was recently re-platted creating the subject lot. Through a PD M...
	04/05/18
	Item #9
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 4
	Four egress points would be provided: two onto Azalea Drive and two into the adjacent mall property having additional outlets onto the Loop, 31PstP Street and Lowes Drive. Additional traffic analysis shows the peak hour trip figures for an apartment b...
	Engineer trip generation rates for the 140 units, peak hour trips would be calculated at 81, which is the equivalent number of trips to a 16,000 square foot shopping center. The development has two access points to Azalea Drive and two internal access...
	The applicant, Mr. Reneau, and owner, Temple Mall LLC, represented by Hal Thorne and Kirk Wilson, met with planning and legal staff and the City Manager on March 21PstP to discuss a realignment proposal for the western side of Azalea Drive, which is c...
	04/05/18
	Item #9
	Regular Agenda
	04/05/18
	Item #9
	Regular Agenda
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	Item #10
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 4
	UDEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	Item #10
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 4
	UCOMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE:U Compliance to goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan are summarized by the attached Comprehensive Plan Compliance table but further described below:
	Item #10
	Regular Agenda
	Page 3 of 4
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	Item #10
	Regular Agenda
	Page 4 of 4
	Item #11
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 4
	1. Substantial compliance with the attached Development Plan/Site Plan
	2. 20’ Front setbacks, 10‘ rear, 10’ side setbacks street side, 5’ side setbacks interior lots
	3. Paved trail heads provided to adjacent city trails planned
	4. No single residential lots with drive access onto realigned South Pea Ridge Road; shared drive if needed only with No Backing requirement
	5. East of Pea Ridge realignment (approximately three acres), option of one or two family dwellings with two family only on minimum 60 foot wide lots
	6. Maximum of 350 total lots
	7. Sodded front yards
	8. One tree in each front yard minimum 2” diameter at breast height
	9. Minimum of three 5 gallon shrubs, five 1-gallon shrubs in front yard
	10. Front facade of each structure will have a minimum of two architectural features of roof breaks, columns, gables, varied roof pitch, etc.
	04/05/18
	Item #11
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 4
	11. Each home facade is required to be a minimum of 80% masonry except for gables, dormers, eves, overhangs, porches, etc.
	12.  Front facade to be a minimum of 50% masonry excluding hardie plank siding with same permitted exceptions as written above
	13. Residential sidewalks as shown to be installed as homes are constructed. Sidewalk along South Pea Ridge portion will be built along with oversizing the roadway to collector standards.
	04/05/18
	Item #11
	Regular Agenda
	Page 3 of 4
	04/05/18
	Item #11
	Regular Agenda
	Page 4 of 4
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	Traffic Signals - Budget Adjustment - TCIP 101833 MMU Signal Upgrades.pdf
	Budget Adjustment Form

	Microsoft EA Tech Funds 2018.pdf
	Budget Adjustment Form

	Closure of Ave C and 1st St. - SF MRKT Sq area abandonment-MRKT TRL ROAD CLOSURE plat.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	MRKT TRL ROAD CLOSURE plat


	Shallowford LS CA 2 (KPA) - Project Map.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	L-Exh KPA


	Street Closure - Santa Fe Market Trail (Ave C, & 1st Street S. of Ave B).pdf
	Part 2: The City of Temple, Texas, hereby closes a section of Avenue C, between Avenue B and Main Street, and the closure of a section of 1st Street south of Avenue B, as outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for a...

	ADPC0B3.tmp
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053 finding that a 0.639-acre permanent easement situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas is necessary for the construct...

	Z-FY-18-13 Attachments for Council.pdf
	1 AerialMap
	2 LocationMap
	3 1-4-18 TEMPLE APT - ZONING SUBMISSION
	APT-A1.1-Layout3
	APT-LS.1-Layout3
	APT-A3.1-Layout3
	APT-A3.2-Layout3

	3 Azalea ROW proposal
	4 Temple Mall Addition Replat No. One FINAL PLAT
	5a Zoning Map
	5b Future Land Use Map
	6 Highlighted COSA TIA Threshold Worksheet 2
	7 Returned Responses
	Response letter for Z-FY-18-13
	School response


	Z-FY-18-13 (Rezoning from GR to PD SF3 - 1210 Azalea Dr).pdf
	Whereas, Ace Reneau, on behalf of the owner Temple Mall LLC, requests a rezoning from General Retail zoning district to Planned Development Multi-Family Three on a portion of the undeveloped back portion of the Temple Mall property that was recently r...
	Whereas, with Planned Development Multi-Family Three, the applicant is proposing an apartment building of five stories with a pool and resident plaza, with surrounding parking on three sides - due to its shape, the property presents challenges relatin...
	Whereas, there will be a mix of one and two bedroom units for a total of 140 units included in the project - amenities include a swimming pool and resident plaza;

	Z-FY-18-16 COUNCIL Attachments.pdf
	1a Pea Ridge Zoning PD Exhibit initial exhibit
	1b Pea Ridge Zoning Exhibit Version 2optimized_test2
	1c LAYOUT (003)
	Sheets and Views
	LAYOUT


	1d Drainage and Utility  Exhibits S Pea RIdge PD optimized_Page_3
	1e Site Plan cropped
	2 AerialMap
	2a LocationMap
	3 UtilityMap
	4 Zoning Map
	5 SITE PHOTOS
	6 Future Land Use Map
	7 Thorofare and Trails Map
	8 Notification Map with labels
	9 Neighbor responses2
	9 Neighbor responses
	doc00159820180326164208
	doc00160120180326164857

	10 area neighbor responses

	Z-FY-18-16 (Rezoning from AG to PD SF2 - 1810 S. Pea Ridge Rd).pdf
	1. Substantial compliance with the attached Development Plan/Site Plan;
	2. 20’ Front setbacks, 10’ rear, 10’ side setbacks street side, 5’ side setbacks interior lots;
	3. Paved trail heads provided to adjacent city trails planned;
	4. No single residential lots with drive access allowed onto realigned S Pea Ridge Road; shared drive if needed only with No Backing requirement;
	5. East of Pea Ridge realignment (approximately 3 acres), option of one or two family dwellings with two family only on minimum 60-foot-wide lots;
	6. Maximum of 350 total lots;
	7. Sodded front yards;
	8. One tree in each front yard minimum 2” diameter at breast height;
	9. Minimum of three 5 gallon shrubs, five 1-gallon shrubs in front yard;
	10. Front façade of each structure will have a minimum of two architectural features of roof breaks, columns, gables, varied roof pitch, etc.;
	11. Each home façade is required to be a minimum of 80% masonry except for gables, dormers, eves, overhangs, porches, etc.;
	12.  Front façade to be a minimum of 50% masonry excluding hardie plank siding with same permitted exceptions as written above; and
	13. Residential sidewalks as shown to be installed as homes are constructed. Sidewalk along S. Pea Ridge portion will be built along with oversizing the roadway to collector standards.




